
 

Contact:  Richard Jefferies 
Tel:  01633 656656 
E-mail: richard.jefferies@newport.gov.uk 
Date of Issue: Tuesday, 16 February 2016 
 

Agenda 
Newport City Council 
 
Date: Wednesday, 24 February 2016 
 
Time: 5.00 pm 
 
Venue: Council Chambers - Civic Centre 
 
To: All Members of the City Council 
 

 
WEBCASTING NOTICE 
 
This meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the Council's internet site. 
 
At the start of the meeting the Mayor or Person Presiding will confirm if all or part of the meeting is being 
filmed. The images and sound recording may be also used for training purposes within the Council.  
 
Generally the public seating areas are not filmed. However by entering the meeting room and using the 
public seating area, you are consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound 
recordings for webcasting and/or training purposes. 
 
If you have any queries regarding this, please contact the Chief Democratic Services Officer. 

 

 
Item  Wards Affected 

 
1.   Preliminaries   

 
i. To receive any apologies for absence. 
ii. To receive any declarations of interest 
iii. To receive any announcements by the Mayor. 

 

All Wards 

2.   Minutes  (Pages 5 - 12) 
 

All Wards 

3.   Appointments   
 

All Wards 

4.   Police Issues   
 

All Wards 

5.   2016/17 Budget and Medium Term Financial Plan  (Pages 13 - 86) 
 

All Wards 

6.   Strategic Equalities Plan 2016 - 2020  (Pages 87 - 116) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

All Wards 

Public Document Pack



 

 

7.   Questions to the Chair of the Cabinet   
 
To provide an opportunity for councillors to ask questions to the Chair 
of the Cabinet in accordance with the Council’s Standing Orders. 
 
Process: No more than 30 minutes will be allocated at the Council 
meeting for oral questions to the Leader  
 
If members are unable to ask their question orally within the allocated 
time, remaining questions will be answered in writing. The question 
and response will be appended to the minutes. 
 
The question must be addressed through the Mayor or the person 
presiding at the meeting and not directly to the person being 
questioned 
 

All Wards 

8.   Questions to Cabinet Members  
  
To provide an opportunity to pose Questions to Cabinet Members in 
line with Standing Orders 
 
Process: No more than 10 minutes will be allocated at the Council 
meeting for questions to each Cabinet Member. 
 
Members will have needed to submit their proposed questions in 
writing in accordance with Standing Orders. If members are unable to 
ask their question orally within the allocated time, remaining questions 
will be answered in writing. The question and response will be 
appended to the minutes. 
 
The question must be addressed through the Mayor or the 
person presiding at the meeting and not directly to the person 
being questioned 
 
Questions will be posed to cabinet members in the following order: 
 
Deputy Leader  
Cabinet Member for Adult & Community Services 
Cabinet Member for Education and Young People 
Cabinet Member for People & Business Change 
Cabinet Member for Regulatory Functions 
Cabinet Member for Regeneration and Investment 
Cabinet Member for Skills and Work 
Cabinet Member for Streetscene & City Services 
 
 
For Information: A digest of recent decision schedules issued by 
Cabinet, Cabinet Members and Minutes of recent meetings of 
Committees has been circulated electronically to all Members of the 
Council 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

All Wards 



 

 

9.   Questions to the Chairs of Committees   
 
To pose questions to the Chairs of the Committees in the following 
order: 
 

I. Scrutiny Committees 
 

 Community Planning and Development 

 Learning, Caring and Leisure 

 Street Scene, Regeneration and Safety 
 

II. Planning Committee 
 

III. Licensing Committee 
 

IV. Democratic Services Committee 
 

 
Process: No more than 10 minutes will be allocated at the Council 
meeting for questions to each Chair. 
 
Members will have needed to submit their proposed questions in 
writing in accordance with Standing Orders. If members are unable to 
ask their question orally within the allocated time, remaining questions 
will be answered in writing. The question and response will be 
appended to the minutes. 
 
The question must be addressed through the Mayor or the person 
presiding at the meeting and not directly to the person being 
questioned. 
 

All Wards 

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



Minutes 
Council 
 
Date: 26 January 2016 
 
Time: 5.00 pm 
 
Present: Councillors H Thomas (Chair), M Al-Nuiami, D Atwell, T Bond, J Cleverly; 

P Cockeram, M Cornelious, E Corten, K Critchley, D Davies, V Delahaye, 
M Evans, C Ferris, D Fouweather, E Garland, G Giles, J Guy, P Hannon, 
D Harvey, P Huntley, R Hutchings, R Jeavons, M Kellaway, D Mayer, S Mlewa, 
R Mogford, R Poole, J Mudd, J Richards, M Spencer, C Suller, T Suller, 
K Thomas, E Townsend, R Truman, T Watkins, M Whitcutt, R White, 
K Whitehead, D Wilcox and D Williams 

 
Apologies: Councillors O Ali, R Bright, C Evans, C Jenkins, M Linton, C Maxfield, A Morris 

and M Rahman 
 

 
 
1. Preliminaries  

 
Councillor Janet Cleverly  
 
The Mayor announced that Councillor Janet Cleverly had been elected at the recent By 
Election held in the Bettws Ward. Councillor Whitehead introduced Councillor Cleverly to the 
Mayor and to the Council  
 
Welsh National Healthy Schools Scheme 
 
The Mayor was pleased to welcome to the representatives of  Eveswell; Liswerry; and 
Langstone Primary Schools .These schools had been awarded the National Quality Award 
for the Welsh National Healthy Schools Scheme. Each school has demonstrated excellence 
in health promotion through education. The Mayor considered this to be a fantastic 
achievement. He offered congratulations on behalf of the Council.  
 
The Mayor met representatives of staff, pupils and governors of each school.  
 
Councillor Debbie Wilcox, Cabinet Member for Education and Young People presented the 
Awards after explaining the achievements of the schools to the Council and adding her 
congratulations. 
 
Councillor Atwell also congratulated each of the schools involved, mentioning in particular 
Langstone Primary School here he serves as a Governor 
 

2. Minutes  
 
Subject to the amendment of two minor errors, the minutes of the meeting of the City Council 
held on 24 November 2015 were confirmed as a true record and signed by the Mayor 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2.



 

 
3. Appointments  

 
The following appointments were agreed: 
 
 

Body Appointee Replacing  
 

Audit Committee Cllrs Roger Jeavons and 
Emma Garland. 
 

Cllr Ibrahim Hayat 
Cllr Jane Mudd 
 

EAS Audit and Risk 
assurance committee 
 
 

 Councillor David Mayer   
and Councillor Sally Mlewa     
 

New appointments 
 
 

Newport City Homes  Councillor Val Delahaye Councillor Omar Ali  

Newport Transport  Board 
 

Councillor Mark Spencer Councillor Chris Evans has 
resigned.  
 

Friends of Newport 
Transporter Bridge 

Charles Ferris  Richard White   

 
Maes Ebbw – Additional Governors: 
 
The Chief Education Officer has taken the decision to appoint two additional LA governors to 
the Governing Body at Maes Ebbw School. The appointees are Mr Mike Fisher and Ms 
Hannah Brayford.  
 
Other Governor Appointments   
 
Duffryn High School: Cllr David Fouweather and Laura Emily Dunn appointed to vacancies  
Malpas Park Primary School: Tyler Gibson to replace Laura Emily Dunn  
Monnow Primary School: Councillor Jan Cleverly was appointed to replace Noel Trigg 
Pillgwenlly Primary School:  Ms Val Davies was appointed  
Ringland Primary School: Mr David Sutherland was confirmed as the appointment  
Somerton Primary School: Rob Brooks appointed  
St Julian’s School: Gina Robertson appointed  
St Mary’s RC Primary School: Cllr David Fouweather is to be replaced by Michael Doverman 
Ysgol Gymraeg Ifor Hael: Leah Stannard appointed  
 

LA Appointed Governors - Terms of Office Coming to an End between 01/12/15 and 
31/03/16 

School Name 
End 
Date 

Resolved 

Ysgol Gymraeg Casnewydd 
Alan 
Speight 

03/12/15 
Re-appointed  

Milton Junior M Linton 11/12/15 Re-appointed 

High Cross Primary Ann Gunn 17/01/16  Re-appointed 

Pentrepoeth Primary 
Darren 
Walsh 

22/01/16 
 Re-appointed 

Pentrepoeth Primary 
Paul 
Gregory 

30/01/16 
 Re-appointed 
 
 

St Marys RC Primary 
Newport 

Charles 
Ferris 

07/02/16 
 Re-appointed 

Page 6



 

Clytha Primary 
Charles 
Ferris 

07/02/16 
 Re-appointed 

St Patricks RC Primary 
Newport 

John 
Richards 

24/02/16 
 Re-appointed 

St Patricks RC Primary  Allan Morris 24/02/16 Re-appointed 

Duffryn High 
Jan 
Atkinson 

27/02/16 
 Re-appointed 

Glasllwch Primary Anne Ferris 27/02/16 Re-appointed 

Ringland Primary R C Bright 13/03/16 Re-appointed 

 
 
 

4. Police Issues  
 
The Mayor welcomed Chief Inspector Kevin Warren to the meeting 
 
Chief Inspector Warren shared the concerns of Councillor Harvey about continuing drug 
problems in the ward. He stated he would arrange contact with the local ward members and 
explained actions taken to try to deal with the situation. He stated he would speak to local 
officers about a plan to move the issue forward. 
 
Chief Inspector Warren agreed with Councillor Jeavons that work needed to be done with 
stores to alleviate the problem of shoplifting. A partnership approach was needed and a 
Business Crime partnership had been set up with a group of retailers from Spytty Park. 
 
Chief Inspector Warren recognised Councillor Huntley’s concerns about the 101 system, in 
particular waiting times. He mentioned the new system “storm” and updated on progress  
 
Councillor Truman raised the issue of diminishing police numbers. Chief Inspector Warren 
said that he had discussed with local members the impact of the new operating model and 
staff reductions. He mentioned that a further 60 officers were to be recruited in the next 12 to 
18 months. Councillor Fouweather recognised that further officers are being recruited and so 
some progress was being made.  Chief Inspector Warren mentioned need to recruit from 
across our communities. 
 
Chief Inspector Warren informed Councillor Guy that the CCTV in the City Centre remains an 
important tool in gathering evidence  
 
Councillor Matthew Evans asked if the reintroduction of the barriers would help the police. 
Chief Inspector Warren stated that potentially it could help but the geographical inspector 
would have a local view. 
 
 

5. Notice of Motion: Trade Union Bill  
 
The Council considered the following motion for which the requisite notice had been provided  
 
This Council calls upon Welsh Government to seek to enforce the requirement that a 
Legislative Consent Motion is necessary for the UK Government’s trade Union Bill to become 
law in Wales as applied to public services including local government, if necessary via court 
action and to with-hold such legislative consent in order to prevent the implementation of the 
Bill in the Welsh jurisdiction, recognising the damaging effect that the Bill would have as set 
out in the WLGA submission of 2nd October 2015 subscribed to by this Council.  
 
In moving the motion Councillor Whitcutt stated that the Bill would have a pernicious effect 
on workers in the public sector. He considered that it could create division and unrest and 

Page 7



 

was not step forward, more a step towards social and economic division. He stated that 
legislative consent of the Assembly was needed and he encouraged the Assembly to back 
up its position legally if necessary. Councillor Whitcutt referred to the restrictive nature of the 
ballot thresholds which were significantly more demanding than elections to public office; the 
lack of opportunity to use electronic voting, which would impact on a number of people 
wishing to participate in the vote in that manner; and the new proposed notification system, 
which was a bureaucratic block backed up with sanctions. Councillor Whitcutt stated that 
safeguards against intimidation were already in place and were successful. He considered 
that the removal of the check-off system was politically motivated and he said that the repeal 
of the ban on the use of agency staff to cover striking workers would serve to promote 
bitterness. 
 
In seconding the motion, Councillor Giles mentioned the serious effects on local government. 
She mentioned the long history of good working relations between the Council and Unions. 
The implementation of this as legislation would increase tension between the employers and 
unions.  Local Government had suffered low or no pay rises recently and the good working 
relationships had helped the maintenance of local services. Councillor Giles stated that there 
was no need to mend what was not broken.  She encouraged Welsh Government to withhold 
the necessary consent to allow this Bill to go forward.  
 
 
Members speaking in favour of the motion stated that: 
 

 The number of days lost to strike action had reduced significantly 

 The ballot requirements were more stringent than those for the election of 
Councillors; AMs and MP’s 

 Electronic voting was ruled out  

 The notification system was inflexible and could result in fines for the Trade Unions  

 The check-off system allows people to opt out of paying into the political fund if they 
wish but few did  

 The use of agency staff to cover the work of employees on strike was anti- 
democratic  

 Members of Parliament from all parties had expressed concern about the Bill 

 If Trade Unions funding to a party was to be withdrawn, other forms of party funding 
needed to be examined  

 The Bill went back 30 years when Trade Unions were considered the ‘enemy within ‘ 

 The proposals would hinder public relations 

 Trade Unions had played a major role in improving conditions of employees and 
general health and wellbeing of people throughout the years and provided protection 
against unscrupulous employers or managers where necessary 

 It had been described as an attack on civil liberties and an assault on working people 
, kerbing freedoms 

 The requirement to announce in advance how social media would be used was 
undemocratic and put barriers in the way of democracy  

 Unions need to be part of the strategy to promote economic growth  

 There were excessive new powers for the Certification Officer  

 New picket supervisors would need to be identified by the wearing of armbands  

 There had been significantly  fewer strikes than in the 80’s and most for a half or 
single day  

 
Those speaking against the motion made the following points  
 

 The motion would not win sympathy from the public 

 Fatal flaws in Welsh government oversight had been reported 

 Business will be put off from investing here if we had laws that make it easier to strike 
here than in England 

Page 8



 

 Unions have an important role to play but this  Bill protects essential services from 
being disrupted by strikes supported by only a small number of union members   

 Key reforms include a key ‘opt-in’ provision for political subscriptions. This is 
transparent and allows members to make up their own minds about their wish to 
contribute to the political funds  

 In the past there had been undue influence of unions 

 Electronic voting does not contribute much to the number of people voting 

 There should be a threshold on the number of people taking part in a ballot before 
strike action is agreed 

 This legislation would protect against flying pickets and sympathy strikes 

 The Bill includes scrutiny of facility time that currently costs tax payers of Newport 
£60,000 when the unions could fund this themselves 

 Less than half the people in the UK  are members of unions 

 No issue if relations with Unions are good 
 
The required number of members called for a recorded vote. 
 
Members voting in favour of the motion were: M Al Nuiami; T Bond; J Cleverly ; P Cockeram; 
E Corten; K Critchley; D Davies; V Delahaye; E Garland; G Giles; J Guy; P Hannon; D 
Harvey ; P Huntley; R Hutchings; R Jeavons; D Mayer; S Mlewa; J Mudd; R Poole; J 
Richards; M Spencer; C Suller;  H Thomas; K  Thomas; E Townsend; R Truman; T Watkins; 
M Whitcutt; K Whitehead; and D Wilcox . A total of 31 votes  
 
Members voting against the motion were: Councillors D Atwell; M Cornelious; M Evans; C 
Ferris; D Fouweather; M Kellaway; R Mogford; T Suller; R White; and D Williams. A Total of 
10 votes 
 
The motion was carried 
 
Resolved  
 
This Council calls upon Welsh Government to seek to enforce the requirement that a 
Legislative Consent Motion is necessary for the UK Government’s trade Union Bill to become 
law in Wales as applied to public services including local government, if necessary via court 
action and to with-hold such legislative consent in order to prevent the implementation of the 
Bill in the Welsh jurisdiction, recognising the damaging effect that the Bill would have as set 
out in the WLGA submission of 2nd October 2015 subscribed to by this Council 
 

6. Council Tax Reduction Scheme  
 
The Deputy Leader introduced a report in which the Council was informed that the Council 
Tax Reduction Scheme for 2016/17 updates the scheme that was introduced on 1st April 
2015. The Council is not required to consult on the proposals of the new scheme as the 
amendments made are in consequence of amendments made to the Prescribed 
Requirements Regulations. The local discretions that are available to the Council will remain 
unchanged. 
 
No changes to current arrangements were proposed and the Council will continue to 
disregard the whole amount of War Disablement Pensions and War Widows Pensions when 
calculating the income of a claimant. 
 
If the Council did not adopt a local Scheme, the Welsh Government would impose the default 
scheme. That would mean no support for War Disablement and War Widows Pensioners 
 
The resolution was unanimous 

Page 9



 

 
Resolved 
 
To approve  the Council Tax Reduction Scheme for 2016/17 in accordance with the Council 
Tax Reduction Schemes (Prescribed Requirements and Default Schemes) (Wales) 
(Amendment) Regulations 2016 ("the Prescribed Requirements Regulations") exercising its 
local discretions as indicated in the report. 
 

7. Treasury Management  
 
The Deputy Leader introduced a detailed report of treasury activities up to 30 September. 
Members noted from the report that activities had been consistent with relevant Chartered 
Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy Guidance, Treasury Management principles and 
the Council’s investment strategy. 
 
There were no proposed changes to the Counterparty limits for UK Banking. However, the 
maximum lending period for a number of the UK Institutions had been revised as advised by 
the Authority’s Treasury Management Consultants 
 
The Head of Finance explained to Councillor Hannon that it would be inappropriate to 
discuss the details in relation to the repayment of the loan to Queensberry other than to say 
that Queensberry are required to repay by November 2016  
 
Resolved 
 
To receive the report on treasury management activities for the period to 30 September 
2015. 
 

8. Schedule / Diary of Meetings 2016 - 2017  
 
The proposed diary / schedule of meetings for the coming municipal year was adopted as a 
guide, recognising that individual Committees would agree their start times and that 
amendments to the schedule could be agreed as necessary 
 

9. Nomination of the Mayor 2016-2017  
 
The Deputy Leader of the Council nominated Councillor David Atwell to serve as the Mayor 
of Newport for the municipal year 2016-17. The Leader of the Opposition seconded the 
motion. Councillor Atwell thanked members for their nomination 
 
Resolved 
 
It was unanimously resolved to nominate Councillor David Atwell as the Mayor elect for the 
Municipal Year 2016-2017 
 

10. Questions to the Chair of the Cabinet  
 
There were no questions submitted 
 

11. Questions to Cabinet Members  
 
There were no questions submitted 
 

12. Questions to Chairs of Committees  
 
There were no questions submitted 
 

Page 10



 

13. Standards Committee  
 
The minutes of the meeting of the Standards Committee held on 14 January 2016 were 
received  
 

 
The meeting terminated at 18:28 
 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



Report 
Council  
 
Part 1  
 
Date:  24th February 2016 
 
Item No:    Please see above 
 

Subject 2016/17 Budget and Medium Term Financial Plan  
 
Purpose To agree the Council’s 2016/17 overall revenue budget and the resulting Council Tax 

resolution, 2016/17 capital budget, the Council’s Treasury Management Strategy, 
Investment Strategy, Minimum Revenue Provision policy and Prudential Indicators as 
recommended by Cabinet on 15th February, 2016.  

 
 

Author  Head of Finance 

 

Ward All 

 

Summary Following recommendation by Cabinet, the Council needs to make decisions on: 

 

 the level of Council Tax and overall revenue and capital budgets; 

 the Council’s Treasury Management and Investment strategies; and 

 Minimum Revenue Provision policy and Prudential Indicators. 
 

Cabinet met on the 15th February and finalised detailed budget recommendations 
plus the various Treasury Management strategies and policies outlined above. 
This paper shows the 2016/17 detailed budget proposals, resulting service cash 
limits, council tax increase and recommendations for the Council’s general reserve 
and contingencies. An increase in council tax of 3.90% (£36.59 per annum at 
Band D) for Newport City Council is recommended. 

 
The Cabinet have built on the Medium Term Financial Plan approved last February 
and approved further savings to meet the increased financial challenges facing the 
Council. The programmes are fully outlined within the Medium Term Financial Plan 
(MTFP), (Appendix 8).  

 
Based on these Change and Efficiency Programmes, Cabinet has taken a 
strategic and medium term approach and agreed all investment and saving 
proposals over the life of the current MTFP, together with the final 2 years of the 
current Capital programme. Council is asked to note this decision. 

 

Proposal That Council: 

 
Revenue budget and Council Tax 16/17 (paragraphs 4-32) 
 

 Note that an extensive consultation exercise has been completed on the medium 
term change/efficiency programme, including the 2016/17 budget proposals and that 
Cabinet have taken these into account in recommending final details of the 
programme and the resulting 2016/17 overall revenue budget recommended to this 
Council.  

Page 13

Agenda Item 5.



 Note the Head of Finance’s recommendations that minimum General Fund 
Balances be maintained at £5million, with the actual in place currently being £8.93m 

 Note that, in line with the requirements of the Local Government Act 2003, the Head 
of Finance confirms the robustness of the estimates underlying the proposals and 
the adequacy of the General Reserves in the context of other earmarked reserves 
and a revenue budget contingency of c£1,500k  

 Approve the total revenue budget, shown in Appendix 1  

 Approve a Council Tax increase for Newport City Council of 3.90%, a band D tax of 
£974.61 

 Approve the formal Council Tax resolution, included in Appendix 5 which 
incorporates Police and Crime Commissioner for Gwent & Community Council 
precepts 

 
Capital Programme and 2016/17 budget (paragraphs 37–50) 

 

 Approve the 2016/17 capital budget, in line with the detail contained in Appendix 6  
 

Treasury Management and Investment strategies, Minimum Revenue Provision 
Policies & Prudential Indicators (paragraphs 51-71    
 

 To approve Treasury Management Policies in line with the detail contained in 
Appendix 7 

 To approve the Annual Investment Strategy in line with the detail contained in 
Appendix 7 

 To approve the Council’s Counterparty list (external bodies for Council 
investments) in line with the detail contained in Appendix 7 

 To approve the Prudential Indicators in line with the detail contained in Appendix 7 

 To approve the Minimum Revenue Provision policy in line with the detail contained 
in Appendix 7 

 
 
Medium Term Financial Plan and Capital programme (paragraphs 1 – 3 and 37 - 50) 
 

 To note Cabinets approval of the implementation of the full 4 year change and 
efficiency programme, including all budget investments and saving options 
(Appendices 2 - 3), as summarised within the Medium Term Financial Plan 
(Appendix 8) and the final 2 years of the capital programme (Appendix 6). Noting 
they are subject to on-going review and updating. 
 

Action by  Head of Finance – prepare 2016/17 Council Tax billing and Newport City Council detailed 

budgets in line with recommendation   
 

Timetable Immediate 

 
This report was prepared after consultation with: 

 
  Chief Executive / Corporate Directors  
  Head of Law & Standards 
  Head of People & Business Change 

 
   
 

 

Background 
 
 
 
 Page 14



A ‘joined up approach’ 
 
1. The Council is required to approve an overall total budget and resulting Council Tax level for 

2016/17 and the proposed budget is attached at Appendix 1.  Cabinet is responsible for the 
detailed spending plans of the budget, the total budget is based on detailed proposals reported to 
Cabinet on 15th February 2016 and shared with Members via the Council’s Scrutiny Committees in 
January 2016. 

  
2. As in prior years, and in line with best practice, we are asking Council to consider the key budget 

issues together and:  
 

 agree the overall revenue & capital budget and resulting Council Tax; and 

 agree the Council’s treasury management and investment strategies, minimum revenue 
provision policy and its prudential indicators. 

 
3. As last year, Council should note that Cabinet continue to take a strategic and medium term view 

and agreed the implementation of the Council’s 4 year change and efficiency programme, including 
all budget investments and saving options, as summarised within the Medium Term Financial Plan 
and the full 2 remaining years of the Capital Programme. Noting that these plans are subject to on-
going review and updating. 

 
 
THE COUNCIL’S 2016/17 REVENUE BUDGET AND COUNCIL TAX 
 
 
4. During the Summer and Autumn of 2015, Cabinet Members and Directors / Heads of Service 

developed a detailed update to the existing change and efficiency programme with a range of new 
proposals with associated business cases. Considerable ‘budget conversations’, building on the 
extensive exercise carried out for the current year’s budget was undertaken 

 
5. The resulting budget proposals agreed by Cabinet in December have also been consulted on as 

follows: 
 

 With Trade Unions via the Employee Joint Liaison Group (EJLG) meetings on 14th 
January 2016. The Unison and GMB unions separately responded with observations.   

 With all Overview and Scrutiny Committees in their January 2016 meetings where 
Members discussed the detailed change and efficiency programmes plus the Medium 
Term Financial Plan.  

 With the Schools’ Forum on 12th January 2016.  

 With the public.  

 The Council’s Fairness Commission.  

 With representatives from the business and voluntary sector on 4th February.  
 

6. Details of the consultation responses were included in the Cabinet report on the 15th February 
2016 and considered by Cabinet in finalising the details of the budget proposals for this Council 
meeting along with their Equality Impact Assessments. 

 
The proposed budget 2016/17 
 
7. The starting point for the 2016/17 budget is the current year’s budget. Whilst it is a challenging 

year, most services, with the exception of Social Care are currently forecasting to operate close to 
or under their approved budget. Notwithstanding this, regular budget monitoring has identified a 
number of base budget issues that require adjustment in 2016/17 and beyond and where required 
these have been included in service pressures / investment proposals agreed by Cabinet. 

 
8. Funding levels for Service Areas based on the draft proposals are shown in Appendix 1 with the 

detailed budget investments and savings shown in Appendix 2 and 3 respectively. Proposals 
include c£10.55m of budget investments / pressures over and above the costs of inflation. The 
most significant area of additional expenditure are linked to: Page 15



 

 c£1,200k of funding to implement the UK Government National Living Wage policy in 
2016/17, with a further c£2,100k required thereafter to fully implement. This relates to 
the Council’s external social care costs to meet their higher costs as they implement this. 

 £2,800k of funding to meet the costs of increased ‘Employer National Insurance’ rates, 
following the UK Government policy change which stopped rebates given to those 
employers with contracted out pension schemes.   

 £280k of funding to implement the WG Welsh Language Act standards. 

 £230k of funding for increased costs as capacity is increased at the Council’s Maes 
Ebbw Special school. 

 £2,820k increased funding for Schools, in addition to the Maes Ebbw Special school 
above   

 c£360k of funding to meet adult social services demographic and transition pressures 

 c£430k of additional funding for increasing children’s social care costs. 
 
 
9. As is the case each year, the Welsh Government (WG) transfers some specific grants into the 

Council’s overall grant settlement. The proposals make the assumption that these are included in 
those Service Area budgets which were funded from the specific grants. This allows continuation of 
those services in the first year. Service funding levels in Appendix 1 reflect these changes. 

 
10. In addition, significant specific grants are received from WG each year and at this time we still 

await the finer details of funding levels for 2016/17. It is highly probable that we will see decreases 
in some of these grants. It is proposed, in line with the Council’s current working policy here that 
Service Areas deal with these matters with Cabinet Members in terms of identifying issues as they 
become aware of them and developing necessary solutions to resolve them.  This may involve 
reducing / stopping services that WG specific grants no longer fund. 

 
11. The need to identify a significant level of savings to balance the budget, both for 2016/17 and the 

next three years was recognised at the early stages of budget preparation and a robust process 
has identified new savings of c£9.3m of savings over the 4 years, of which c£7m is for 2016/17. 
These are in addition to already agreed savings of c£3.6m of savings over the next 4 years, of 
which just under c£1.7m is for 2016/17. The savings are shown in Appendix 3 

 
 As has been the case in previous years, the need to find savings has come mainly from increasing 

cost pressures and investments as opposed to WG grant reductions. This grant has only 
decreased, in cash terms, in the current 15/16 year and a small reduction now in 16/17, and 
actually increased slightly each year prior to 15/16. However, as noted in those years, the annual 
increases were nowhere near enough to cover annual inflationary pressures, let alone the cost 
pressures on the budget and therefore further savings had to be found even in those years.  Future 
years where, in cash terms, the grant is also now potentially reducing adds further challenge than 
in previous years.   

 
12. Cabinet considered the schools’ funding position in its December 2015 meeting and again in the 

February 2016 meeting, following consultation. Cabinet’s decision here will see school’s budget 
increase by c£3.0m, or 3.5% increase from current levels. Whilst there is no formal WG pledge 
now in place for schools funding, this decision is far more generous than the c1.85% that a ‘pledge’ 
would have required. The pressures on school budgets was outlined to Cabinet in December and it 
showed, even after the additional funding allocated in February Cabinet, that school’s will need to 
find savings to balance budgets in 2016/17 given spending pressures on ‘teachers pensions’ and 
‘National Insurance contribution’ increases in 2016/17. Notwithstanding this, this increase is one of, 
if not the most generous settlements in the Gwent area and across Wales and is a continuation of 
relatively good funding settlements to school budgets over the last few years. 

 
The grant settlement (RSG) and Tax Base 
 
13. The finance settlement from WG is important to the financial position of the Authority making up 

83% of its net budget funding. The UK Government’s Spending Review in the Autumn 2015 has 
meant that WG only notified Local Council’s with their draft budget settlements on 9th December Page 16



2015 and the final settlement is not due to be received until 2nd March, 2016. For the first time, the 
Council will set a budget and propose a Council Tax before the final grant settlement is known. 
This is entirely within their legal powers and this therefore represents a potential ‘budget risk’ which 
requires managing. More detail on this is included within the section on reserves below in para. 17 
– 27 below.  A small correction to the original draft settlement was recently provided by WG, which 
gave a small increase to the funding by £9k.  In saying this, all the relevant data required tor the 
final settlement was included within the draft settlement, therefore there are no expected changes 
to the final settlement. 
  

14. Councils must set Council Tax on or before 11th March each year but, in practical terms, to delay 
much beyond this meeting date would cause delays to billing and collection of Council Tax. This 
would have a significant adverse impact on the Council’s cash-flow. There is ample mitigation 
against the potential risk of the final settlement value changing within the revenue contingency 
budget and therefore this should not unduly hinder or delay a decision on setting Council Tax. 

 
15. The final budget here is therefore based on the draft RSG settlement of £209.1m, which represents 

a 0.7% decrease in cash funding from the current year level, after taking account of specific grant 
transfers into the settlement. 

 
16. The tax base is the estimated number of Band D equivalent properties within the city. As this 

number increases, it generates additional income through Council Tax but a reduction is made to 
the Council’s settlement from WG if any increase is disproportionate to average increases across 
Wales and this adjustment is included in the draft settlement figure, as noted above. An allowance 
for the increased costs of benefits is also required. For 2016/17, the tax base is 56,145.64 
(2015/16 - 55,560.04.)  

 
General and Specific Reserves, Contingencies and Financial Risks 
 
17. The proposed budget incorporates a number of assumptions in terms of likely levels of income and 

expenditure in future years. There are therefore inevitably a number of financial risks inherent in 
the proposed budget. The key financial risks are highlighted below: 

 
18. Any overspend in 2015/16 over and above the revenue contingency budget would be an issue. 

However, no overspend is currently forecasted and the revenue budget contingency is not 
earmarked for any specific issues at this time. In saying that, there are a number of significant base 
budget pressures and overspends in the current 2015/16 year and these have been considered 
alongside the challenging savings targets for 2016/17. Additional significant budget capacity has 
been provided where it has been deemed necessary.  

 
19. Saving proposals and additional income proposals in this report amount to approximately £8.6m 

and will need to be delivered in order to achieve a balanced outturn for 2016/17. This will result in 
implementation costs and inevitable financial risk around full delivery of all savings.  Realistic part 
year assumptions have been made where implementation cannot be immediate but there is an 
inherent financial risk around achieving changes in time to deliver the planned savings. 

 
20. Inflationary increases in budgets have been set at a low level, consistent with most other local 

authorities.  Invariably, this introduces a degree of financial risk as key inflationary pressures are 
not known with certainty at this time but this financial risk is no higher than in any other year. In 
particular, any risk here in the area of ‘pay inflation’, being the highest risk value potentially, is 
covered by the Council’s ‘Pay Reserve’ 

 
21. In terms of any contingencies and reserves, the Head of Finance needs to review these in their 

totality in conjunction with the base budget itself and the financial risks which face the Authority. In 
addition, this review should incorporate a medium term view where needed and should take into 
account key developments that may impact on the need for and use of one off resources. In these 
respects, Cabinet will be aware that the current base budget has a c£1.5million contingency 
budget. 

 

Page 17



22. In light of the financial risks highlighted above, a robust view is being taken on managing budget 
risks and protecting the financial health of the Council. In that respect, the Council’s financial 
resilience is a key consideration and Appendix 9 shows the current ‘snapshot’ of key data and 
information here, alongside the current position on the Council’s reserves. 

 
23. The financial resilience ‘snapshot’ shows that the Council is mitigating potential risks through a 

number of avenues, there are sufficient levels of general reserves discussed further below, and 
there are a number of earmarked reserves which are set aside to mitigate against specific risks 
such as the insurance reserve and capital expenditure reserve.  In addition to this, included within 
the Council’s balance sheet, are cash-backed provisions, which are included to fund other specific 
risks.   

 
There are also earmarked reserves set aside which are set aside to fund expected future increases 
in costs for projects and a reserve is set aside for the smoothing of the funding of these, the most 
significant example being the Private Finance Initiative reserves.  These contribute to a strong 
balance sheet position that is shown in the ‘snapshot’. 

 
24. The Council has also been able to show strong financial control and has managed within its budget 

over a number of years, despite the high level of savings.  This is projected to be the case for 
2015/16 again which is summarised in the financial resilience ‘snapshot’ appendix. 

 
25. A ‘rule of thumb’ analysis for determining the level of general reserves suggests this is at least 5% 

of net revenue expenditure (excluding schools’ budgets), unless a formal risk assessment justifies 
a lower level. This implies a level of c£8.7million for Newport. However, taking the approach 
outlined above: 

 

 Whilst it is accepted that as significant budget reductions are made it invariably introduces 
financial risks, Newport has a reputation of managing within its budget.  Budget risks have 
been addressed in the proposals. 

 

 Protection against budget risks is provided through earmarked reserves and contingencies.   
Whilst no general revenue contingency reserves are currently held (excepting the base 
budget provision), the Council has a number of earmarked reserves for known but not 
always easily quantifiable financial risks.  

 
26. In the context of the above and the financial risks inherent in the proposed budget, it is 

recommended that the minimum level of general reserves remain at £5million, supported by the 
base budget contingency of £1.5m. As shown in Appendix 9, the current level is higher at £8.9m 
and this additional level is not considered excessive given the on-going austerity and uncertainty 
on future funding, both for 2016/17 as the Council awaits the final WG grant settlement and the 
medium term funding support, with no forward settlement indicated by WG.  
 

27. The base budget contingency built into the budget, alongside the level of recommended general 
and earmarked reserves reflect the overall potential financial risk associated with delivering the 
budget proposals in 2016/17.  With general reserves, this provides sufficient capacity to cover 
financial risks. In light of this approach, the Head of Finance, as part of his S151 responsibilities, is 
content that the 2016/17 budget as proposed is robust. 

 
Proposed Budget & Newport Council Tax Level 
 
 
28. Newport continues to have the second lowest Council Tax in Wales and amongst the lowest in the 

UK and significantly spends lower than its SSA compared with other Local Authorities. Whilst 
changes in Council Tax levels are usually noted in percentage terms, the cash increase this 
delivers in Newport will be smaller against other Local Authorities as our starting point is lower in 
the first place.  

 

Page 18



29.  Based on a 5% (maximum before risking ‘capping’ by WG) Council Tax, the table overleaf 
compared the available and required budget funding which Cabinet considered at its meeting on 
15th February 2016. 

 
 
 

The table below shows the available and required budget 
funding with a 5% increase in Council Tax. In setting 
Council Tax, the Council needs to be aware of the need to 
set a balanced budget.   

5% Increase 

Council Tax at Band D at 5% £984.92 

  

Budget requirement £000 

Base Budget 2015/16 261,370 

Inflation & Re-pricing adjustments 1,887 

BASE BUDGET 2016/17 (before investments/savings) 263,257 

  

Budget investments – (£10,449k shown in list of pressures 
plus increase of £732k required in Council Tax Benefit 
based on 5% Council Tax increase) 

11,181 

Budget savings (£8,647k shown in list of savings plus 
£1,900k ‘technical saving) 

10,547 

DRAFT BASE BUDGET 2016/17 263,891 

  

Funding available  

Draft  WG Settlement 209,142 

Current  Council Tax at new tax base  52,666 

Increased Council Tax @ 5%  2,633 

Total 264,441 

Balance available ‘in hand’ +550k 

 
30. In recommending a final budget to Council, the Cabinet agreed the following  

 

 Reduce Council Tax increase to 3.90% 

 Invest in business support and advice  

 Creation of an Energy Officer post 
 

31. The final budgets, as detailed in Appendix 1, incorporate the above recommendations. In finalising 
the final budgets from which were consulted on, Cabinet were aware of the key messages / 
concerns / support coming out of the Consultation. 

 
32. The Cabinet was also mindful of the need to balance the interests of service users with tax payers 

given the current economic climate and in addition, noted that the Council’s element of the Council 
Tax, even with the increase recommended, would still be the second lowest in Wales, below other 
Welsh cities and well below the average for Wales.    

 
 
Community / Police precepts and Council Tax calculation 
 
33. The Council Tax calculation includes precept figures from the Police and Crime Commissioner for 

Gwent and Community Councils within the city as well as the City Council’s own budget and these 
are shown in Appendix 4. The resulting Council Tax Resolution is set out in Appendix 5. These are 
based on the budget proposals agreed by Cabinet on 15th February 2016.  

 
 
 
 
 Page 19



Equalities Impact Assessments 
 
34. In delivering its services the Council has to be mindful of its duties to discharge its statutory 

obligations for Equal Pay, Disability Discrimination Act (DDA) and other equalities legislation 
including The Race Relations (Amendment) Act 2000 and the Equality Act 2006. 

 
35. The Council carries out an impact assessment to identify equalities issues across the breadth of 

the budget as part of the MTFP and annual budget setting process to inform spending decisions. 
As part of the budget process, equalities implications are considered for all budget proposals and 
an EIA is carried out by the relevant service manager, supported by the Council’s Policy team.  

 
36. In finalising its budget proposals, Cabinet took account of the equalities impact assessments 

carried out, which was reported to them in their meeting on 15th February 2016.  
 
 

THE COUNCIL’S CAPITAL BUDGET   
 
37. The Council’s capital resources come from four main sources: 

(i) Supported borrowing allocation from Welsh Government 
(ii) Unsupported or “Prudential” borrowing 
(iii) Capital receipts from the sale of Council owned assets 
(iv) WG General Capital Grant / other external grants and contributions 

 
 

38. In reality, there is little difference between (i) and (ii) as they are both ‘borrowing’ and the Council is 
required to identify a revenue budget to fund the financing costs that result from this type of capital 
expenditure (i.e. capital principle repayment – MRP, and interest charges). 

 
39. In February 2014 a four-year capital programme was approved as part of the budget setting 

process, for the years 2014/15 to 2017/18.  Over the course of 2014/15 and 2015/16, the 
programme evolved to reflect the requirements and priorities across the Council.  New schemes 
were approved and added to the budget, as well as existing schemes being re-phased between 
financial years to reflect changes in deliverability. 

 
40. The remaining two years of the capital programme is detailed in Appendix 6. The 2016/17 budget 

includes slippage that has occurred against schemes in the 2015/16 programme, based on 
forecast outturn as at the end of month 8. This is subject to change, as it is only when the final 
outturn position is confirmed at the end of March (for reporting in June) that the final slippage 
figures can be incorporated into the 2016/17 (and subsequent years’) programme. As noted above, 
the programme has been recently reviewed extensively and whilst a difference will exist, it should 
be relatively small compared to previous years. 

 
41. The current programme will also be subject to change over the remaining two years as new 

priorities emerge and successful capital bids for new schemes are added to the budget. The next 
capital programme commencing in 2018/19 will start being considered in due course. 

 
Key schemes on-going in the current Programme 
 
42. The remaining two years of the programme (detailed in Appendix 6) includes the following key 

schemes: 

 Budgets of £15.7m relating to Welsh Medium Secondary School provision and £3.9m for 
Duffryn High School refurbishment remain within the Capital Programme.  Following the 
recent decision at Planning Committee in February, the Authority is reviewing its options in 
relation to these projects.  The Capital Programme will need to be updated once the 
alternative proposals have been agreed.  

 21st Century Schools – whilst some of the strands of the Band A £15m programme have 
been completed (approximately £7.2m spent to date), work continues across the remaining 
projects with a remaining budget of £7.8m.  The overall programme is 50:50 funded by WG 
grant and NCC capital receipts. Page 20



 Vibrant and Viable Places year 3 grant allocation of £4.365m, following on from the 2014/15 
allocation of £5.822m and 2015/16 allocation of £4.111m. Underspends within each year of 
this grant cannot be carried forward into subsequent years unless re-profiling is agreed in 
advance with WG. 

 The Fleet Replacement Programme continues, with £3.5m budget available for the remaining 
two year programme to 2017/18.  Of the original budget, approximately £2.75m has been re-
profiled into the future four-year programme commencing 2018/19. 

 Annual allocations for Disabled Facility and Safety at Home Grants (£1.436m), Asset 
Maintenance (£1.5m), and Highways Capitalised Maintenance (£500k). 

 Amounts set aside of £3m in 2016/17 and £2.2m in 2017/18 to fund future Change/Efficiency 
Programme schemes. 

 
43. The overall Capital Programme including the above schemes totals £39.8m in 2016/17 and £18.2m 

in 2017/18.  These are funded from various sources, including Capital Grant from WG, borrowing, 
capital receipts, Section 106 and other contributions, revenue contributions and other external 
grants.  This is summarised in the table in paragraph 45 below. In addition to the schemes already 
in the capital programme, consideration will need to be made in the near future of capital project 
implications of the recent developments regarding the Cardiff City Region City Deal, once 
commitments and approvals are confirmed. The financial commitments here are likely to be some 
years away at this time.  

 
44. An amount of £5.2m remains reserved for the Change and Efficiency Programme, with individual 

schemes yet to be determined. This amount is a reduced amount compared to the original 
programme due to no requirement to spend, as highlighted in the business cases supporting the 
saving proposals. It remains flexible and will continue to be reviewed on an on-going basis. 

 
45. The table below shows the current approved four-year programme compared to the proposed 

remaining two-year programme based on estimated 2015/16 outturn.  
 

  2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 Total 
   £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's 
  Outturn      

Current Approved Programme 
as at January 2016 27,197 26,146 39,036 18,198 110,577 

 Remaining Two-Year 
Programme to be approved 
February 2016 27,197 25,016* 39,763 18,198 110,174 

*forecast 
outturn 

Change 0 -1,130 727 0 -403 
             
 Change Funded by:           
 General Capital Grant 0 0 0 0 0 
 Supported Borrowing 0 0 0 0 0 
 Unsupported/ Prudential 

Borrowing 0 -729 647 0 -82 
 Capital Receipts 0 0 0 0 0 
 Other External Grants 0 -337 21 0 -316 
 Revenue Contributions 0 -4 0 0 -4 
 S106 & Other Contributions 0 -60 59 0 -1 
 Total 0 -1,130 727 0 -403 
  

46. The provisional capital settlement (made up of a general cash grant of £2.479m and Supported 
Borrowing funding of £4.073m) for 2016/17 from Welsh Government is a small improvement on the 
allocations previously assumed based on 2015/16 figures.  Due to uncertainty around spending 
plans from Central Government, WG no longer provide indicative settlement figures for the medium Page 21



term, so to be prudent for the purposes of MTFP forecasting the estimates for 2017/18 remain 
unchanged. 

 
47. External grant funding continues to be an important source of funding for specific capital schemes, 

with the remaining two-year programme being 27% grant funded. The organisation will continue to 
seek opportunities to secure external funding to finance both existing schemes and new priorities 
that may emerge. 

 
48. As previously agreed by Cabinet, the majority of capital receipts funding is earmarked for use on 

the 21st Century Schools programme (£7.5m for ‘Band A’ and any additional capital receipts 
received up to £6m for Welsh Medium Secondary subject to use of other capital reserves), as 
match funding against WG grant. The useable capital receipts balance at 31st March 2016 is 
estimated to be circa £6.5m, with a further £3.5m forecast to be received by the end of 2017/18. 
This forecast is clearly uncertain at the moment and will depend on the property market over the 
coming years, so a conservative estimate has been used to inform the funding of the remaining 
two-year programme in relation to 21st Century Schools. 

 
49. While the Council is continuing its strategy of minimising its actual long term borrowing and funding 

as much of the capital programme via ready ‘cash’ sources (grants, capital receipts, contributions), 
it is recognised that in certain cases this may not be possible due to limited availability of cash 
resources.  Funding capital expenditure via borrowing in a given year results in revenue cost 
implication beginning in the subsequent financial year. The remaining two-year programme 
assumes that undertaking new borrowing is unavoidable, but it should be noted that this borrowing 
requirement will reduce if forecasts of capital receipts are achieved/ exceeded and not used to fund 
further new schemes. 

 
50. The table below shows the capital financing revenue budget required to fund the remaining two-

year capital programme. 
 

 2016/17 
£000’s 

2017/18 
£000’s 

2018/19 
£000’s 

TOTAL 
£000’s 

Capital Financing Budget Required 19,958 20,408 20,693 61,059 

 
 

TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY & PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS 2016/17 
 
51. The Council is involved in two types of treasury activity: 
 

 Borrowing long-term for capital purposes and short term for temporary cash flow 

 Investment of surplus cash 
 
52. These activities are controlled primarily via the Council’s Treasury Management Strategy and 

various measures and limits set via its Prudential Indicators to regulate/control the implementation 
of that strategy. 

 
53. CIPFA requires local authorities to determine their Treasury Management Strategy Statement 

(TMSS) and Prudential Indicators (PIs) on an annual basis. This requires approval by full Council 
following a recommendation from the Cabinet. The TMSS also includes the Annual Investment 
Strategy (AIS) that is a requirement of the Welsh Government’s (WG’s) Investment Guidance. 

 
54. Our detailed Treasury strategies for 2016/17 are included at Appendix 7. In addition, planned 

strategies to 2019/20 are also included, in line with the Council’s 5 year Medium Term Plan.  Key 
points of interest are summarised below. 

 
Borrowing Strategy 
 
55. The Council has significant long term borrowing requirements but in recent years, the strategy has 

been to fund its capital expenditure from reducing investments rather than undertaking more 
expensive new borrowing i.e. using ‘surplus cash’, whenever possible. This is because the rates Page 22



achievable on the Council’s investments are lower than the rates that would be payable on long-
term borrowing and therefore this strategy is more cost effective. 

 
56. In terms of the revenue budget, the Council must ensure it sets aside sums to repay capital 

expenditure funded from borrowing (irrespective of whether the borrowing itself is undertaken 
externally or through dis-investing).  This is done via the ‘Minimum Revenue Provision’ (MRP). In 
addition, a budget is also needed to fund actual interest payable on loans taken out, which are 
based on predictions of actual external borrowing. Both are discrete budget lines in the Council’s 
overall revenue budget. 

 
57. Local Authorities measure their underlying need for long-term borrowing through their ‘Capital 

Financing Requirement’ (CFR). This takes into account the amount of capital expenditure that 
needs to be funded through borrowing, (as opposed to external funding - from cash grants, capital 
receipts or S106 contributions for example) irrespective of whether the borrowing itself is 
undertaken externally or through dis-investing.   

 
58. In addition to normal planned capital expenditure, in December 2013 the Council approved a loan 

of up to £89.1million to Queensberry Real Estates (Newport) Ltd (QRE) to fund the building of the 
Friars Walk Development.  The Council’s own borrowings to make the onward loan are  kept 
separate from the Council’s other borrowing requirements as these loans are relatively short term 
given the loan is anticipated to be paid off in full via a capital receipt by November 2016, when the 
Council’s own borrowings for this will then be redeemed as soon as is possible.  On this basis, the 
Council will not be required to make MRP charges to the revenue budget in relation to the Friars 
Walk Development loan as the borrowing will be paid off in full at the end of the scheme via the 
repayment of the loan by QRE (Newport) Ltd.  Loans in relation to the Friars Walk development 
have been taken at various stages throughout the scheme build; therefore have variable dates 
when the loans are redeemable.  £40 million of loans are redeemable in July 2017, with the 
balance being taken over shorter terms, currently up to the end of April 2016.  This would mean if 
the loan by QRE (Newport) Ltd is repaid before July 2017 the Council will have surplus funds to 
invest, unless we are able to redeem early at nil or minimal cost.  

 
59. The table below shows the estimated Capital Financing Requirement/ New Net Borrowing 

Requirement position for Newport City Council for 2015/16 to 2018/19: 
 
Table 1: Newport City Council – CFR 

  

31.3.15 31.3.16 31.3.17 31.3.18 31.3.19 

Actual Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate 

£m £m £m £m £m 

CFR 321.1 360.2 280.6 283.7 283.5 

Less: Other long-term liabilities * -51.6 -49.3 -47.4 -45.5 -43.8 

Borrowing CFR 269.5 310.9 233.2 238.2 239.7 

Less: External borrowing ** -190.3 -235.8 -246.6 -205.6 -204.5 

Internal (over) borrowing 79.2 75.1 -13.4 32.6 35.2 

Less: Usable reserves -89.8 -83 -78 -74.2 -73.6 

Less: Working capital 8 8 8 8 8 

Investments / (New Borrowing) 2.6 -0.1 83.4 33.6 30.4 

*finance leases and PFI liabilities that form part of the Authority’s debt 
** shows only loans to which the Authority is committed and excludes optional refinancing 

 
60. As the table shows, the inherent ‘need to borrow’ as shown by the CFR is predicted to be £280.6 

million in 2016/17.  The significant reduction in the CFR between 2015/16 and 2016/17 is due to 
the anticipated repayment of the loan in relation to the Friars Walk development.     
    

 
61. Given current borrowing levels and repayment of the QRE (Newport) loan, no additional long term 

borrowing is likely to be required during 2016/17.  However, the Authority will be required to be Page 23



flexible to borrow up to the Authorised Limit, as there will be uncertainty to the exact timing of 
repayment of the outstanding loan.  

 
62. The Authority will adopt a flexible approach to any borrowing necessary in consultation with its 

treasury management advisers, Arlingclose Ltd. The following issues will be considered prior to 
undertaking any external borrowing: 

 

 Affordability 

 Maturity profile of existing debt 

 Interest rate and refinancing risk 

 Borrowing source 
 
Investment Strategy 
 
63. The Authority holds minimal invested funds, representing income received in advance of 

expenditure plus balances and reserves held.  In the past 12 months, the Authority’s investment 
balance has ranged between £0m and £25 million at any one point. In 2016/17, the investment 
balances could increase significantly dependent on the timing of the repayment of loans in relation 
to Queensberry, where a substantial receipt may be achieved in advance of borrowing required to 
be repaid. 

64. Objectives: Both the CIPFA Code and the WG Guidance require the Authority to invest its funds 

prudently, and to have regard to the security and liquidity of its investments before seeking the 

highest rate of return, or yield.  The Authority’s objective when investing money is to strike an 

appropriate balance between risk and return, minimising the risk of incurring losses.   

65. Given the increasing risk and continued low returns from short-term unsecured bank investments, 
the Authority will continue to invest in relatively secure and/or higher yielding investment classes 
during 2016/17.  This is especially the case for any surplus funds available for investment following 
the repayment of the Queensberry loan, before it is used to repay its own loans for this purpose.   

 
66. Approved Counterparties: Whilst investment funds remain available and based on the treasury 

management advice from Arlingclose; the Authority may invest its surplus funds with any of the 

counterparty types in table 2 below, subject to the cash limits (per counterparty) and the time limits 

shown: 

Table 2: Approved Investment Counterparties and Limits 

Credit 
Rating 

Banks 
Unsecured 

Banks 
Secured 

Government Corporates 
Registered 
Providers 

UK 
Govt 

Not applicable Not applicable 
£ Unlimited 

Not applicable Not applicable 
50 years 

AAA 
£5m £10m £10m £5m £5m 

2 years 2 years 2 years 2 years 2 years 

AA+ 
£5m £10m £10m £5m £5m 

2 years 2 years 2 years 2 years 2 years 

AA 
£5m £10m £10m £5m £5m 

2 years 2 years 2 years 2 years 2 years 

AA- 
£5m £10m £10m £5m £5m 

2 years 2 years 2 years 2 years 2 years 

A+ 
£5m £10m £5m £5m £5m 

2 years 2 years 2 years 2 years 2 years 

A £5m £10m £5m £5m £5m Page 24



13 months 2 years 2 years 2 years 2 years 

A- 
£5m £10m £5m £5m £5m 

 6 months 13 months 2 years 13 months 2 years 

BBB+ 
£2.5m £5m £2.5m £2.5m £2.5m 

100 days 6 months 2 years  6 months 2 years 

BBB 
£2.5m £5.0m 

Not applicable Not applicable Not applicable 
overnight 100 days 

None 
£1m    

Not applicable 
£10m 

Not applicable Not applicable 
6 months 25 years 

Pooled 
funds 

Not applicable 

 
67. Investment decisions are made by reference to the lowest published long-term credit rating from 

Fitch, Moody’s or Standard & Poor’s.  Where available, the credit rating relevant to the specific 
investment or class of investment is used, otherwise the counterparty credit rating is used. Whilst 
the credit ratings score drives the approved listing, the day-to-day operational counterparties are 
generally limited to named counterparty listing as documented in Appendix 7.  However, where it is 
prudent to do so the Authority may also use other approved investments based on the approved 
credit ratings as documented in the table above.        
       

68. A more detailed explanation of the different approved counterparty types are included in Appendix 
7 but for the sake of clarity, the Council’s investment strategy will, as per the Welsh Governments 
Investment Guidance, give priority to security and liquidity and will aim to achieve a yield 
commensurate with these principles. Due to the expected increase in levels of surplus funds during 
2016/17, the total amount invested in any individual counterparty has been increased to £10m, and 
the time limit increased from 6 moths to 2 years.  This is in line with the limits provided by our 
treasury advisers.   

 
Prudential Indicators 
 
69. The Council must establish certain ‘checks’ required by CIPFA to ensure that its Treasury 

Management Strategy is operating effectively. These are known as Prudential Indicators, and they 
will be reported to the Council on a 6 monthly basis. 

 
70. Examples of our key indicators are noted below; again more detail is supplied at Appendix 7 
 
Net Borrowing/Capital Financing Requirement 
71. The Council’s net borrowing should not exceed its Capital Financing Requirements as outlined 

earlier. This ensures that borrowing is only used to finance capital over the long term. The Council 
does not note any difficulty in meeting this requirement. 

 
Financing Costs to Net Revenue Stream 
72. This ratio shows how much of the Council’s total revenue budget is used for capital financing costs, 

as a percentage. The ratio for 2016/17 is 8.8%.  
 

Risks 
 

Risk Impact  of 
Risk if it 
occurs* 
(H/M/L) 

Probability 
of risk 
occurring 
(H/M/L) 

What is the Council doing or 
what has it done to avoid the 
risk or reduce its effect 

Who is 
responsible for 
dealing with the 
risk? 

     

Budget 
savings not 
delivered 

H L (i) robust budget monitoring 
(ii) service planning 
(iii) retention of  reserves and 
budget contingency  

Head of 
Finance 
Heads of 
Service  Page 25



Budget 
savings not 
delivered on 
time leading to 
in year 
overspending 

H M (i) robust budget monitoring 
(ii) retention of reserves and 
budget contingency 

Directors / 
Heads of 
Service 
Head of 
Finance 
 

Unforeseen 
Pressures 

H L (i) retention of reserves and 
budget contingency 
(ii) robust budget review  

Head of 
Finance 
Directors / 
Heads of 
Service 

* Taking account of proposed mitigation measures 
 
Links to Council Policies and Priorities 
In drawing up budget proposals, due regard has been given to key Council policies and priorities and 
Cabinet, in setting the detailed budget and spending plans, considered these in detail in their February 
meeting. Details are included in the February 2016 budget paper which conform that the new Council 
Improvement Plan objectives are funded appropriately to meet the targets proposed. 
 
Options Available 
The Council must agree a recommended Council Tax and 2016/17 and resulting overall revenue budget 
and capital budget, plus the Council’s Treasury and Investment strategies and prudential indicators.  
 
Preferred Option and Why 
Council has various options open to them on the level of Council Tax and therefore the overall total 
revenue budget for the Council.  
 

Comments of Chief Financial Officer 
The financial implications stemming from this report are contained within the body of the report 
 
The Council is required to set Council Tax by 11th March and whilst the final revenue support grant is not 
confirmed until 2nd March; after this meeting; the risk of this changing from current draft figures are very 
small and this risk is mitigated by the Council’s revenue contingency budget, as well as the general 
reserve. The Council can set Council Tax before notification of its final grant settlement. 
 
Indeed, if a decision on Council Tax is delayed, then it could well have a significant adverse impact on 
the Councils cash-flow’s as billing will be delayed. Therefore, it is recommended that the Council decides 
on the level of Council Tax at this meeting.    
 

Comments of Monitoring Officer 
The Revenue Budget Report has been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Local 
Government Act 2003 and the Local Government Finance Act 1992.  In accordance with Section 25 of 
the 2003 Act, the Council must have regard to the advice of the Head of Finance, as the Chief Finance 
Officer, regarding the robustness of the budget estimates and the adequacy of the financial reserves.  
This advice must be taken into account when considering the proposals in the Report and the 
recommendations from the Cabinet regarding the budget and the Council tax rate. In accordance with 
the Functions and Responsibility Regulations, agreeing the budget and setting the Council Tax rate 
under the 1992 Act is a matter for full Council.  In accordance with Section 30 of the 1992 Act, the 
Council is required to set the Council tax for the next financial year on or before 11th March.  However, 
the Council is only empowered to set the budget framework and the Council tax rate.  Expenditure within 
the budget framework and the implementation of any requisite savings or re-provision of services are 
executive decisions for the Cabinet and Cabinet Members.  Therefore, Cabinet is able to approve the 4 
year programme as set out in the MTFP, subject to future budget decisions. 

 
Staffing Implications: Comments of Head of People and Business Change 
The change and efficiency programme outlined in the report will have a direct impact on employees 
across the Council, including, potentially, schools.  Changes to structures and staffing will be required to 
make the necessary savings. This programme will be supported through Human Resources, ensuring Page 26



that the Council’s services are financially sustainable into the future and continue to deliver high quality 
to Newport’s citizens.  The change programme will need to incorporate meaningful consultation with 
trade unions and affected employees and this has already commenced. 

 
The Council will aim to minimise the impact of the budget proposals on employees across our services, 
and a number of actions are currently being undertaken to assist in this e.g. restrictions on recruitment, 
reduction in use of agency staffing and overtime.  However, given the scale of the challenges facing the 
Council over the next 5 years, it has to be recognised that the Council cannot rule out having to make 
redundancies.  All employees directly affected will be supported by the provisions of the Council’s Job 
Security Policy, which aims to minimise compulsory redundancies and retain employees in our 
employment wherever possible. 
 

Comments of Cabinet Member 
The Chair of Cabinet, as the Lead Member for strategic resources planning and management confirms 
he has seen and approved this report. 
 

Local issues 
The budget proposals as shown affect the city as a whole although some specific proposals may affect 
certain localities more than others  
 

Scrutiny Committees 
All detailed proposals were reviewed by all Scrutiny Committees in their January 2016 meetings, as part 
of the wider budget proposals consultation undertaken and considered by Cabinet. 
 

Equalities Impact Assessment 
In finalising its budget proposals, Cabinet took account of the equalities impact assessments carried out, 
which was reported to them in their meeting on 15th February, 2016.  
 

Children and Families (Wales) Measure 
Wide consultation on the budget has been undertaken, as outlined in paragraph 4 of the report  

 
Consultation  
Wide consultation on the budget has been undertaken, as outlined in paragraph 4 of the report 
 
 

Background Papers 
Cabinet report on budget February 15th, 2016. 
 
Appendices 
Appendix 1 Service Area Budgets 
Appendix 2 Budget Investments 
Appendix 3 Budget Savings 
Appendix 4      Precepts / Council Tax  
Appendix 5      Resolution to Set Council Tax Levels  
Appendix 6      Capital programme/budget 2016/17 and 2017/18 
Appendix 7      Treasury Management Strategy and Prudential Indicators 
Appendix 8      MTFP 
Appendix 9 Projected 2016/17 Financial Resilience, Earmarked Reserves & Summary of ‘Invest to 

Save’ spend and Forecast 
 
 
 
Dated: 
 
  

Page 27



Appendix 1 – Service Area Budgets 
 

Summary Revenue Budget 

2016-17 2015/16 

Current 

Budget

2016/17 

Base 

Budget

£'000 £'000

PEOPLE

Children& Young People 20,089 21,084

Adult & Community Services 38,548 39,676

Education 13,721 13,869

Schools 86,784 89,835
159,142 164,464

PLACE

Regeneration, Investment & Housing 9,431 9,100

Streetscene & City Services 17,519 17,092

26,950 26,192

CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Directorate 578 552

Finance 2,709 2,678

People & Business Change 6,411 6,371

Law & Regeneration 6,493 6,474

16,191 16,075

CAPITAL FINANCING COSTS & INTEREST

Capital Financing Costs MRP 10,813 10,813

Interest Payable 10,786 9,145

Interest Receivable (778) (37)

PFI Grants 8,139 8,261

28,960 28,182

SUB TOTAL - SERVICE/CAPITAL FINANCING 231,243 234,913

CONTINGENCY PROVISIONS

General Contingency 1,473 1,473

Centralised Insurance Fund 570 570

Non Departmental Costs 5 5

Other Income & Expenditure 3,117 3,761

5,165 5,809

LEVIES / OTHER

Discontinued Operations - pensions 1,772 1,790

Discontinued Operations - Ex Gratia Payments 2 2

Levies - Drainage Board, Fire service etc 8,310 8,210

Non distributed grants (1,476) -

CTAX Benefit Rebates 11,436 11,735

Charity Rate Relief 76 37

20,120 21,774

TRANSFERS TO/FROM RESERVES

Base budget - Planned Transfers to/(from) Reserves 4,842 1,442

4,842 1,442

TOTAL 261,370 263,938

Funded by

WAG funding (RSG & NNDR) (209,254) (209,142)

Council Tax (52,116) (54,720)

Council Tax Surplus (76)

TOTAL - -Page 28



Appendix 2 – Budget Investments 
 

   
16/17 17/18 18/19 19/20 

Unique 
ID 

Service  
Group 

Description £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

PEOPLE       

1 Education 

Maes Ebbw Special School - capacity building through Capital 
investment. Revenue consequences of Capital Bid being presented to 
cater for additional staffing with regard to the creation of additional 
Capacity proposed to be created at the school, and the ability to take 
further additional pupils over above current levels. The current position 
within the school is it has capacity for 100 pupils, but at the present time 
has 124 pupils on site. The capital bid, which is to be submitted for 6 
additional classrooms at £2.3m will give capacity at 148, allowing the 
school to safely deliver education to those currently on site, and allow 
additional known demand to be catered on site. The revenue 
consequences of the development is additional staffing of 6 Teachers and 
12 Teaching assistants at total cost of £550k, of which circa £100k can be 
found from within current ISB resources when pupils move, and a further 
£180k from anticipated savings falling out of a schools reorganisation 
programme to be finalised during the current MTFP process.  Therefore 
the revenue burden sits at £270k over two years.  

230 40     

2 
Social 

Services-
Adults 

Transitions - Children due to turn 18 that are in the children with 
disabilities team (CDT) and are therefore likely to go into the adult social 
care system.  This is worked out based on the full year cost of 4 children 
at the current package cost within Children's services.  Not all LAC's who 
turn 18 would apply here, only those in the CDT. 

238 57 50   

3 
Social 

Services - 
Children's 

Kinship - There have been increases of children being granted Special 
Guardianship Orders of around 25% per year, for the last couple of years.  
Based on reviewing these trends and current numbers, these pressures 
are needed until the situation plateaus in the years to come. 

266 206     

4 
Social 

Services - 
Children's 

Out of Area Residential Placements - Based on an age profile showing 
children turning 18 and a trend analysis of the likely number of new cases, 
gives rise to this budgetary pressure.  The trend shows changes each 
year, with a total of £20k pressure over the 4 years. 

168 23 -335 164 

P
age 29



   
16/17 17/18 18/19 19/20 

Unique 
ID 

Service  
Group 

Description £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

5 
Social 

Services - 
Children's 

Gwent Safeguarding Children's & Adults Board - Grant funded until 
15/16, this funding has now stopped, meaning LA's have to fund the cost 
of this regional service being provided. 

63       

6 
Social 

Services - 
Children's 

Out of Area Residential (unachieved project) - Peopletoo in partnership 
with the service, reviewed every contract with providers for Out of Area 
Residential placements, with a view to making savings.  It has been 
reported through the relevant project groups that the savings are not 
achievable for 15/16 and 16/17.  

100       

7 
Social 

Services - 
Children's 

Youth Offending Service - In response to inspection report, additional 
resource is needed to implement recommendations and a reduction in the 
YJB grant in 15/16 has also increased this pressure. 

87       

PLACE       

8 
Streetscene & 
City Services 

Project Team - Many of the posts within the projects team were capital 
dependent and as the major schemes reduced the level of income 
significantly reduced.  A strategic decision was taken to restructure the 
team resulting in 3 voluntary redundancies.  The historical income 
pressure has been compounded by the restructure due to lost opportunity/ 
capacity within the team to generate income.  Savings target has been 
included within the Streetscene transformation project for delivery. 

216       

9 
Streetscene & 
City Services 

Cemeteries - Shortfall against income targets.  Savings target has been 
included within the Streetscene transformation project for delivery. 

50       

P
age 30



   
16/17 17/18 18/19 19/20 

Unique 
ID 

Service  
Group 

Description £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

10 
Streetscene & 
City Services 

Green Waste winter collections - As part of the 15/16 MTFP £375k was 
accepted as a supported pressure to maintain the recycling targets that 
are imposed upon the Authority by Welsh Government.  The £375k 
already took into account the fact that the green waste collections would 
cease in winter months.  As the £140k was included as an additional 
saving this is not achievable on the basis that it was already accounted 
for.  Savings target has been included within the Streetscene 
transformation project for delivery. 

140       

11 
Streetscene & 
City Services 

City Centre Fountains - On-going cleaning and maintenance costs 
associated with the switching on of the fountains.  The level of vandalism 
may well increase this budget pressure. 

30       

12 
Regeneration, 
Investment & 

Housing 

Reduction in Community Learning Grant (WG) & Funding from Coleg 
Gwent - Community learning income target of £1.35m has until now 
contributed a surplus of £122k.  The 15/16 grant reduced by £393k and as 
a result the service is having to cut back on activity.  Due to such 
significant funding reductions it is no longer possible to generate this 
surplus. 

122       

NON-SERVICE      

13 Non-Service 
National Minimum Wage - Subject to significant uncertainty but 
preliminary work confirms that increase in cost to our contractors will be 
very substantial.  Further work on-going to be complete by mid-December. 

1,207 741 695 664 

 
14 

Non-Service 
Welsh Language Standard - Minimum budget to adhere to the new 
welsh language standards from April 16 

280       

15 Non-Service 
The employer's pension contribution rates for deficit recovery is increasing 
to reflect actuarial valuations 

170 177     

16 Non-Service 
Grants transferred into settlement – In relation to Outcome Agreement 
Grant that has been transferred into the Aggregate External Financing 
grant from Welsh Government 

1,531    

P
age 31



   
16/17 17/18 18/19 19/20 

Unique 
ID 

Service  
Group 

Description £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

29 
Social 

Services 
To fund current existing budget pressures within Social Services in relation 
to Community Care 

303       

30 
Streetscene & 
City Services 

City Centre parking - short term funding to tackle city centre parking 
problems via investment in on-going enforcement via Gwent Police whilst 
longer term solution is investigated and implemented.   

34       

31 
Streetscene & 
City Services 

Maintenance - Additional budgets to fund maintenance of areas such as 
infrastructure/city centre/highways 

350       

32 
Streetscene & 
City Services 

Waste Grant - to mitigate the impact of the anticipated reduction in the 
Waste Grant 

110       

33 
Regeneration, 
Investment & 

Housing 

Rough Sleeping - to secure existing accommodation or to find alternative 
housing provision within the city.  The financial support will also be utilised 
to assist individuals who are either sleeping rough or who are at risk of 
rough sleeping.   

25       

34 
Regeneration, 
Investment & 

Housing 

Energy Officer – To have a focussed approach to energy e.g. 
consumption, purchase, generation and opportunity for new business and 
employment 

44    

35 
Regeneration, 
Investment & 

Housing 

Fund for Businesses in Newport – build on growth by assisting new 
start-up businesses and encourage more local SME growth by introducing 
a new “small business growth fund”.  

60    

    NEW INVESTMENT TOTAL 5,824 1,244 410 828 

 

  

P
age 32



Agreed/Revised Investments 

   
16/17 17/18 18/19 19/20 

Unique 
ID 

Service  
Group 

Description £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

PEOPLE      

18 Education 

3 and 4 Year Olds - The expansion of the Welsh Government Flying Start 
initiative, coupled with the general increase in population and the Local 
Authorities development of additional Nursery provision means that from 
2017/2018 additional funding is required to meet additional capacity 
needs.  

 
40 40   

19 Education 

Secondary School Demographics - net increase for 2016/2017 financial 
year and beyond. Snapshot taken of known position at 6th March 2015. 
The figures show increases of 28, 81, 121, and 335 for 2016/2017 to 
2019/2020 respectively into the system. For 16/17 & 17/18 proposal is to 
limit schools to cash limit of 15/16 budget, therefore no pressures included 
for these years. 

520  266 786 

20 Education 

Primary School Demographics - net increase between primary and 
nursery pupils for 2016/2017 financial year and beyond. Snapshot taken of 
known position at 6th March 2015. The figures show increases of 298, 
209, 258, and 367 for 2016/2017 to 2019/2020 respectively into the 
system. For 16/17 & 17/18 proposal is to limit schools to cash limit of 
15/16 budget, therefore no pressures included for these years. 

  462 650 

21 
Social 

Services 
Adults - Demographic Growth.  Funding based on current trends and 
demographic forecasts. 

121 137 157 169 

22 
Social 

Services - 
Children's 

New legislation/Regulation - Fostering 'When I'm Ready' - This is an 
amendment to a line in the last agreed MTFP, where some costs can now 
be estimated.  There are changes to legislation regarding support for 
foster children up to the age of 25. We are still awaiting final guidance on 
this but these calculations are based on foster carers receiving the WG 
minimum allowance for 16-18 year olds until the age of 25, assuming that 
all children as they turn 18 are included.  These can be children from 
Independent Fostering Agencies, Out of Area Residential Placements and 
in house looked after children. 

106 236 210 205 

P
age 33



   
16/17 17/18 18/19 19/20 

Unique 
ID 

Service  
Group 

Description £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

NON-SERVICE      

23 Non-Service 

Total Reward - The Council's proposed new pay and grading structure 
and allowances framework, utilises the £3,750k budgeted for this project 
by April 2015. As staff move through their pay scales in subsequent 3 
years, it will generate 'incremental' pay budget pressure. An additional 
estimated allowance for turnover has also been made. 

1,087 1,025 777   

24 Non-Service 
Increase in National Insurance rates following changes to regulations 
linked to 'contracted out' schemes such as the LGPS  

2,800       

25 Non-Service 

Auto enrolment in Pension scheme 
Newport's staging date will be somewhere between 1st April and 30th 
June 2013.  Staff earning over £8,105 will automatically be enrolled into a 
pension scheme for one month and will then have the ability to opt out of 
the scheme.  Assuming all classes of employee currently not in a pension 
scheme stayed enrolled the maximum employers contribution (LGPS 
existing scheme) will cost £1.618m per annum.  However it is assumed for 
budget purposes that only permanent staff will potentially stay in the 
scheme and that there will be minimal take up from Casual, Fixed Term, 
Seasonal, Sessional, and Temporary staff.   It is not possible to assess 
how many permanent staff will remain in the pension scheme but it is felt 
prudent to make budget provision for 50% of this potential cost which 
equates to £0.507m.  

95 110 
 

  

26 Non-Service 

Other pressures' - To Be Identified                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
as annual detailed budget work undertaken - there is normally 
miscellaneous budget pressures identified. This amount here provides an 
'allowance' for this - so that the overall budget gap in each year takes 
account of some amount for this. 

  400 400 400 

27 Non-Service 
SDR PFI Scheme                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Interest payable on SDR PFI reserve to maintain ability to fund future 
costs when annual PFI grant lower than costs.  

        

P
age 34



   
16/17 17/18 18/19 19/20 

Unique 
ID 

Service  
Group 

Description £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

28 Non-Service 
Capital programme MRP / Interest                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                            
Costs of capital programme MTFP/ interest, following a review of the 
programme in Sept/Oct 2014 and subsequent re-phasing of projects.  

    285   

    AGREED/REVISED INVESTMENT TOTAL 4,729 1,948 2,597 2,210 

       

  BUDGET INVESTMENT TOTAL 10,553 3,192 3,007 3,038 

 
 
  

P
age 35



Appendix 3 – Budget Savings 
 

Unique 
ID 

Service  
Group 

Proposal 
16/17 
£'000 

17/18 
£'000 

18/19 
£'000 

19/20 
£'000 

Staff 
Impact 
(FTE) 

PEOPLE        

SSA10 
Adult & 

Community 
Services 

Telecare - Review Telecare operation and charges by seeking the 
most effective and efficient way of providing this important and 
essential service for the citizens of Newport. 

0 78     1 

SSA11 
Adult & 

Community 
Services 

Modernisation of Transport Provision 0 104      0 

CFS01 

Children & 
Young 
People 

Services 

 
To close Brynglas bungalow children’s residential unit and sell 
excess capacity to neighbouring local authorities  
 

0 594     10 

CFS03 

Children & 
Young 
People 

Services 

Reduction in Social Worker posts 0 144 144    7 

CFS07 

Children & 
Young 
People 

Services 

 
Reduction in Voluntary Sector Contracts  
 

23 23     0 

PLACE        

STS01 
Street 
Scene 

 
Bus routes - Removal of financial support on evenings and 
Sundays  
 

0 69   0 

STS18 
Street 
Scene 

Street Cleansing - review and restructure of services - Revise 

street cleansing provision across the City including cleanliness based 
assessment.  Changes to working hours of operatives by introducing 
a four day working over a seven day week 

250    10 

P
age 36



Unique 
ID 

Service  
Group 

Proposal 
16/17 
£'000 

17/18 
£'000 

18/19 
£'000 

19/20 
£'000 

Staff 
Impact 
(FTE) 

STS20 
Street 
Scene 

Grounds Maintenance Service Review - Reduce the number of 
grass cuts throughout the City from 8 to 6 with the exception of 
visibility splays, schools contracts and leisure facilities 

136    2 

STS26 
Street 
Scene 

Waste - Review of charging for special collections - Review of 
charging for special collections - apply a new pricing mechanism to 
ensure the minimum charge covers the operating and disposal costs 
of the service. 

0 44   0 

 
RIH18 

 

 
RIH 

 

 
Restructure of the Council’s core-funded Youth Service 
 

100    4 

CORPORATE      

CSDI013 CS & DI 

Review of service delivery model and management saving - To 
review the service delivery model for IT and determine if partnership 
working would deliver a more resilient, cost effective and sustainable 
service. 

70    2 

LR01 
Law & 

Standards 

Members Neighbourhood Allowances - Cease the Members 
Neighbourhood Allowance fund for voluntary and community groups 
within wards. 

25       0 

PBC06 
People & 
Business 
Change 

Reduction in the overall budget allocated through grants to 

voluntary sector organisations - The re-commissioning of voluntary 

sector organisation provision  
0 63      0 

NON-SERVICE 

NON001 
Non-

Service 
Council Tax Rebate Scheme Budget Reduction  300    0  

NON002 
Non-

Service 
Invest to Save Reserve - Cease the annual revenue contribution to 
the Invest to Save Reserve 

950     0 

P
age 37



Unique 
ID 

Service  
Group 

Proposal 
16/17 
£'000 

17/18 
£'000 

18/19 
£'000 

19/20 
£'000 

Staff 
Impact 
(FTE) 

NON004 
Non-

Service 

Minimum Revenue Provision / Interest Budget Reduction - 
Following review of budgets a reduction of budgets across Capital 
and Interest Payable budgets is achievable 

900    0 

  
NEW BUDGET SAVINGS TOTAL 2,754 1,120 144 - 57.5 

 

  

P
age 38



New Budget Savings implemented under delegated authority 

Head of Service 

Unique 
ID 

Service  
Group 

Proposal 
16/17 
£'000 

17/18 
£'000 

18/19 
£'000 

19/20 
£'000 

Staff 
Impact 
(FTE) 

PEOPLE        

SSA04 
Adult & 

Community 
Services 

Review of Double Handling Cases - Review and reduce the number 
of calls to service users that require 2 care workers.  

300       0 

SSA07 
Adult & 

Community 
Services 

Day Services Budget Reduction - Reduce supplies and services 
budget. 

30       0 

SSA13 
Adult & 

Community 
Services 

Active Living - Continuation of the 2015/16 Project Work - 
Transforming care and assessment which to achieve efficiencies in 
adult social care by reducing the number and size of packages of 
care through filtering out inappropriate referrals at first point of contact 

120       0 

SSA15 
Adult & 

Community 
Services 

Frailty Budget - Additional contribution from the combined Gwent 
frailty budget 

157       0 

CFS04 

Children & 
Young 
People 

Services 

Budget Reductions – Various budget reduction proposals 180       1 

PLACE        

STS04 
Street 
Scene 

Staff restructure - approved phase 1 - Revised tier 3 and 4 
management structure within Streetscene and City Services. 

42    6 

STS06 
Street 
Scene 

Vehicle hire - reduction of external vehicle hire by pooling and 
scheduling existing fleet. 

25    0 

P
age 39



Unique 
ID 

Service  
Group 

Proposal 
16/17 
£'000 

17/18 
£'000 

18/19 
£'000 

19/20 
£'000 

Staff 
Impact 
(FTE) 

STS13 
Street 
Scene 

Waste Management Restructure - Revised management structure 
within waste operations. 

55    2 

STS22 
Street 
Scene 

Trade Waste - review of charges and increase number of 
contracts - To review the operation of trade waste service to 
increase capacity and market share of trade waste collections within 
Newport 

50 90   0 

STS27 
Street 
Scene 

Newport Live Efficiencies - Efficiency savings as per funding and 
management agreement 

  60 60 0 

STS28 
Street 
Scene 

Deletion of vacant posts: Senior Traffic, Transportation and 
Road Safety Officer (a 50% job share) and Civil Contingencies 
Assistant PE318 

28    0.9 

RIH1 RIH 

Planning Application Fee Income - Increase planning application 
fee income budget in light of application fee increase expected to be 
imposed by the Planning (Wales) Bill 2015.  This is expected to come 
into effect in October 2015 

71    0 

RIH02 RIH 

Management Actions – Planning Pre-Application Charges, 
Reduction in Pooled Admin Supplies and Services, Delete 0.4FTE of 
Technical Support Assistant post and deletion of vacant Planning 
Officer post and minor service reconfiguration. 

65    1.90 

RIH5 RIH 

Communities 4 Work- ESF funding has been secured to deliver the 
Communities for Work programme.  The staff delivering this service 
are currently core funded.  The proposal is to move these staff from 
current permanent contracts to grant funded, fixed term positions 

140    0 

P
age 40



Unique 
ID 

Service  
Group 

Proposal 
16/17 
£'000 

17/18 
£'000 

18/19 
£'000 

19/20 
£'000 

Staff 
Impact 
(FTE) 

RIH10 RIH 

Removal of bad debt provision against business loans - Removal 
bad debt provision against business loans.  The take up of loans has 
been very limited and those currently in receipt repaying as planned 
therefore removing the need for this provision in future 

15    0 

RIH11 RIH 
Restructure Business Support and Inward Investment Function  
- The proposal is to restructure the existing team to enable the 
Council to strengthen its role in Regeneration activity. 

31 0 0 0 1 

RIH12 RIH 
Reduction in 4th tier Managers of the Housing, Regeneration and 
Property Service  

42 0 0 0 1 

RIH14 RIH 
Management Re-structure of Library Service - Review the senior 
management structure within library services and reduce elements of 
the supplies budget. 

73    1 

CORPORATE      

CSDI001 CS & DI 
Supplies and Services - Reduction in supplies and services budget 
following the move to Information Station and relating channel shift 
activity 

13 
   

0 

CSDI003 CS & DI 
Information Technology – Desktop IT, extend PC/laptop refresh 
cycle - Reduce budget for annual desktop PC/ laptop refresh - 
increasing refresh cycle to 5 years 

40    0 

CSDI004 CS & DI 
Changes to encryption software resulting in reduced licence 
costs over a three year period  

15    0 

P
age 41



Unique 
ID 

Service  
Group 

Proposal 
16/17 
£'000 

17/18 
£'000 

18/19 
£'000 

19/20 
£'000 

Staff 
Impact 
(FTE) 

CSDI005 CS & DI 
Increase street naming and numbering income targets - Increase 
the income target for new developments for street naming and 
numbering in line with likely developments in the city. 

13    0 

CSDI006 CS & DI 
Remove budget held for PSN charges - Remove the budget 
currently held for  PSN (previously GCSx) as fees continue to be 
funded by Welsh Government 

4    0 

CSDI007 CS & DI 

Reduce costs of postage by 7% across the Council - Reduce 

postage budget by 7% (over a two year period) across the Council.  
This would be achieved through reductions in 1st class mail, 
maximising royal mail discounts and through the use of an automated 
mail service (hybrid mail solution) 

10 5   0 

CSDI008 CS & DI 
Information Management – reduced costs of document storage 
in Modern Records- Reduce revenue budget to release savings 
following the implementation of Modern Records 

8 3   0 

CSDI009 CS & DI 

Information Technology – PSBA (Public Sector Broadband 
provision) wide area network legacy Sites - Number of NCC staff 
in ABHB sites and have previously supplied our own Newport 
connections.  Proposed removal of these circuits and utilise ABHB 
connectivity  

18    0 

CSDI010 CS & DI 
Information Technology – Supplies and Services Savings 
(secure email) - Secure email product Egress costs reduce on an 
annual basis  

36 29   0 

CSDI011 CS & DI 

Information Technology – PSBA (Public Sector Broadband 
provision) wide area network profiled connection costs - PSBA 
(Public Sector Broadband Aggregation) circuits.  Greater Gwent 
Network project developed involving the provision of a new wide area 
network funded by Welsh Government  

 
61 12  0 

P
age 42



Unique 
ID 

Service  
Group 

Proposal 
16/17 
£'000 

17/18 
£'000 

18/19 
£'000 

19/20 
£'000 

Staff 
Impact 
(FTE) 

CSDI012 CS & DI 
Information Technology – change to room booking 
arrangements - To cancel the current room / resource / car parking 
booking system. 

4    0 

LR04 
Law & 

Standards 
Increased Land Charges fee income - To increase the fee income 

projections for local land charges searches fees  
25 25     0 

LR05 
Law & 

Standards 
Reduction of staff within Legal Services - Reduction of staff within 
the Legal section (including two vacant post) 

86 43     4 

LR09 
Law & 

Standards 

Deletion of Scrutiny Support Officer post - To delete the post of 
Scrutiny Support Officer (Grade 6) and reallocate the support work for 
the Scrutiny Officers within the Democratic Services team. 

30       1 

LR12 
Law & 

Standards 

Redesign of Kennel Services - Redesign the service at the kennels 
moving it towards more of a rehoming centre which drives income to 
eventually pay for its self. 

49 10     0 

PBC02 
People & 
Business 
Change 

Increase income generation target in Health and Safety Team 25       0 

PBC03 
People & 
Business 
Change 

Reduction in Occupational Health Provision (OHP) - Reduce the 
OHP by one day clinic per week (16 appointments per week, 800 
over one year). 

28       0 

PBC04 
People & 
Business 
Change 

Reduction in Organisational Development (OD) budget for 
training and management development  

19       0 

P
age 43



Unique 
ID 

Service  
Group 

Proposal 
16/17 
£'000 

17/18 
£'000 

18/19 
£'000 

19/20 
£'000 

Staff 
Impact 
(FTE) 

PBC05 
People & 
Business 
Change 

Partnership and Policy service reduction - The restructure of the 
team meaning the removal of 1 FTE 

32       1 

PBC07 
People & 
Business 
Change 

Cessation of Council’s flexi-time system; Wintime - To end the 

current contract for the Council’s flexi system in January 2016 at point 

that current version of system is decommissioned. 
16       0.5 

PBC08 
People & 
Business 
Change 

Strategic Human Resources (HR) savings proposal – reduction in 
staffing budget of the HR service 

73       2 

FIN001 Finance 
Reduce Accountancy Assistant Posts  - Reduction of 2 vacant 
Accountancy Assistants within the structure 

51       2 

FIN003 Finance 
Council Tax Collection: Increase the budgeted amount for 
collection within the base budget from the financial year 2016/17 

76       0 

NON006 
Non-

Service 

Reduce budget for the expected decrease in the Caldicot & Wentloog 
Drainage Board Levy charge.  This will not have an impact on service 
users. 

95    0 

  
DELEGATED HEAD OF SERVICE BUDGET SAVING TOTAL 2,190 266 72 60 25.3 

 

Cabinet Member 

Unique 
ID 

Service  
Group 

Proposal 
16/17 
£'000 

17/18 
£'000 

18/19 
£'000 

19/20 
£'000 

Staff 
Impact 
(FTE) 

PEOPLE       

SSA01 
Adult & 

Community 
Services 

Appraisal of internal supported living facilities - To reduce the 
capacity of the internal Supported Living Agency in line with the 
changing needs and best interest of tenants  

25 
  

  1 

P
age 44



Unique 
ID 

Service  
Group 

Proposal 
16/17 
£'000 

17/18 
£'000 

18/19 
£'000 

19/20 
£'000 

Staff 
Impact 
(FTE) 

SSA02 
Adult & 

Community 
Services 

Reassessments in Mental Health - remodel of services for people 
with mental health conditions - Continuation of current 
reassessment of packages 

200 
 

    0 

SSA03 
Adult & 

Community 
Services 

Promoting Independence – Learning Disability (LD) Service 
Development and Reviews  

0 531      0 

SSA06 
Adult & 

Community 
Services 

Review & Reconfigure Third Sector Contracts - To review 
contracts with third sector organisations to identify opportunities for 
improved delivery. 

288       1 

SSA12 
Adult & 

Community 
Services 

Rationalisation of Internal Mental Health Day Service Provision. 120 
 

    4 

SSA14 
Adult & 

Community 
Services 

Improving the efficiency of our Reablement and Homecare 
Service 

114 90     3 

PLACE        

STS09 
Street 
Scene 

Increased cardboard collection service to residents through 

Wastesavers - Provision of new weekly cardboard recycling to 

Newport residents through Wastesavers 
190    4 

STS11 
Street 
Scene 

 
Cemeteries - Review of grave digging services  
 

59    2 

STS12 
Street 
Scene 

Review of Park Ranger services - Review of parks ranger services 
to achieve operational efficiencies 

30    1 

STS15 
Street 
Scene 

Highways Operations - Multi-skilling of staff and plant and 
equipment review  
 

85    2 

STS19 
Street 
Scene 

Streetscene operations - Review supervisor staffing levels and 
operational bases  
 

70    2 

P
age 45



Unique 
ID 

Service  
Group 

Proposal 
16/17 
£'000 

17/18 
£'000 

18/19 
£'000 

19/20 
£'000 

Staff 
Impact 
(FTE) 

STS23 
Street 
Scene 

Waste - Review of special collection services -To achieve service 
efficiencies in the operation of the special collection service provided 
by Streetscene  

50    2 

STS29 
Street 
Scene 

Car parking tariffs review - Proposed revision of car parking order to 
facilitate increases to parking tariffs and pricing structure 

80    0 

STS30 
Street 
Scene 

 
Streetscene Processes Review - Investigate and implement new 
ways of working to achieve a modern and effective service, delivering 
savings and efficiencies while ensuring that service capacity is 
maximised for the benefit of the customer and the council. 
 

350    13 

RIH6 RIH 

Community Development Worker - Because of the creation of the 
new Community Regeneration department with a much larger 
workforce and resource budget, there is a clear expectation that 
reduction of one post can be made without impact to the overall 
service. 

27    1 

RIH7 RIH 
Community Regeneration - Youth Service operational restructure 
phase 1 and deletion of two youth worker posts (Voluntary 
Redundancy (VR) requests)  

127    4 

RIH19 RIH 
Rationalisation of Housing Solutions service to strengthen front-
line delivery – Review and restructure of the Housing Needs Service. 
 

20    TBC 

CORPORATE       

P
age 46



Unique 
ID 

Service  
Group 

Proposal 
16/17 
£'000 

17/18 
£'000 

18/19 
£'000 

19/20 
£'000 

Staff 
Impact 
(FTE) 

LR08 
Law & 

Standards 
Reduction in statutory enforcement work and staff within 
Environmental Health and Trading Standards  

110       3 

FIN002 Finance Reduction in Internal Audit staffing resource 31 26     2 

FIN004 Finance 

Re-structure of Income Collection Team- To combine the Local 
Taxation and Debtors teams so that management, day-to-day 
administration and processing work is generic across Council Tax, 
Non-Domestic Rates, Sundry Debt and Periodic Debt. 

39       2 

FIN005 Finance 
Reduction in Staff Numbers / Hours within Procurement and 
Central Payments  

20 27     2.4 

  
DELEGATED CABINET MEMBER BUDGET SAVINGS TOTAL 2,035 674 - - 50.4 

 

P
age 47



SAVINGS SUMMARY 

Savings Decision Type 
16/17 
£'000 

17/18 
£'000 

18/19 
£'000 

19/20 
£'000 

Staff 
Impact 
(FTE) 

New Budget Savings to be Consulted  2,754 1,120 144 - 57.5 

Delegated Head of Service Budget Savings  2,190 266 72 60 25.3 

Delegated Cabinet Member Budget Savings  2,035 674 - - 50.4 

Budget Savings previously agreed/revised (as per February 2015 Council Report) 1,668 987 460 450 20 

TOTAL BUDGET SAVINGS 8,647 3,047 676 510 153.2 

P
age 48



 

Appendix 4 - Precepts / Council Tax  

 
The funding required from Council Tax for the recommended draft 2016/17 budget is an 
increase of 3.90%. The tables below show all the figures involved in that calculation. 
 
The tax base 
This is the number of properties that attract Council Tax for the year, expressed as if they 
were all in Band D. In practice, Band A properties only pay 66% of the Band D Council Tax 
whilst a Band I property pays 233% of the Band D Council Tax. For 2016/17, the tax base is 
56,145.64 (2015/16 – 55,560.04). 
 
Calculation of the Council Tax – Newport City Council 
The calculation of the Council Tax follows the process shown below 
 

 £000 

Net budget requirement  263,862 

Less WAG funding 209,142 

Equals that which needs funding from Council Tax 54,720 

                                                                                                       £ 

Divided by tax base (56,145.64) gives a Council Tax at Band D 974.61 

 
Calculation of the Council Tax – Police and Crime Commissioner for Gwent & 
Community Councils  
The final Council Tax also incorporates other demands (precepts) that the Council collects 
on behalf of other bodies. These bodies are Police and Crime Commissioner for Gwent 
(PCC for Gwent) and the Community Councils within the city’s boundary. Of these, the 
Police and Crime Commissioner for Gwent is the largest and for 2016/17, has set a precept 
of £12,355,409.   
 

Authority 
Budget requirement 

/ Precept from 
Council Tax (£000) 

Tax Base 
Council Tax at Band D % 

Change 
 

2016/17 2015/16 

Newport City 54,720 56,145.64 £974.61 £938.02 3.90% 

PCC for Gwent 12,355 56,145.64 £220.06 £211.62 4.00% 

 
The table below lists the precepts and Band D Council Tax for the Community Councils 
within Newport City boundary, for which the Council collects Council Tax 
 

Authority 
Council 

Tax Base 
2016/17 

Precept (£) 
Council Tax at Band D % 

Change 2016/17 2015/16 

Bishton 756 8,240.40 10.90 9.90 10.1% 

Coedkernew 976 2,928.00 3.00 3.50 -14.3% 

Goldcliff 185 2,775.00 15.00 15.00 - 

Graig 2,859 52,862.91 18.49 17.95 3.0% 

Langstone 1,866 38,812.80 20.80 20.80 - 

Llanvaches 242 6,050.00 25.00 25.00 - 

Llanwern 441 7,497.00 17.00 23.88 -28.8% 

Marshfield 1,505 27,090.00 18.00 15.00 20.0% 

Michaelstone - Y - Fedw 169 3,667.30 21.70 21.69 - 

Nash 137 1,260.40 9.20 9.20 - 

Penhow 450 9,549.00 21.22 19.56 8.5% 

Redwick 114 2,754.24 24.16 24.16 - 

Rogerstone 4,499 82,601.64 18.36 18.00 2.0% 

Wentlooge 354 4,248.00 12.00 12.00 - 

Page 49



 

The Council Tax payable by households is the total of the Newport City Council, Gwent 
Police Authority and, where relevant, the Community Council taxes payable in the above 
tables. As already noted, the actual Council Tax payable by households will vary from the 
figures above as they represent those at the Band D only. The tables included in section 5 of 
the Council Tax Resolution at Appendix 5 show the actual Council Tax for each Band.   

Page 50



 

Appendix 5 – Council Tax Resolution  

 

RESOLUTION TO SET COUNCIL TAX LEVELS 

1. That the revenue estimates for 2016/2017, as recommended by the Cabinet 
 on 15th February 2016 be approved. 

 
2. That it be noted that the Council at its meeting on 20th February 2007 delegated the setting of the 

tax base to the Head of Finance and that on 05 November 2015, the Head of Finance acting in 
accordance with that delegation calculated the following amounts for the year 2016/2017 in 
accordance with regulations made under Section 33(5) of the Local Government Finance Act 
1992:- 

 
(a)  Council Tax Base 

 
56,145.64 being the amount calculated by the Council, in accordance with regulation 3 of the 
Local Authorities (Calculation of Council Tax Base) Regulations 1992, as its council tax base for 
the year; 

 
(b) Council Tax base for parts of the Council’s Area 

 

Area Tax base 
 

Bishton           756  

Coedkernew           976  

Goldcliff           185  

Graig        2,859  

Langstone        1,866  

Llanvaches            242  

Llanwern           441  

Marshfield        1,505  

Michaelstone           169  

Nash           137  

Penhow           450  

Redwick           114  

Rogerstone        4,499  

Wentlooge           354  

 
 
3. That the following amounts be now calculated by the Council for the year 2016/2017 in 

accordance with Sections 32 to 36 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992:- 
 

(a) £393,881,336.69 being the aggregate of the amounts which the Council estimates for the 
items set out in Section 32(2)(a) to (e) of the Act  
(Gross Expenditure). 

 
(b) £129,769,000.00 being the aggregate of the amounts which the Council estimates for the 

items set out in Section 32(3)(a) to (c) of the Act  
(Gross Income). 

 
(c) £264,112,336.69 being the amount by which the aggregate at (3)(a) above exceeds the 

aggregate at 3(b) above, calculated by the Council, in accordance with Section 32(4) of 
the Act, as its budget requirement for the year (Budget + Community Council 
precepts). 

 
Page 51



 

(d) £209,142,083 being the aggregate of the sums which the Council estimates will be 
payable for the year into its council fund in respect of redistributed non-domestic rates, 
revenue support grant or additional grant (RSG + NNDR). 

 
(e) £979.07 being the amount at 3(c) above less the amount at 3(d) above, all divided by the 

amount at 2(a) above, calculated by the Council, in accordance with Section 33(1) of the 
Act, as the basic amount of its council tax for the year (Average Band ‘D’ Tax for NCC 
including Community Councils). 

 
(f) £250,336.69 being the aggregate amount of all special items referred to in Section 34(1) 

of the Act and detailed below (Community Council precepts). 
 

Area Special Item 
£ 

Bishton 8,240.40 

Coedkernew  2,928.00 

Goldcliff 2,775.00 

Graig 52,862.91 

Langstone 38,812.80 

Llanvaches 6,050.00 

Llanwern 7,497.00 

Marshfield 27,090.00 

Michaelstone 3,667.30 

Nash 1,260.40 

Penhow 9,549.00 

Redwick 2,754.24 

Rogerstone 82,601.64 

Wentlooge 4,248.00 

 250,336.69 

 
(g) £974.61 being the amount at 3(e) above less the result given by dividing the amount at 

3(f) above by the amount at 2(a) above, calculated by the Council, in accordance with 
Section 34(2) of the Act, as the basic amount of its council tax for the year for dwellings in 
those parts of its area to which no special item relates (NCC Band ‘D’ Council Tax). 

  

Page 52



 

(h) Council Tax level for parts of the Council’s Area 
 
 

Area Basic Council 
Tax 
£ 

Bishton 985.51 

Coedkernew 977.61 

Goldcliff 989.61 

Graig 993.10 

Langstone 995.41 

Llanvaches 999.61 

Llanwern 991.61 

Marshfield 992.61 

Michaelstone 996.31 

Nash 983.81 

Penhow 995.83 

Redwick 998.77 

Rogerstone 992.97 

Wentlooge 986.61 

 
Being the amounts given by adding to the amount at 3(g) above, the amounts of the 
special item or items in 3(f) divided by the amount at 2(b) for the specified area of the 
council.  These amounts are calculated by the Council, in accordance with Section 34(3) 
of the Act, as the basic amounts of its council tax for the year for dwellings in those parts 
of its area to which one or more special items relate. 

 (i)  
 

NCC + 
Community 
Councils 
 

Valuation Bands 

A B C D E F G H I 

   £.p £.p £.p £.p £.p £.p £.p £.p £.p 

Bishton 657.01 766.51 876.01 985.51 1,204.51 1,423.51 1,642.52 1,971.02 2,299.52 

Coedkernew 651.74 760.36 868.99 977.61 1,194.86 1,412.10 1,629.35 1,955.22 2,281.09 

Goldcliff 659.74 769.70 879.65 989.61 1,209.52 1,429.44 1,649.35 1,979.22 2,309.09 

Graig 662.07 772.41 882.76 993.10 1,213.79 1,434.48 1,655.17 1,986.20 2,317.23 

Langstone 663.61 774.21 884.81 995.41 1,216.61 1,437.81 1,659.02 1,990.82 2,322.62 

Llanvaches 666.41 777.47 888.54 999.61 1,221.75 1,443.88 1,666.02 1,999.22 2,332.42 

Llanwern 661.07 771.25 881.43 991.61 1,211.97 1,432.33 1,652.68 1,983.22 2,313.76 

Marshfield 661.74 772.03 882.32 992.61 1,213.19 1,433.77 1,654.35 1,985.22 2,316.09 

Michaelstone 664.21 774.91 885.61 996.31 1,217.71 1,439.11 1,660.52 1,992.62 2,324.72 

Nash 655.87 765.19 874.50 983.81 1,202.43 1,421.06 1,639.68 1,967.62 2,295.56 

Penhow 663.89 774.53 885.18 995.83 1,217.13 1,438.42 1,659.72 1,991.66 2,323.60 

Redwick 665.85 776.82 887.80 998.77 1,220.72 1,442.67 1,664.62 1,997.54 2,330.46 

Rogerstone 661.98 772.31 882.64 992.97 1,213.63 1,434.29 1,654.95 1,985.94 2,316.93 

Wentlooge 657.74 767.36 876.99 986.61 1,205.86 1,425.10 1,644.35 1,973.22 2,302.09 

All Other 
Parts of the 
City 

649.74 758.03 866.32 974.61 1,191.19 1,407.77 1,624.35 1,949.22 2,274.09 

 
 

Being the amounts given by multiplying the amounts at 3(g) and 3(h) above by the number which, 
in the proportion set out in Section 5(1) of the Act, is applicable to dwellings listed in a particular 
valuation band divided by the number which in that proportion is applicable to dwellings listed in 
the valuation band D, calculated by the Council, in accordance with Section 36(1) of the Act, as 
the amounts to be taken into account for the year in respect of categories of dwellings listed in 
different valuation bands. 

 

Page 53



 

4. That it be noted for the year 2015/2016, that the only major precepting authority has stated the 
following amount in precept issued to the Council, in accordance with Section 40 of the Local 
Government Finance Act 1992, for each of the categories of dwellings shown below:- 

 
 

Police and Crime 
Commissioner for 
Gwent 

Valuation Bands 

 A B C D E F G H I 

 £.p £.p £.p £.p £.p £.p £.p £.p £.p 

All Parts of the City 146.71 171.16 195.61 220.06 268.96 317.86 366.77 440.12 513.47 

 
 
 5. That having calculated the aggregate in each case of the amounts at 3(i) and 4 above, the 

Council, in accordance with Section 30(2) of the Local Government Finance Act 1992, hereby 
sets the following amounts as the amounts of council tax for the year 2015/2016 for each of the 
categories of dwelling shown below:- 

 

Total Council 
Tax Demand 

Valuation Bands 

 A B C D E F G H I 

 £.p £.p £.p £.p £.p £.p £.p £.p £.p 

Bishton 803.72 937.67 1,071.62 1,205.57 1,473.47 1,741.37 2,009.29 2,411.14 2,812.99 

Coedkernew 798.45 931.52 1,064.60 1,197.67 1,463.82 1,729.96 1,996.12 2,395.34 2,794.56 

Goldcliff 806.45 940.86 1,075.26 1,209.67 1,478.48 1,747.30 2,016.12 2,419.34 2,822.56 

Graig 808.78 943.57 1,078.37 1,213.16 1,482.75 1,752.34 2,021.94 2,426.32 2,830.70 

Langstone 810.32 945.37 1,080.42 1,215.47 1,485.57 1,755.67 2,025.79 2,430.94 2,836.09 

Llanvaches 813.12 948.63 1,084.15 1,219.67 1,490.71 1,761.74 2,032.79 2,439.34 2,845.89 

Llanwern 807.78 942.41 1,077.04 1,211.67 1,480.93 1,750.19 2,019.45 2,423.34 2,827.23 

Marshfield 808.45 943.19 1,077.93 1,212.67 1,482.15 1,751.63 2,021.12 2,425.34 2,829.56 

Michaelstone 810.92 946.07 1,081.22 1,216.37 1,486.67 1,756.97 2,027.29 2,432.74 2,838.19 

Nash 802.58 936.35 1,070.11 1,203.87 1,471.39 1,738.92 2,006.45 2,407.74 2,809.03 

Penhow 810.60 945.69 1,080.79 1,215.89 1,486.09 1,756.28 2,026.49 2,431.78 2,837.07 

Redwick 812.56 947.98 1,083.41 1,218.83 1,489.68 1,760.53 2,031.39 2,437.66 2,843.93 

Rogerstone 808.69 943.47 1,078.25 1,213.03 1,482.59 1,752.15 2,021.72 2,426.06 2,830.40 

Wentlooge 804.45 938.52 1,072.60 1,206.67 1,474.82 1,742.96 2,011.12 2,413.34 2,815.56 

All Other 
Parts of the 
City 

796.45 929.19 1,061.93 1,194.67 1,460.15 1,725.63 1,991.12 2,389.34 2,787.56 

 
 

Page 54



 
Appendix 6 – Capital Programme 2016/17 – 2017/18 
 

SCHEME 
2016/17 

£000s 
2017/18 

£000s NOTES 

EDUCATION       

STEP 4  231 231 Reprofiled existing scheme 

New ASD Facility 2,748 0 Reprofiled existing scheme 

21C Schools - Nursery Education Provision 84 0 NCC / WG grant, scheme finishing 

21C Schools - School Reorganisation - Lodge Hill New Build 3,939 1,000 NCC / WG grant, in progress 

21C Schools - Capacity Building - Replacement of Demountables 1,700 1,000 NCC / WG grant, in progress 

21C Schools - Welsh Medium Secondary  (WM2) Project  10,743 5,000 NCC / Monmouthshire / WG grant funded 

Duffryn - Additional Funding 1,900 2,000 Additional service requirement 

Primary Place Challenge 1,040 300 Reprofiled existing scheme 

Installation of a catering Cashless System in all Primary Schools 50 0 Slippage/ Ongoing scheme 

Llanwern High School 24 0 Slippage/ Ongoing scheme 

St Andrews Primary 3FE Works 264 0 Slippage/ Ongoing scheme 

Total Education 22,723 9,531         

        

REGENERATION, INVESTMENT & HOUSING       

Education through Restoration: Fourteen Locks 21 0 Scheme finishing 

Gypsy Traveller Site Development 1,200 0 Reprofiled existing scheme 

Peterstone Sewage Scheme  65 0 Reprofiled existing scheme 

Vibrant & Viable Places Grant 4,365 0 WG grant annual allocation 

Renovation Grants 1,436 1,436 Annual allocation  

Asset Management 2,041 1,500 Annual allocation, adjusted for slippage  

Medieval Ship - Purchase of Freeze Dryer 0 12 Reprofiled existing scheme 

Central Library Structural Safety Works 350 0 Reprofiled existing scheme 

Rivermead MUGA Fence 80 0 New scheme 

Total Regeneration, Investment & Housing 9,558 2,948   

        

CUSTOMER SERVICES & DIGITAL INNOVATION       

Print 2010 - Managed Printer Service 0 210 Cyclical requirement 

P
age 55



 

IT Replacement Schemes 745 744 Reprofiled existing annual allocation 

Corporate EDMS Rollout 7 0 Scheme finishing 

Total Customer Services & Digital Innovation 752 954   

        

PEOPLE & BUSINESS CHANGE       

Implementation of HR self-serve System 85 0 Scheme finishing 

Preparatory Works Allocation 100 100 Annual allocation 

Amount Reserved for Change & Efficiency Programme 
(Schemes to be confirmed) 3,000 2,200 

Subject to ongoing review to determine specific 
requirements 

Total People & Business Change 3,185 2,300   

        

LAW AND REGULATION       

CCTV 189 0 Reprofiled existing scheme 

Total Law and Regulation 189 0   

        

ADULT & COMMUNITY SERVICES       

Appliances/Equipment for Disabled  165 165 Annual allocation 

Telecare Service Equipment 30 30 Annual allocation 

Substance Misuse Action Fund Grant 40 0 Fully grant funded 

Total Adult & Community Services 235 195   

        

CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE SERVICES       

6 Place Residential Unit for young people with acute complex needs 0 250 Other service area requirement 

Total Children & Young People Services 0 250   

        

STREETSCENE & CITY SERVICES       

Fleet Replacement Programme 2,000 1,500 Reprofiled existing annual allocation 

Waste Disposal site - Finishing & Development works 360 0 Scheme finishing 

Decommissioning of Public Toilets 0 20 Reprofiled existing scheme  

Lliswerry Recreation Ground Changing Rooms 219 0 Reprofiled existing scheme  

Graig Area Play Facilities 39 0 Scheme finishing 

Maintenance, Footways and Street Lighting (Capital Maintenance) 500 500 Annual allocation 

P
age 56



 

St Julian's Park Ecological Translocation Site 3 0 Scheme finishing 

Total Streetscene & City Services 3,121 2,020   

        

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 39,763 18,198   

        

Funded By:       

General Capital Grant 2,479 2,192   

Supported Borrowing 4,073 3,601   

Unsupported/ Prudential Borrowing 14,336 10,001   

Capital Receipts 3,554 1,194   

External Grants 14,746 1,000   

Revenue Contributions 50 0   

S106 & Other Contributions 525 0   

Finance Lease 0 210   

TOTAL FUNDING 39,763 18,198   

 

P
age 57



 

Appendix 7 – Treasury Management Strategy and Prudential Indicators 
 

Prudential Code Indicators, Minimum Revenue Policy, Treasury Management and 
Investment Strategy Statements 2016/17 

 
 

Introduction 
In June 2009 the Authority adopted the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and       
Accountancy’s Treasury Management in the Public Services: Code of Practice 2011 Edition 
(the CIPFA Code) which requires the Authority to approve a treasury management strategy 
before the start of each financial year. 

 
In addition, the Welsh Government (WG) issued revised Guidance on Local Authority 
Investments in April 2010 that requires the Authority to approve an investment strategy 
before the start of each financial year. 

 
This report fulfils the Authority’s legal obligation under the Local Government Act 2003 to 
have regard to both the CIPFA Code and the WG Guidance. 
 
The Authority borrows/invests substantial sums of money and is therefore exposed to 
financial risks including the loss of invested funds and the revenue effect of changing interest 
rates.  The successful identification, monitoring and control of risk are therefore central to the 
Authority’s treasury management strategy.  
 
External Context  
 

Economic Background 
Domestic demand has grown robustly, supported by sustained real income growth and a 

gradual decline in private sector savings.  Low oil and commodity prices were a notable 

feature of 2015, and contributed to annual CPI inflation falling to 0.1% in October.  Wages 

are growing at 3% a year, and the unemployment rate has dropped to 5.4%.  Mortgage 

approvals have risen to over 70,000 a month and annual house price growth is around 

3.5%.  These factors have boosted consumer confidence, helping to underpin retail 

spending and hence GDP growth, which was an encouraging 2.3% a year in the third 

quarter of 2015. Although speeches by the Bank of England’s Monetary Policy Committee 

(MPC) members sent signals that some were willing to countenance higher interest rates, 

the MPC held policy rates at 0.5% for the 81st consecutive month at its meeting in 

November 2015. Quantitative easing (QE) has been maintained at £375bn since July 2012. 

The outcome of the UK general election, which was largely fought over the parties’ approach 

to dealing with the deficit in the public finances, saw some big shifts in the political landscape 

and put the key issue of the UK’s relationship with the EU at the heart of future politics. 

Uncertainty over the outcome of the forthcoming referendum could put downward pressure 

on UK GDP growth and interest rates. 

China's growth has slowed and its economy is performing below expectations, reducing 

global demand for commodities and contributing to emerging market weakness. US 

domestic growth has accelerated but the globally sensitive sectors of the US economy have 

slowed. Strong US labour market data and other economic indicators however suggest 

recent global turbulence has not knocked the American recovery off course. The Federal 

Reserve did not raise policy rates at its meetings in October and November, but a rate hike 

Page 58



 

was made in December 2015. In contrast, the European Central Bank finally embarked on 

QE in 2015 to counter the perils of deflation. 

 

 
Credit outlook: 
The varying fortunes of different parts of the global economy are reflected in market 

indicators of credit risk. UK Banks operating in the Far East and parts of mainland Europe 

have seen their perceived risk increase, while those with a more domestic focus continue to 

show improvement. The sale of most of the government’s stake in Lloyds and the first sale of 

its shares in RBS have generally been seen as credit positive. 

Bail-in legislation, which ensures that large investors including local authorities will rescue 

failing banks instead of taxpayers in the future, has now been fully implemented in the UK, 

USA and Germany. The rest of the European Union will follow suit in January 2016, while 

Australia, Canada and Switzerland are well advanced with their own plans. Meanwhile, 

changes to the UK Financial Services Compensation Scheme and similar European 

schemes in July 2015 mean that most private sector investors are now partially or fully 

exempt from contributing to a bail-in. The credit risk associated with making unsecured bank 

deposits has therefore increased relative to the risk of other investment options available to 

the Authority; returns from cash deposits however remain stubbornly low. 

Interest rate forecast:  
The Authority’s treasury advisor Arlingclose projects the first 0.25% increase in UK Bank 

Rate in the third quarter of 2016, rising by 0.5% a year thereafter, finally settling between 2% 

and 3% in several years’ time. Persistently low inflation, subdued global growth and potential 

concerns over the UK’s position in Europe mean that the risks to this forecast are weighted 

towards the downside. 

A shallow upward path for medium term gilt yields is forecast, as continuing concerns about 

the Eurozone, emerging markets and other geo-political events weigh on risk appetite, while 

inflation expectations remain subdued. Arlingclose projects the 10 year gilt yield to rise from 

its current 2.0% level by around 0.3% a year. The uncertainties surrounding the timing of UK 

and US interest rate rises are likely to prompt short-term volatility in gilt yields. 

A more detailed economic and interest rate forecast provided by Arlingclose is attached at 

Appendix A. 

Local Context 
The Authority currently has £227.8 million of borrowing and £7.4 million of investments.  This 
is set out in further detail at Appendix B.  Forecast changes in these sums are shown in the 
balance sheet analysis in table 1 below: 
 
Table 1: Balance Sheet Summary and Forecast 

  

31.3.15 31.3.16 31.3.17 31.3.18 31.3.19 

Actual Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate 

£m £m £m £m £m 

CFR 321.1 360.2 280.6 283.7 283.5 

Less: Other long-term liabilities * -51.6 -49.3 -47.4 -45.5 -43.8 

Borrowing CFR 269.5 310.9 233.2 238.2 239.7 

Page 59



 

Less: External borrowing ** -190.3 -235.8 -246.6 -205.6 -204.5 

Internal (over) borrowing 79.2 75.1 -13.4 32.6 35.2 

Less: Usable reserves -89.8 -83 -78 -74.2 -73.6 

Less: Working capital 8 8 8 8 8 

Investments / (New Borrowing) 2.6 -0.1 83.4 33.6 30.4 

*finance leases and PFI liabilities that form part of the Authority’s debt 
** shows only loans to which the Authority is committed and excludes optional refinancing 

 

 
Capital Financing Requirement 
 
The underlying need to borrow for capital purposes is measured by the Capital Financing 
Requirement (CFR), while usable reserves and working capital are the underlying resources 
available for investment.  The Authority’s current strategy is to maintain borrowing and 
investments below their underlying levels, sometimes known as internal borrowing. 

 
The Authority has an increasing CFR during 2015/16 due to the capital programme and the 
on-going loan to Queensbury Real Estates (Newport) Ltd, but holds minimal investments 
and will therefore be required to borrow up to £50m during 2015/16.  However, during 
2016/17 the sale of the development will reduce the CFR significantly and dependent on 
timing of loan re-payments and capital receipts, significant investments are likely to be 
required over the forecast period.  

 
CIPFA’s Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities recommends that the 
Authority’s total debt should be lower than its highest forecast CFR over the next three 
years.  Table 1 shows that the Authority expects to comply with this recommendation during 
2016/17.   
 
Borrowing Strategy 
The Authority currently holds £227.8 million of loans as part of its strategy for funding 
previous years’ capital programmes.  The balance sheet forecast in table 1 shows that the 
Authority does not expect to need to borrow in 2016/17.   The Authority may however borrow 
to pre-fund future years’ requirements, providing this does not exceed the recommended 
authorised limit for borrowing of £397 million. 

  
The Authority’s chief objective when borrowing money is to strike an appropriately low risk 
balance between securing low interest costs and achieving cost certainty over the period for 
which funds are required.  The flexibility to renegotiate loans should the Authority’s long-term 
plans change is a secondary objective. 
 
Given the significant cuts to public expenditure and in particular to local government funding, 
the Authority’s borrowing strategy continues to address the key issue of affordability without 
compromising the longer-term stability of the debt portfolio. With short-term interest rates 
currently much lower than long-term rates, it is more cost effective in the short-term to either 
use internal resources, or to borrow short-term loans instead.   

 
By doing so, the Authority is able to reduce net borrowing costs (despite foregone 
investment income) and reduce overall treasury risk. The benefits of internal borrowing will 
be monitored regularly against the potential for incurring additional costs by deferring 
borrowing into future years when long-term borrowing rates are forecast to rise.  Arlingclose 
will assist the Authority with this ‘cost of carry’ and breakeven analysis. Its output may 
determine whether the Authority borrows additional sums at long-term fixed rates in 2016/17 
with a view to keeping future interest costs low, even if this causes additional cost in the 
short-term. 

Page 60



 

 
Alternatively, the Authority may arrange forward starting loans during 2016/17, where the 
interest rate is fixed in advance, but the cash is received in later years.  This would enable 
certainty of cost to be achieved without suffering a cost of carry in the intervening period. 
 
In addition, the Authority may borrow short-term loans (normally for up to one month) to 
cover unexpected cash flow shortages. 
 
The approved sources of long-term and short-term borrowing are: 
• Public Works Loan Board and any successor body 

• UK local authorities 

• any institution approved for investments (see below) 

• any other bank or building society authorised by the Prudential Regulation Authority 

to operate in the UK 

• UK public and private sector pension funds  

• capital market bond investors 

• Special purpose companies created to enable joint local authority bond issues. 

 
In addition, capital finance may be raised by the following methods that are not borrowing, 
but may be classed as other debt liabilities: 
• operating and finance leases 

• hire purchase 

• Private Finance Initiative  

• sale and leaseback 

 
The Authority has previously raised the majority of its long-term borrowing from the Public 
Works Loan Board, but it continues to investigate other sources of finance, such as local 
authority loans and bank loans, that may be available at more favourable rates. 
 
The Authority holds £35m of LOBO (Lender’s Option Borrower’s Option) loans where the 
lender has the option to propose an increase in the interest rate at set dates, following which 
the Authority has the automatic option to either accept the new rate or to repay the loan at 
no additional cost.  £30m of these LOBOS have options during 2016/17, and although the 
Authority understands that lenders are extremely unlikely to exercise their options in the 
current low interest rate environment, there remains a remote element of refinancing risk.  
The Authority will take the option to repay LOBO loans at no cost if it has the opportunity to 
do so.   
 
Short-term and variable rate loans leave the Authority exposed to the risk of short-term 
interest rate rises and are therefore subject to the limit on the net exposure to variable 
interest rates in the treasury management indicators below. 
 
Debt Rescheduling: The PWLB allows authorities to repay loans before maturity and either 
pay a premium or receive a discount according to a set formula based on current interest 
rates. Some bank lenders may also be prepared to negotiate premature redemption terms. 
The Authority may take advantage of this and replace some loans with new loans, or repay 
loans without replacement, where this is expected to lead to an overall saving or reduction in 
risk. 
 

 
Annual Investment Strategy 
The Authority holds invested funds, representing income received in advance of expenditure 
plus balances and reserves held.  In the past 12 months, the Authority’s investment balance 

Page 61



 

has ranged between £0 million and £25 million.  In 2016/17, the investment balances could 
increase significantly dependent on the timing of the repayment of loans in relation to 
Queensberry, where a substantial receipt may be achieved in advance of borrowing required 
to be repaid.  As per the strategy, balances could first be used to reduce levels of borrowing 
required before the Authority invests funds, this is in relation to long term loans which 
become redeemable. 
 
Both the CIPFA Code and the WG Guidance require the Authority to invest its funds 
prudently, and to have regard to the security and liquidity of its investments before seeking 
the highest rate of return, or yield.  The Authority’s objective when investing money is to 
strike an appropriate balance between risk and return, minimising the risk of incurring losses 
from defaults and the risk receiving unsuitably low investment income. 

        
Given the increasing risk and continued low returns from short-term unsecured bank 
investments, the Authority aims to diversify into more secure and/or higher yielding classes 
during 2016/17.  This is especially the case for any surplus funds available for investment 
following the repayment of the Queensberry loan.   
 
There is no intention to restrict investments to bank deposits, and investments may be made 
with any public or private sector organisations that meet the required credit rating criteria.  
This reflects a lower likelihood that the UK and other governments will support failing banks 
as the bail-in provisions in the Banking Reform Act 2014 and the EU Bank Recovery and 
Resolution Directive are implemented. The Authority may invest its surplus funds with any of 
the counterparties that meet the definition and credit type as documented in table 2 and 
additional explanation are:  
 
 Credit Rating: Investment decisions are made by reference to the lowest published 

long-term credit rating from Fitch, Moody’s or Standard & Poor’s.  Where available, the 
credit rating relevant to the specific investment or class of investment is used, otherwise 
the counterparty credit level is used. 

 
 Banks Unsecured: Accounts, deposits, certificates of deposit and senior unsecured 

bonds with banks and designated building societies, other than multilateral development 

banks.  These investments are subject to the risk of credit loss via a bail-in should the 

regulator determine that the bank is failing or likely to fail.  Unsecured investment with 

banks rated BBB are restricted to overnight deposits.  

 Current Account Bank: The banking contract with Santander UK PLC was renewed for 
a further three years from 1st April 2013.  Santander UK PLC is currently rated above the 
minimum required A- rating.  Should the credit ratings fall below A-, the Authority may 
continue to deposit surplus cash with Santander UK PLC providing that investments that 
can be withdrawn on the next working day, and that the bank maintains a credit rating no 
lower than BBB (the lowest investment grade rating). 
 

 Banks Secured: Covered bonds, reverse repurchase agreements and other 

collateralised arrangements with banks and designated building societies.  These 

investments are secured on the bank’s assets, which limits the potential losses in the 

unlikely event of insolvency, and means that they are exempt from bail-in.  Where there 

is no investment specific credit rating, but the collateral upon which the investment is 

secured has a credit rating, the highest of the collateral credit rating and the counterparty 

credit rating will be used to determine cash and time limits.  The combined secured and 

unsecured investments in any one bank will not exceed the cash limit for secured 

investments. 

Page 62



 

 Government: Loans, bonds and bills issued or guaranteed by UK government, regional 

and local authorities.  These investments are not subject to bail-in, and there is an 

insignificant risk of insolvency.  Investments with the UK Government may be made in 

unlimited amounts for up to 50 years. 

 Corporates: Loans, bonds and commercial paper issued by companies other than 

banks and registered providers. These investments are not subject to bail-in, but are 

exposed to the risk of the company going insolvent. Loans to unrated companies will 

only be made as part of a diversified pool in order to spread the risk widely. 

 Registered Providers: Loans and bonds issued by, guaranteed by or secured on the 
assets of Registered Providers of Social Housing, formerly known as Housing 
Associations.  These bodies are tightly regulated by the Homes and Communities 
Agency and, as providers of public services they retain a high likelihood of receiving 
government support if needed.  The Authority will consider investing with unrated 
Registered Providers with adequate credit safeguards, subject to receiving independent 
advice. 
 

 Pooled Funds: Shares in diversified investment vehicles consisting of the any of the 

above investment types, plus equity shares and property. These funds have the 

advantage of providing wide diversification of investment risks, coupled with the services 

of a professional fund manager in return for a fee.  Short-term Money Market Funds that 

offer same-day liquidity and very low or no volatility will be used as an alternative to 

instant access bank accounts, while pooled funds whose value changes with market 

prices and/or have a notice period will be used for longer investment periods.  

 Bond, equity and property funds offer enhanced returns over the longer term, but are 

more volatile in the short term.  These allow the Authority to diversify into asset classes 

other than cash without the need to own and manage the underlying investments. 

Because these funds have no defined maturity date, but are available for withdrawal 

after a notice period, their performance and continued suitability in meeting the 

Authority’s investment objectives will be monitored regularly. It is not envisaged that the 

Authority will use the facility of pool funds in the in the short term. 

Risk Assessment and Credit Ratings:         

Credit ratings are obtained and monitored by the Authority’s treasury advisers, who will notify 

changes in ratings as they occur. Where the Treasury advisor provides advice relating to a 

specific named counterparty then the Authority will act upon that advice relating to the 

duration of exposure and amount.  

Where an entity has its credit rating downgraded so that it fails to meet the approved 

investment criteria then: 

 no new investments will be made, 

 any existing investments that can be recalled or sold at no cost will be, and 

 full consideration will be given to the recall or sale of all other existing investments 

with the affected counterparty. 

Where a credit rating agency announces that a credit rating is on review for possible 

downgrade (also known as “rating watch negative” or “credit watch negative”) so that it may 

Page 63



 

fall below the approved rating criteria, then only investments that can be withdrawn will be 

made with that organisation until the outcome of the review is announced.  This policy will 

not apply to negative outlooks, which indicate a long-term direction of travel rather than an 

imminent change of rating. 

Other Information on the Security of Investments: The Authority understands that credit 

ratings are good, but not perfect, predictors of investment default.  Full regard will therefore 

be given to other available information on the credit quality of the organisations, in which it 

invests, including credit default swap prices, financial statements, information on potential 

government support and reports in the quality financial press.  No investments will be made 

with an organisation if there are substantive doubts about its credit quality, even though it 

may meet the credit rating criteria. 

When deteriorating financial market conditions affect the creditworthiness of all 

organisations, as happened in 2008 and 2011, this is not generally reflected in credit ratings, 

but can be seen in other market measures.  In these circumstances, the Authority will restrict 

its investments to those organisations of higher credit quality and reduce the maximum 

duration of its investments to maintain the required level of security.  The extent of these 

restrictions will be in line with prevailing financial market conditions. If these restrictions 

mean that insufficient commercial organisations of high credit quality are available to invest 

the Authority’s cash balances, then the surplus will be deposited with the UK Government, 

via the Debt Management Office or invested in government treasury bills for example, or with 

other local authorities.  This will cause a reduction in the level of investment income earned, 

but will protect the principal sum invested.  

Specified Investments: The WG Guidance defines specified investments as those: 
 
• denominated in pound sterling, 

• due to be repaid within 12 months of arrangement, 

• not defined as capital expenditure by legislation, and 

• invested with one of: 

o the UK Government, 

o a UK local authority, parish council or community council, or 

o a body or investment scheme of “high credit quality”. 

The Authority defines “high credit quality” organisations and securities as those having a 
credit rating of A- or higher that are domiciled in the UK or a foreign country with a sovereign 
rating of AA+ or higher. For money market funds and other pooled funds “high credit quality” 
is defined as those having a credit rating of A- or higher.     

 

 Non-specified Investments: Any investment not meeting the definition of a specified 
investment is classed as non-specified.  The Authority does not intend to make any 
investments denominated in foreign currencies. Non-specified investments will therefore 
be limited to long-term investments, i.e. those that are due to mature 12 months or 
longer from the date of arrangement; those that are defined as capital expenditure by 
legislation, such as shares in money market funds and other pooled fund; and 
investments with bodies and schemes not meeting the definition on high credit quality.  
Appendix C sets out the investment limits/ maximum maturity periods for Non-specified 
investments. 

 

Page 64



 

 Approved Instruments: The Authority may lend or invest money using any of the 
following instruments: 
• interest-bearing bank accounts, 

• fixed term deposits and loans, 

• callable deposits and loans where the Authority may demand repayment at any 

time (with or without notice), 

• certificates of deposit, 

• bonds, notes, bills, commercial paper and other marketable instruments, and 

• shares in money market funds and other pooled funds. 

 
 Investments may be made at either a fixed rate of interest, or at a variable rate linked to 

a market interest rate, such as LIBOR, subject to the limits on interest rate exposures 
below. 

 
 Liquidity management: The Authority uses purpose-built cash flow forecasting to 

determine the maximum period for which funds may prudently be committed.  The 
forecast is compiled on a prudent basis, with receipts under-estimated and payments 
over-estimated to minimise the risk of the Authority being forced to borrow on 
unfavourable terms to meet its financial commitments. Limits on long-term investments 
are set by reference to the Authority’s medium term financial plan and cash flow forecast. 

 
 
Monitoring & reporting on the Treasury Management and capital Prudential Indicators 
The Head of Finance will report to the Audit committee/ Cabinet/ Council on treasury 
management activity, performance and Treasury/Capital Prudential Indicators (set out in 
Appendix D) as follows: 
 

 Half Yearly and then annually against the strategy approved for the year.  The annual 
report will be produced normally by July of the following year but in any event no later 
than 30th September. 

 The Audit Committee will be responsible for the scrutiny of treasury management activity 
and practices. 

 
Other Items 
 There are a number of additional items that the Authority is obliged by CIPFA or WG to 

include in its Treasury Management Strategy. 
 
 Policy on Use of Financial Derivatives: In the absence of any legal power to do so, the 

Authority will not use standalone financial derivatives (such as swaps, forwards, futures 
and options).  Derivatives embedded into loans and investments may be used, and the 
risks that they present will be managed in line with the overall treasury risk management 
strategy. 

 
 Investment Training: The needs of the Authority’s treasury management staff for 

training in investment management are assessed annually as part of the staff appraisal 
process, and additionally when the responsibilities of individual members of staff change. 

 
Staff members regularly attend training courses, seminars and conferences provided by 
Arlingclose and other organisations.  

 
 Investment Advisers: The Authority has appointed Arlingclose Limited as treasury 

management advisers and receives specific advice on investment, debt and capital 
finance issues. The service provided by Arlingclose continues to meet all expectations 
and the advice given especially in relation to investment counterparties and credit ratings 

Page 65



 

has allowed the Council to action the changes needed, especially in removing 
counterparties from the approved list, in a prompt and timely manner. 

 
Financial Implications 
 The approximate debt interest of £8.8 million and principal of £1.0 million is expected to 

be paid in 2016/17 (this includes Queensbury interest payments and maturities) If actual 
levels of investments and borrowing differ from those forecast, performance against 
budget will be correspondingly different. 

 
Other Options Considered 
 The WG Guidance and the CIPFA Code do not prescribe any particular treasury 

management strategy for local authorities to adopt.  The Head of Finance believes that 
the above strategy represents an appropriate balance between risk management and 
cost effectiveness.  Some alternative strategies, with their financial and risk management 
implications, are listed below. 

 

Alternative Impact on income and 
expenditure 

Impact on risk 
management 

Invest in a narrower range of 
counterparties and/or for 
shorter times 

Interest income will be lower Reduced risk of losses from 
credit related defaults, but 
any such losses will be 
greater 

Invest in a wider range of 
counterparties and/or for 
longer times 

Interest income will be higher Increased risk of losses from 
credit related defaults, but 
any such losses will be 
smaller 

Borrow additional sums at 
long-term fixed interest rates 

Debt interest costs will rise; 
this is unlikely to be offset by 
higher investment income 

Higher investment balance 
leading to a higher impact in 
the event of a default; 
however long-term interest 
costs will be more certain 

Borrow short-term or variable 
loans instead of long-term 
fixed rates 

Debt interest costs will 
initially be lower 

Increases in debt interest 
costs will be broadly offset by 
rising investment income in 
the medium term, but long 
term costs will be less certain  

Reduce level of borrowing  Saving on debt interest is 
likely to exceed lost 
investment income 

Reduced investment balance 
leading to a lower impact in 
the event of a default; 
however long-term interest 
costs will be less certain 

 

Page 66



 

Appendix A – Arlingclose Economic & Interest Rate Forecast November 2015  

Underlying assumptions:  

 UK economic growth softened in Q3 2015 but remained reasonably robust; the first 

estimate for the last quarter was 0.5% and year-on-year growth fell slightly to 2.3%. 

Negative construction output growth offset fairly strong services output, however 

survey estimates suggest upwards revisions to construction may be in the pipeline. 

 

 Household spending has been the main driver of GDP growth through 2014 and 

2015 and remains key to growth. Consumption will continue to be supported by real 

wage and disposable income growth. 

 

 Annual average earnings growth was 3.0% (including bonuses) in the three months 

to August 2015. Given low inflation, real earnings and income growth continue to run 

at relatively strong levels and could feed directly into unit labour costs and 

households' disposable income. Improving productivity growth should support pay 

growth in the medium term. The development of wage growth is one of the factors 

being closely monitored by the MPC. 

 

 Business investment indicators continue to signal strong growth. However the 

outlook for business investment may be tempered by the looming EU referendum, 

increasing uncertainties surrounding global growth and recent financial market 

shocks. 

 

 Inflation is currently very low and, with a further fall in commodity prices, will likely 

remain so over the next 12 months. The CPI rate is likely to rise towards the end of 

2016.  

 

 China's growth has slowed and its economy is performing below expectations, which 

in turn will dampen activity in countries with which it has close economic ties; its 

slowdown and emerging market weakness will reduce demand for commodities. 

Other possible currency interventions following China's recent devaluation will keep 

sterling strong against many global currencies and depress imported inflation. 

 

 Strong US labour market data and other economic indicators suggest recent global 

turbulence has not knocked the American recovery off course. Although the timing of 

the first rise in official interest rates remains uncertain, a rate rise by the Federal 

Reserve seems significantly more likely in December given recent data and rhetoric 

by committee members. 

 

 Longer term rates will be tempered by international uncertainties and weaker global 

inflation pressure. 

 

Forecast:  

 Arlingclose forecasts the first rise in UK Bank Rate in Q3 2016. Further weakness in 

inflation, and the MPC's expectations for its path, suggest policy tightening will be 

pushed back into the second half of the year. Risks remain weighted to the 

Page 67



 

downside. Arlingclose projects a slow rise in Bank Rate, the appropriate level of 

which will be lower than the previous norm and will be between 2 and 3%. 

 

 The projection is for a shallow upward path for medium term gilt yields, with 

continuing concerns about the Eurozone, emerging markets and other geo-political 

events, weighing on risk appetite, while inflation expectations remain subdued. 

 The uncertainties surrounding the timing of UK and US monetary policy tightening, 

and global growth weakness, are likely to prompt short term volatility in gilt yields.  

 

 
 

Page 68



 

Appendix B – Existing Investment & Debt Portfolio Position 
 

 31/12/15 
Actual Portfolio 

£m 

External Borrowing:  
PWLB – Fixed Rate 
Market Loans 
Stock Issue 
Temporary loans - Queensberry 
Other Soft Loans 
Total External Borrowing 

 
74.84 
35.00 
40.00 
77.98 

0.00 
227.82 

Other Long Term Liabilities: 
PFI  
Finance Leases and other 

 
51.16 

0.15 

Total Gross External Debt 279.13 

Investments: 
Short-term investments 
Long-term investments  
 

 
7.39 
0.00 

Total Investments 7.39 

Net Debt  271.74 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 69



 

Appendix C – Operational Investment Counterparties List  
 
COUNTERPARTY LIMITS FOR BANKING – UK INSTITUTIONS 
 

 

Unsecured Investments Secured Investments 

Counterparty - Banking UK 
Institutions 

Maximum 
Counterparty 

Limit and 
Group Limit 

(if applicable) 

Maximum 
Lending 
Period 

Maximum 
Counterparty 

Limit and 
Group Limit 

(if applicable) 

Maximum 
Lending 
Period 

Bank of Scotland  £5,000,000 13 Months £10,000,000 2 years 

Barclays Bank Plc. £5,000,000 100 Days £10,000,000 2 years 

Close Brothers Ltd £5,000,000 6 Months £10,000,000 2 years 

Goldman Sachs International 
Bank £5,000,000 100 Days £10,000,000 2 years 

HSBC Bank Plc. £5,000,000 13 Months £10,000,000 2 years 

Lloyds Bank Plc. £5,000,000 13 Months £10,000,000 2 years 

National Westminster Bank Plc. £2,500,000 35 Days £10,000,000 2 years 

Nationwide Building Society £5,000,000 6 Months £10,000,000 2 years 

Royal Bank of Scotland £2,500,000 35 Days £10,000,0000 2 years 

Santander UK Plc. (Banco 
Santander Group) £5,000,000 6 Months £10,000,000 2 years 

Standard Chartered Bank £5,000,000 6 Months £10,000,000 2 years 
 
* based on advice from Arlingclose  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 70



 

Appendix D  
 
Prudential Indicators 2016/17 – 2018/19 
 
1. Background: 
 There is a requirement under the Local Government Act 2003 for local authorities to 

have regard to CIPFA’s Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities (the 
“CIPFA Prudential Code”) when setting and reviewing their Prudential Indicators.  

 
2. Gross Borrowing and the Capital Financing Requirement: 

This is a key indicator of prudence. In order to ensure that over the medium term net 
borrowing will only be for a capital purpose, the local authority should ensure that the net 
external borrowing does not, except in the short term, exceed the total of the capital 
financing requirement in the preceding year plus the estimates of any additional 
increases to the capital financing requirement for the current and next two financial 
years.  
 
If in any of these years there is a reduction in the capital financing requirement, this 
reduction is ignored in estimating the cumulative increase in the capital financing 
requirement, which is used for comparison with gross external debt. 
 
The Head of Finance reports that the authority will have no difficulty meeting this 
requirement in 2016/17, nor are there any difficulties envisaged for future years. This 
view takes into account current commitments, existing plans and the proposals in the 
approved budget. 
 

3. Estimates of Capital Expenditure: 
3.1 This indicator is set to ensure that the level of proposed capital expenditure remains 

within sustainable limits and, in particular, to consider the impact on Council Tax. 
     

Capital Expenditure 2015/16 
Estimate 

£m 

2016/17 

Estimate 

£m 

2017/18 

Estimate 

£m 

2018/19 

Estimate 

£m 

Total  26.1     40.2 18.2 20.0 

 
3.2 Capital expenditure will be financed or funded as follows:   
 

Capital Financing 2015/16 
Estimate 

£m 

2016/17 
Estimate 

£m 

2017/18 
Estimate 

£m 

2018/19 
 Estimate 

£m 

Capital receipts 1.6 3.6 1.2 1.5 

Government Grants 2.4 2.5 2.2 2.0 

Other Specific Grants 9.9 14.7 1.0 5.0 

S106 Contributions   2.0 0.5 0.0 0.5 

Revenue contributions 0.9 0.0 0.0 0.1 

Total Financing 16.8 21.3 4.4 9.1 

Supported borrowing  4.0 4.0 3.6 3.6 

Unsupported borrowing  5.3 14.9 10.0 7.3 

Finance Leases 0.0 0.0 0.2 0 

Total Funding 9.3 18.9 13.8 10.9 

Total Financing and 
Funding 

26.1 40.2 18.2 20.0 

Page 71



 

 
 
 

4. Ratio of Financing Costs to Net Revenue Stream: 
4.1 This is an indicator of affordability and highlights the revenue implications of existing and 

proposed capital expenditure by identifying the proportion of the revenue budget 
required to meet financing costs. The definition of financing costs is set out in the 
Prudential Code.  

 
4.2 The ratio is based on costs net of investment income.  
 

Ratio of Financing 
Costs to Net 
Revenue Stream 

2015/16 
Estimate 

% 

2016/17 
Estimate 

% 

2017/18 
Estimate 

% 

2018/19 
Estimate 

% 

2019/20 
Estimate 

% 

Total 8.7% 8.8% 9.0% 9.2% 8.4% 

 
 

5. Capital Financing Requirements: 
5.1 The Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) measures the Council’s underlying need to 

borrow for a capital purpose.  The calculation of the CFR is taken from the amounts held 
in the Balance Sheet relating to capital expenditure and it’s financing.  

 

 
6. Actual External Debt: 
6.1 This indicator is obtained directly from the Council’s balance sheet. It is the closing 

balance for actual gross borrowing plus other long-term liabilities. This Indicator is 
measured in a manner consistent for comparison with the Operational Boundary and 
Authorised Limit.        

Actual External Debt as at 31/03/2015 £000 

Borrowing 190,400 

Other Long-term Liabilities 51,160 

Total 241,560 

 

 
7. Incremental Impact of Capital Investment Decisions: 
 
7.1 This is an indicator of affordability that shows the impact of capital investment decisions 

on Council Tax and Housing Rent levels. The incremental impact is calculated by 
comparing the total revenue budget requirement of the current approved capital 
programme with an equivalent calculation of the revenue budget requirement arising 
from the proposed capital programme.  

 

Incremental Impact of 
Capital Investment 
Decisions 

2016/17 
Estimate 

£ 

2017/18 
Estimate 

£ 

2018/19 
Estimate 

£ 

2019/20 
Estimate 

£ 

Increase in Band D Council 
Tax* 3.88 5.99 5.77 3.89 

 

Capital Financing Requirement 2015/16 
Estimate 

£m 

2016/17 
Estimate 

£m 

2017/18 
Estimate 

£m 

2018/19 
Estimate 

£m 

Total CFR 360.2 280.6 283.7 283.5 

Page 72



 

*Assumes a 5% increase in 16/17 and 4.0% cumulative thereafter increase in Council Tax 
although no decision has been taken to this effect. The Friars Walk Loan have been excluded 
from these calculation as it is not part of the capital programme. 

 

8. Authorised Limit and Operational Boundary for External Debt: 
8.1 The Council has an integrated treasury management strategy and manages its treasury 

position in accordance with its approved strategy and practice. Overall borrowing will 
therefore arise as a consequence of all the financial transactions of the Council and not 
just those arising from capital spending reflected in the CFR.  

 
8.2 The Authorised Limit sets the maximum level of external borrowing on a gross basis 

(i.e. not net of investments) for the Council. It is measured on a daily basis against all 
external-borrowing items on the Balance Sheet (i.e. long and short term borrowing, 
overdrawn bank balances and long term liabilities). This Prudential Indicator separately 
identifies borrowing from other long-term liabilities such as finance leases. It is consistent 
with the Council’s existing commitments, its proposals for capital expenditure and 
financing and its approved treasury management policy statement and practices.   

 
8.3 The Authorised Limit has been set on the estimate of the most likely, prudent but not 

worst case scenario with sufficient headroom over and above this to allow for unusual 
cash movements.  

 
8.4 The Authorised Limit is the statutory limit determined under Section 3(1) of the Local 

Government Act 2003 (referred to in the legislation as the Affordable Limit). 
 

Authorised Limit for 
External Debt 

2016/17 
Estimate 

£m 

2017/18 
Estimate 

£m 

2018/19 
Estimate 

£m  

Borrowing  350 259 255 

Other Long-term 
Liabilities 47 46 44 

Total 397 305 299 

 

8.5 The Operational Boundary links directly to the Council’s estimates of the CFR and 
estimates of other cashflow requirements. This indicator is based on the same estimates 
as the Authorised Limit reflecting the most likely, prudent but not worst case scenario but 
without the additional headroom included within the Authorised Limit.   

 
8.6 The Head of Finance has delegated authority, within the total limit for any individual year, 

to effect movement between the separately agreed limits for borrowing and other long-
term liabilities. Decisions will be based on the outcome of financial option appraisals and 
best value considerations. Any movement between these separate limits will be reported 
in the next regular capital/treasury monitoring report to be submitted to Cabinet/Council.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

9. Adoption of the CIPFA Treasury Management Code: 
9.1 This indicator demonstrates that the Council has adopted the principles of best practice. 
 

Operational Boundary 
for External Debt 

2016/17 
Estimate 

£m 

2017/18 
Estimate 

£m  

2018/19 
Estimate 

£m 

Borrowing 330 239 235 

Other Long-term 
Liabilities 47 46 44 

Total 377 285 279 

Page 73



 

Adoption of the CIPFA Code of Practice in Treasury Management 

The Council approved the adoption of the CIPFA Treasury Management Code at 
its Council meeting on 29th June 2009. 

 
The Council has incorporated the changes from the revised CIPFA Code of Practice into 
its treasury policies and procedures and will update its treasury management practice 
documentation in due course.  

 
 
 

10.  Upper Limits for Fixed Interest Rate Exposure and Variable Interest Rate 
Exposure: 

10.1 These indicators allow the Council to manage the extent to which it is exposed to 
changes in interest rates.  This Council calculates these limits on net principal 
outstanding sums, (i.e. fixed rate debt net of fixed rate investments)  

 
10.2 The upper limit for variable rate exposure has been set to ensure that the Council is 

not exposed to interest rate rises that could adversely impact on the revenue budget.  
The limit allows for the use of variable rate debt to offset exposure to changes in short-
term rates on investments.  

 

 Existing limit 
 
at 

31/03/15 
% 

2016/17 
Estimate 

% 

2017/18 
Estimate 

% 

2018/19 
Estimate 

% 

2019/20 
Estimate 

% 

Upper Limit for 
Fixed Interest Rate 
Exposure 

100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 

Upper Limit for 
Variable Interest  
Rate Exposure 

50% 50% 50% 50% 50% 

 

10.3 The limits above provide the necessary flexibility within which decisions will be made 
for drawing down new loans on a fixed or variable rate basis; the decisions will 
ultimately be determined by expectations of anticipated interest rate movements as set 
out in the Council’s treasury management strategy.  

 

11. Maturity Structure of Fixed Rate borrowing: 
11.1 This indicator highlights the existence of any large concentrations of fixed rate debt 

needing to be replaced at times of uncertainty over interest rates and is designed to 
protect against excessive exposures to interest rate changes in any one period, in 
particular in the course of the next ten years.   

 
11.2 It is calculated as the amount of projected borrowing that is fixed rate maturing in each 

period as a percentage of total projected borrowing that is fixed rate. The maturity of 
borrowing is determined by reference to the earliest date on which the lender can 
require payment.  

 
11.3 LOBO’s are classified as maturing on the next call date i.e. the earliest date that the 

lender can require repayment and as most of these loans are on six monthly notice 
period, then they increase the under 12 months percentage accordingly, though it is 
considered unlikely all will be called within one financial year.   

 
11.4 The greatest concentration of debt is in the financial year 2019/20 when the stock 

issue (£40m) matures. A strategy to deal with the repayment will be prepared closer to 
the maturity date. 

Page 74



 

 

Maturity structure of fixed 
rate borrowing (Newport CC 
debt)  

Existing level  
at 31/12/15 

% 

Lower Limit 
for 2016/17 

% 

Upper Limit 
for 2016/17 

% 

under 12 months  18% 0% 40% 

12 months and within 24 
months 

18% 0% 20% 

24 months and within 5 years 19% 0% 70% 

5 years and within 10 years 14% 0% 50% 

10 years and within 20 years 7% 0% 30% 

20 years and within 30 years 7% 0% 20% 

30 years and within 40 years 3% 0% 20% 

40 years and within 50 years 7% 0% 20% 

50 years and above 7% 0% 20% 

   
 

12. Credit Risk: 
12.1 The Council considers security, liquidity and yield, in that order, when making 

investment decisions. 
 
12.2 Credit ratings remain an important element of assessing credit risk, but they are not a 

sole feature in the Council’s assessment of counterparty credit risk. 
 
12.3 The Council also considers alternative assessments of credit strength, and information 

on corporate developments of and market sentiment towards counterparties. The 
following key tools are used to assess credit risk: 

 Published credit ratings of the financial institution (minimum A- or equivalent) and its 

sovereign (minimum AA+ or equivalent for non-UK sovereigns); 

 Sovereign support mechanisms; 

 Credit default swaps (where quoted); 

 Share prices (where available); 

 Economic fundamentals, such as a country’s net debt as a percentage of its GDP; 

 Corporate developments, news, articles, markets sentiment and momentum; 

 Subjective overlay.  

12.4 The only indicators with prescriptive values remain to be credit ratings. Other indicators 
of creditworthiness are considered in relative rather than absolute terms. 

 
13. Upper Limit for total principal sums invested over 364 days: 
13.1 The purpose of this limit is to contain exposure to the possibility of loss that may arise 

as a result of the Council having to seek early repayment of the sums invested. For 
2016/17, this is expected to be significant due to the sale of Friars Walk, however risks 
will be reduced by using only the approved investment counterparties limits. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Upper Limit for 
total principal 
sums invested over 
364 days 

2016/17 
Estimate 

£m 

2017/18 
Estimate 

£m 

2018/19 
Estimate 

£m 

2019/20 
Estimate 

£m 

 100 5 5 5 

Page 75



 

Appendix E – Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Statement 2016/17 
 

1. The Welsh Government’s Guidance on Minimum Revenue Provision (issued in 2010) 
places a duty on local authorities to make a prudent provision for debt redemption.  
Guidance on Minimum Revenue Provision has been issued by the Welsh Ministers 
and local authorities are required to “have regard” to such Guidance under section 
21(1A) of the Local Government Act 2003.   

 
2. The four MRP options available are: 

- Option 1: Regulatory Method 
- Option 2: CFR Method 
- Option 3: Asset Life Method 
- Option 4: Depreciation Method 

 
3. MRP in 2016/17: Options 1 and 2 may be used only for supported (i.e. financing 

costs deemed to be supported through Revenue Support Grant from Central 
Government) Non-HRA capital expenditure funded from borrowing. Methods of 
making prudent provision for unsupported Non-HRA capital expenditure include 
Options 3 and 4 (which may also be used for supported Non-HRA capital expenditure 
if the Authority chooses). There is no requirement to charge MRP in respect of HRA 
capital expenditure funded from borrowing. 

 
4. The MRP Statement will be submitted to Council before the start of the 2016/17 

financial year. If it is ever proposed to vary the terms of the original MRP Statement 
during the year, a revised statement should be put to Authority at that time. 
 

5. The Authority will apply Option 1/Option 2 in respect of supported Non-HRA capital 
expenditure funded from borrowing and Option 3/Option 4 in respect of unsupported 
Non-HRA capital expenditure funded from borrowing. 

  
6. MRP in respect of leases and Private Finance Initiative schemes brought on Balance 

Sheet under the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) based 
Accounting Code of Practice will match the annual principal repayment for the 
associated deferred liability. 
 

7. In December 2013 the Council approved a loan of up to £89.1million to Queensberry 
Real Estates (Newport) Ltd (QRE) to fund the building of the Friars Walk 
Development.  The loan is anticipated to be paid off in full via a capital receipt at the 
end of the three-year period.  On this basis, the Council will not be required to make 
MRP charges to the revenue budget in relation to the Friars Walk Development loan 
as the borrowing will be paid off in full at the end of the scheme. 

  

Page 76



 

Appendix 8 – MTFP 
 

 
 
  

2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 TOTAL

Pressures

Inflation 1,886          2,041        2,905        3,005         9,837        

Other 10,553        3,192        3,007        3,038         19,790      

Total Pressures 12,439        5,233        5,912        6,043         29,627      

Technical Adjustments 1,900-          -            -            -             1,900-        

(INCREASE)/DECREASE IN REVENUE SUPPORT GRANT(-0.7% 

16/17, 1.5% thereafter, flat 2019/20) 112             3,137        3,090        -             6,339        

Increase in tax base - C.Tax @ 15/16 rate 549-             - - - 549-           

C. Tax @ 3.9% in 16/17 (4% thereafter) 2,054-          2,126-        2,146-        2,166-         8,491-        

Less consequential increase in benefits 599             489 493 498 2,079        

GAP 8,646          6,733        7,350        4,375         27,105      

Savings 8,647          3,047        676           510            

Balance - @ -1.5% WG reduction (2017/18 and 2018/19) 0                 3,686        6,674        3,865         14,226      

Balance - @ -1.25% WG reduction* N/A 3,164 6,165 3,865         13,194

Balance - @ -1% WG reduction* N/A 2,641 5,654 3,865         12,160

Balance - @ -2% WG reduction* N/A 4,732 7,683 3,865         16,280

*19/20 assumes no reduction in WG Grant

Page 77



 

Appendix 9  Projected 2016/17 Financial Resilience, Earmarked Reserves & Summary 
of ‘Invest to Save’ spend and Forecast 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

LEVEL OF COUNCIL/SCHOOL RESERVES (CF) AND EARMARKED RESERVES (ER) 

Year Ending 31st March 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

£m £m £m £m £m (est)

Earmarked Reserves 57.4                           64.5                71.2               76.1               84.7                

Council Funds 5.0                              5.0                  5.0                 8.9                 8.9                  

ER % of Budget 24% 27% 28% 29% 32%

CF % of Budget 2.1% 2.1% 2.0% 3.4% 3.4%

School Funds 3.6                              4.4                  4.2                 4.8                 3.6                  

BUDGETED SOURCES OF REVENUE FUNDING  

Total Revenue Funding 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2016/17 
£,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 % of budget 

Revenue Support Grant and NDR 192,799 
                      209,035 

          214,826 
         209,254 

         209,142 
          79% 

Council Tax 44,457 
                        45,763 

            49,104 
           52,117 

           54,720 
            21% 

Page 78



 

 
 

 
 
Revenue Savings Achieved and Unachieved 2015-16 

 
 

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE AND RATIOS

Ratio Calculation 2011/2012 2012/2013 2013/2014 2014/2015

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Net Worth (Asset- Liabilities) 192,001         53,668          96,061          44,764           

Net Worth (excPension Liab.) (Asset- Liabilities) 387,049         306,220        280,675        296,914         

Working Capital Ratio (Curr. Assets /Curr. 

Liabilities ) 0.59                0.68               0.79               0.89                

Gearing Ratio (Borrowing / Total 

Reserves) 50.1% 44.1% 51.2% 45.5%

REVENUE PROJECTED OUTURN POSITION 2015/16 (Period 8 reported at January Cabinet)

Directorate Net Expenditure 

Projected 

Outturn Variance Variance 

Budget £'000 £'000 %

Children & Young People 20,469                       20,721           252                1.23               

Adult & Community Services 38,169                       38,604           435 1.14               

Education (inc schools) 100,506                     101,833         1,327 1.32               

Regeneration, Investment & Housing 9,441                         9,432             (9) 0.10-               

Streetscene & City Services 17,507                       17,362           (145) 0.83-               

Corporate Services 16,170                       15,593           (577) 3.57-               

Total Directorates 202,262                     203,545         1,283 0.63               

Capital Financing 28,960                       27,698           (1,262) 4.36-               

Contingency/ Provisions 5,165                         4,303             (862) 16.69-             

Levies / other 20,119                       19,098           (1,021) 5.07-               

Reserves /Transfer 4,864                         6,602             1,738 35.73             

Council Tax -                             280-                 (280) N/A

Total Budget 261,370                     260,966         404-                0.15-               

MTFP SCENARIO 

2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 Total  
£'000 £'000 £'000 £,000 

Financial Pressures 12,439                         5,233               5,912               6,043               29,524             

112                              3,137               3,090               - 6,348                
Budget Requirement Reduction 12,551                         8,370               9,002               6,043               35,872             
Council Tax @ 3.9% 16/17 (4% thereafter) 2,004 -                          1,637 -              1,652 -              1,668 -              7,408 -               
Savings 10,547                         3,003               676                  510                  14,736             

0                              3,730               6,674               3,865               13,728             
RSG Reduction scenarios 

based on 1.25% reduction  N/A 3,207         6,165        3,865        13,237       
based on 1.00% reduction  N/A 2,685         5,654        3,865        12,204       
based on 2% reduction  N/A 4,776         7,682        3,865        16,323       

Shortfall to Requirement 

Funding Reductions (-0.7% 16/17, - 
1.5% thereafter, flat 19/20) 

Page 79



 

 
Projected Earmarked Reserves 
 

    
Movements between 

Reserves 
Via Comprehensive I&E 

Account   
  

  
Balance at  
31-Mar-15 

Transfers 
Out Transfers In 

Transfers 
Out Transfers In 

Balance at  
31-Mar-16 Type Purpose/rationale for reserve 

  £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000     

Council Fund: (8,926) 
    

(8,926) General General Reserve 

Balances held by 
schools for future use (4,760) 

  
1,171 

 
(3,589) School's 

Balances held by schools for their future 
use 

        

  
Earmarked 
Reserves: 

       

  

Music Service (165) 
    

(165) Risk 

This is a general reserve retained by the 
Gwent wide Music Service and a traded 
service and belongs to all trading 
partners. Newport holds the reserve as 
the hosting authority. The reserve is 
held as a balance to cater for years 
where trading income is below 
expenditure and/or one off costs for re-
organisation are incurred.  

Capital Expenditure (51) 
   

(1,500) (1,551) Risk 

Amount included to fund risks of 
delivery of Capital Projects e.g. abortive 
costs, cost overruns 

Insurance Reserve (1,772) 
    

(1,772) Risk 

To assist in management of the 
Council's insurance risks and provide 
funds, over and above existing 
insurance provisions for excessive levels 
of claims/costs in any year.  

MMI Insurance 
Reserve (665) 

   
(250) (915) Risk 

To assist in future funding requirements 
of MMI in line with the agreed 'Scheme 
of Arrangement' 

P
age 80



 

    
Movements between 

Reserves 
Via Comprehensive I&E 

Account   
  

  
Balance at  
31-Mar-15 

Transfers 
Out Transfers In 

Transfers 
Out Transfers In 

Balance at  
31-Mar-16 Type Purpose/rationale for reserve 

  £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000     

Legal Claims (100) 
    

(100) Risk 

Risk of future legal claims in relation to 
a range of charges such as Social 
Services, complaints and non-
compliance etc 

Health & Safety (16) 
    

(16) Risk 

Responding to inspections and reports 
from Health & Saftey Executive 

Council Tax 
Reduction (500) 

    
(500) Risk 

Council responsible for cost overruns on 
C Tax benefits, which is demand led. 
Reserve covers specific budget risk on 
this area and established when grant 
funding transferred into RSG 

Education 
Achievement Service (92) 

    
(92) Risk 

Reserve held against Newports share of 
any redundancy costs that may arise 
from a restructure of the service as a 
result of funding reductions from grant 
allocations. Newport is a partner in the 
service and has to take a share of any 
costs that may arise. 

Schools 
Redundancies (225) 

   
(179) (404) Risk 

Reserve has been created from 
contributions from Schools to cater for 
redundancy costs that arise through 
schools who face financial issues. The 
value has been negotiaited with the 
schools as a contribution towards the 
costs that have to be met by the LA. 

Friars Walk (2,629) 
   

(3,000) (5,629) Risk 

established to assist with potential 
future funding/risks in relation to the 
Friars Walk Scheme 

P
age 81



 

    
Movements between 

Reserves 
Via Comprehensive I&E 

Account   
  

  
Balance at  
31-Mar-15 

Transfers 
Out Transfers In 

Transfers 
Out Transfers In 

Balance at  
31-Mar-16 Type Purpose/rationale for reserve 

  £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000     

Gem Services 
Reserves (100) 

    
(100) Risk 

Reserve created from service income 
levels over and above grant income in 
2014/15 to cater for anticpated 
redundancy costs anticipated from 
restructuring to cater for different 
langauge sets, and potential reduction 
in grant income. 

Pay Reserve (7,302) 3,500 
 

1,350 
 

(2,452) 
Enabling / 

Risk 

Total Reward team costs, outstanding 
equal pay claimants, hardship 
payments. 

Invest to Save (7,520) 
 

(3,500) 
 

(2,650) (13,670) Enabling 

To enable funding of specific 
change/efficiency projects which 
achieve savings to the revenue budget 

Super Connected 
Cities (1,041) 

  
250 

 
(791) Enabling 

Funding for Community Safety Network 
over a seven year period including 
project costs 

Landfill (fines 
reserve) (163) 

  
40 

 
(123) Enabling 

Recycling initiative (door knocking 
campaign) to increase recycling targets 

Christmas Lights (75) 
  

29 
 

(46) Enabling 

Recover costs associated with Christmas 
Lights until alternative funding sources 
are found. 

Capital Works (1,250) 
   

(500) (1,750) Enabling 

Established to fund specific capital 
schemes which can then be included in 
the Capital Programme which would 
otherwise require borrowing costs to be 
incurred, during current challenging 
financial period.  

P
age 82



 

    
Movements between 

Reserves 
Via Comprehensive I&E 

Account   
  

  
Balance at  
31-Mar-15 

Transfers 
Out Transfers In 

Transfers 
Out Transfers In 

Balance at  
31-Mar-16 Type Purpose/rationale for reserve 

  £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000     

Usable Capital 
Receipts (6,968) 1,657 

  
(1,300) (6,611) Enabling 

Holds proceeds from the sale of 
property, plant and equipment, used to 
finance new capital expenditure. 
Currently reserved for Council 
contribution to 21C Schools programme 

STEP School 
Computers (879) 

    
(879) Smoothing 

Reserve to match agreed income and 
expenditure of 3 year STEP program for 
schools. Schools charged annual 
amount and any excess/deficit due to 
timing differences held here. 

Municipal Elections (86) 
    

(86) Smoothing 

Reserve used to smooth over significant 
differences in annual budget required 
over a cyclical period whilst keeping 
budget at a stable annual amount.   

Local Development 
Plan (476) 

   
(52) (528) Smoothing 

Reserve used to smooth over significant 
differences in annual budget required 
over a cyclical period whilst keeping 
budget at a stable annual amount.  
Related to production and inspection of 
the LDP and SPG's 

Glan Usk PFI (418) 
   

(552) (970) Smoothing 

Established to smooth out funding 
differences that arised from funding 
available and payments to the 
contractor - reserve will balance over 
life of project 

P
age 83



 

    
Movements between 

Reserves 
Via Comprehensive I&E 

Account   
  

  
Balance at  
31-Mar-15 

Transfers 
Out Transfers In 

Transfers 
Out Transfers In 

Balance at  
31-Mar-16 Type Purpose/rationale for reserve 

  £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000     

Southern Distributor 
Road PFI (42,484) 

   
(2,014) (44,498) Smoothing 

Established to smooth out funding 
differences that arised from funding 
available and payments to the 
contractor - reserve will balance over 
life of project 

Works of art (21) 
    

(21) Other To fund purchases for the collections.   

School Works (424) 
    

(424) Other 

Reserve specifically for identified school 
works - funded by school's themselves. 
Reserve allows schools to build up 
specific scheme reserves over a number 
of years, where required. 

Theatre & Arts 
Centre (233) 

    
(233) Other 

Council agreed reserve as condition of 
Art's Council funding of the Riverfront 
Theatre.   

Cymorth Income (38) 
    

(38) Other 

To fund the provision of Domestic 
Abuse Services.   

Pupil Referral Unit (60) 
    

(60) Other 

Specific reserve for development of PRU 
over and above refurbishment of new 
premises. 

Chartist Commission (50) 
  

50 
 

- Other 

To fund the replacement of the Chartist 
Mural.  

Gypsy and Traveller 
Site (20) 

  
20 

 
- Other 

To carry out preparation, design, 
consultancy activities with the 
development of the Gypsy and Traveller 
site identified in the LDP 

P
age 84



 

    
Movements between 

Reserves 
Via Comprehensive I&E 

Account   
  

  
Balance at  
31-Mar-15 

Transfers 
Out Transfers In 

Transfers 
Out Transfers In 

Balance at  
31-Mar-16 Type Purpose/rationale for reserve 

  £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000     

Homelessness 
Prevention (38) 

    
(38) Other 

There is a minimum amount that needs 
to be spent on homelessness 
prevention on an on-going basis.  The 
revenue budget is continually under 
pressure of overspending due to the 
obligation placed on the Authority to 
house clients 

Environmental Health 
- Improve Air Quality (50) 

    
(50) Other 

To undertake highways work in a 
specific area to improve air quality and 
reduce noise pollution 

Refurbishment of a 
Children / Older 
People Homes (80) 

  
22 

 
(58) Other 

Reserve established from 2014/15 
underspending. There is a need to 
refurbish our Residential Homes on a 
regular basis to attract Service Users 
and more importantly, to ensure they 
meet the inspectors criteria. 

ECDL Training 
Package (50) 

    
(50) Other 

Reserve established from 2014/15 
underspending. To fund ECDL and 
online IT training packages  

City Deal Reserve (50) 
  

50 
 

- Other 

To fund initial contribution to the City 
Deal project 

Great Western Cities (50) 
  

3 
 

(47) Other 

To fund the anticipated councils share 
of an analysis of the economic impact of 
the three cities   

  (89,827) 5,157 (3,500) 2,985 (11,997) (97,182) 
  

          
 

P
age 85



 

 

Invest To Save - Summary Forecast   

    

  £'000 

Balance B/F 31.03.2015 (7,520) 

Transfer from base budget (950) 

In-year transfer to reserve (1,700) 

Transfer from pay reserve (3,500) 

Total Balance prior to spend (13,670) 

Total Forecast Spend 2015/16 2,392 

Invest to Save Forecast balance 31.03.2016 (11,278) 

    

Further Funding Required:-   

Bids & Change/Efficiency proposals as at 
February 2016   

    

2016/17 3,730 

2017/18 857 

2018/19 75 

 
  

Remaining Invest to Save reserve available for 
future Change/Efficiency Programme (6,616) 

    
 

Page 86



 

Report 
Newport City Council  
 
Part 1  
 
Date:  24 February 2016 
 
Item No:     
 

Subject Strategic Equalities Plan 2016 - 20 
 

Purpose Every four years the Council is required to agree a new Strategic 

Equalities Plan. The attached report outlines the proposed Plan for 
2016-20 and seeks Cabinet approval for this to be recommended to 
Council for approval 

 

Author  Partnership and Policy Manager 

 

Ward All 

 

Summary  The Council has specific equalities duties placed on it through a range 

of equalities and related legislation. As a requirement of the Equalities 
Act 2010 we are required to develop a Strategic Equalities Plan that 
shows how we will meet these requirements as they relate to specific 
legislation (notably the Equalities Act 2010, Human Rights Act 1998, 
Wellbeing of Future Generations Act 2015 and Welsh Language 
(Wales) Measure 2011).  

  
 The report and attached draft Strategic Equalities Plan detail proposed 

equality objectives for the next four years based on an analysis of 
data, consultation responses and development of current objectives.  

 
 Cabinet is asked to recommend the draft Strategic Equalities Plan (or 

an amended one) to Council for agreement.   
 

Proposal To approve and adopt the attached Plan 

 
Action by  Head of People and Business Change 

 

Timetable March 2016 

 
This report was prepared after consultation with: 

 
 Cabinet Member People and Business Change 
 Cabinet Member Skills and Work 
 Cabinet Member Street Scene 
 Equalities Champion 
 Anti-Poverty Champion 

Page 87

Agenda Item 6.



 

 Head of Regeneration , Investment and Housing, Newport City 
Council 

 Interim Head of Street Scene 
 Head of Law and Regulations (Monitoring Officer) 
 Head of Finance (Chief Finance Officer) 
 Head of People and Business Change 
 Public Consultation 

 
 

 

Signed 

Page 88



 

1. Background 
 
Local Authorities are required to produce and publish a Strategic Equalities Plan 
every three years as part of their specific equalities duties (as set out in the Equality 
Act (2010)). The following plan sets out the proposed Equality and Welsh language 
commitments, and related equality objectives, for Newport City Council for the next 
three years (including draft actions). It builds on the Strategic Equality Plan 2012 and 
the Welsh Language Scheme (being replaced by the Welsh Language Standards 
from April 1st 2016).  
 
This plan sets out the council’s commitments under the following legislation: 
• The Equality Act 2010 and the Statutory Duties (Wales) Regulations 2011 
• The Welsh Language (Wales) Measure 2011 and Welsh Language Standards 
2015 
• The Human Rights Act 1998  
• The Well-being of Future Generations Act - a framework for all council work.  
 
The equality objectives closely map those chosen and implemented over the 
previous three years, but the actions reflect the gains that we have made and where 
we are today. The Equality and Human Rights Commission’s draft challenges issued 
in Wales in October 2015 have been considered in choosing our objectives.  
 

Legislative Framework: 
 
The Equality Act 2010 sets down Public Sector Duties that apply to all the Council’s 
functions. There are two positive duties and one negative duty: 
 
• Promoting equality of opportunity 
• Promoting good community relations 
• Eliminating discrimination, harassment and victimisation 
 
The Welsh Language (Wales) Measure 2011 and Welsh Language Standards 
ensure that: 
 
• The Welsh language has official status in Wales 
• Welsh speakers have language rights in Wales to receive Welsh language 

services from public bodies 
• The Welsh language cannot be treated any less favourably than the English 
language 
 
The Human Rights Act 1998 ensures that human rights and equality are inextricably 
linked. Article 14 of the European Convention of Human Rights prohibits 
discrimination ‘on any grounds such as sex, race, colour, language, religion, political 
or other opinion, national or social origin, association with a national minority, 
property, birth or other status.’  
 
The Wellbeing of Future Generations Act 2015 puts in place a sustainable 
development principle which means that ‘a body (the Council) must act in a manner 
which seeks to ensure that the needs of the present are met without compromising 
the ability of future generations to meet their own needs.’ In 2017, as a Council we 
will be required to develop and agree Wellbeing Objectives in line with the 
sustainable development principle and seven wellbeing goals within the Act. The 
proposed equality objectives have therefore been developed with this in mind. 
 

Page 89



 

Proposed Equality Objectives 2016-20 
 
In line with the above legislation, assessment of data held (Unified Needs 
Assessment and Ward Profiles) and consultation the following Equality Objectives 
have been developed for consideration: 
 
 

Well-being goals and 
Newport City Council Equality Objectives 

 
A more equal Wales 
 

1 Diversity in the workplace – Engaging Employees  
The Council’s workforce will be representative of the population we service and 
the workforce are involved in decisions that affect them 
 

2 Engagement and democratic participation 
We will involve people in the development of Council services that affect them and 
base Council decisions on what people need 
 

3 Improving Access to Services 
People can access all the Council services and activities that they need in terms 
of physical access and communication access etc. 
 

4 Tackling Poverty 
We will work to reduce poverty, especially persistent poverty amongst some of our 
poorest people and communities, and reducing the likelihood that people will 
become poor 

 
A Wales of cohesive communities 
 

5 Cohesive Communities and tackling hate crime  
People feel they are a part of Newport society and live their lives free from abuse 
and harassment.  
 

6 Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence 
People who are subject or witness to domestic abuse are supported by the 
Council and its partners in their current situation, and through any changes they 
wish to make. 
 

7 Homelessness 
To provide a safe, supporting, empowering and non-judgemental environment for 
homeless and marginalised people so that they can achieve their potential 

 
A Wales of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language 
 

8 Compliance with the Welsh Language Standards 
We will promote our bilingual public services and increase the use of Welsh in 
Newport 
 

9 Corporate Compliance 
Strategic leadership, governance arrangements, ensuring standards are high and 
consistent across all the council and areas of responsibility. 
 

Page 90



 

 
 

2. Financial Summary 
 
There are no specific costs associated with the consideration and approval of the 
Strategic Equalities Plan. However, work undertaken by Service Areas to meet the 
objectives will need to be considered when setting future budgets. 
 

3. Risks 
 

 
* Taking account of proposed mitigation measures 

 
 

4. Links to Council Policies and Priorities 
 
• Corporate Plan – Standing up for Newport 
• Single Integrated Plan – Feeling good about Newport 
 

5. Options Available 
 
Option 1: Accept that Strategic Equalities Plan and recommend to Council for 
approval 
 
Option 2: Make changes to the Strategic Equalities Plan and following this 
recommend to Council for approval 
 
Option 3: Not to agree the Strategic Equalities Plan 
 

Risk Impact  of 
Risk if it 
occurs* 
(H/M/L) 

Probability 
of risk 
occurring 
(H/M/L) 

What is the Council doing 
or what has it done to 
avoid the risk or reduce 
its effect 

Who is 
responsible 
for dealing 
with the risk? 

Council does 
not agree the 
Strategic 
Equalities 
Plan 2016-19 

M L The Plan is being 
presented for 
consideration and 
Cabinet/Council have the 
opportunity to make 
amendments to the Plan 

Head of 
People and 
Business 
Change 

Council 
unable to 
deliver 
against 
objectives 

M M Whilst every effort has 
been made to ensure that 
the objectives are realistic 
and are deliverable within 
current and probably 
future resources there is 
a possibility that we will 
be unable to meet some 
objectives due to 
changing circumstances. 
This will be monitored by 
the Strategic Equalities 
Group and reported to 
Cabinet annually  

Head of 
People and 
Business 
Change 

Page 91



 

6. Preferred Option and Why 
 
The preferred Option would be Option 1 or Option 2. 
 
 

7. Comments of Chief Financial Officer 
 

There are no direct financial consequences contained within this report.  
Service areas should, however, consider the impact that the proposed 
Strategic Equalities Plan will have on future budgets. 

 
 

8. Comments of Monitoring Officer 
 
As part of the Council’s Public Sector Equality Duty under the Equality Act 
2010 and the Statutory Duties (Wales) Regulations 2011, there is a statutory 
requirement to produce and publish a Strategic Equalities Plan every three 
years, setting out the Council’s strategic equalities commitments and 
objectives. The draft Plan for 2016-19 complies with the Council’s legal 
obligations under the Equalities and Human Rights legislation and the 
objectives also reflect the Welsh Language Standards and the over-arching 
well-being goals set out in the  Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 
2015. 

 
 

9. Staffing Implications: Comments of Head of People and 
Business Change 

 
There are no specific staffing implications contained within this report. The 
Strategic Equalities Plan sets out how we plan to meet our legislative 
responsibilities in relation to Equalities. The proposed objectives are an 
evolution of those things the Council previously felt were important and have 
a sound evidence base. Once agreed Cabinet and Council will need to 
ensure through their monitoring and challenge that service areas have 
considered their obligations within Service Planning.  
 

10. Comments of Cabinet Member 
 

The development of this Strategic Equalities Plan has been overseen by the 
Strategic Equalities Group, of which I am Chair. I believe that it appropriately 
reflects the equality priorities that we should focus on to make Newport a 
fairer place to live, learn, work and enjoy life.  
 

11. Ward Member Comments 
  
 Not applicable. 
 

12. Scrutiny Committees 
 

The operational delivery against the Objectives will be within Service Plans 
and considered as part of the Service Plan development and monitoring 
processes.  

 

Page 92



 

13. Equalities Impact Assessment 
 

The Strategic Equalities Plan sets out how the Council plans to address 
inequity within the organisation and wider city. Whilst it specifically does not 
require a Fairness and Equality Impact Assessment it is a monitoring tool to 
ensure our on-going compliance with legislation.  

 

14. Children and Families (Wales) Measure 
 

The overall Strategic Equalities Plan has no specific requirement, other than 
the consultation undertaken, to specifically consult with children and young 
people. However, in further developing the action plans to support this overall 
Plan, specific consultation will be required as we seek to develop 
interventions that directly affect children and young people. This will be 
monitored by the Strategic Equalities Group.  

 

15. Consultation  
 

A consultation process with the public and partners has been undertaken. 
Consultation feedback on the budget process and Improvement Priorities has 
also been considered, along with the views of the Strategic Equality Group.  

 

16. Background Papers 
 
Draft Strategic Equalities Plan 2016-20 
 
 
 
  

Page 93



 

 
 

 

 

DRAFT 

 

 

 

Newport City Council  
Strategic Equality Plan and  
Equality Objectives 
 
2016-2020 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
Mae’r ddogfen hon ar gael yn Gymraeg /This document is available in Welsh  
 
I gael copi o’r ddogfen yma mewn unrhyw fformat arall e.e. Braile, Print Bras 
cysylltwch a /  
 
To receive a copy of this document in any other format e.g. Braille, Large 
Print etc. contact 

 
Corporate Diversity and Policy Officer 
info@newport.gov.uk 
Telephone symbol 01633 656656 
www.newport.gov.uk 

 

 

Page 94

mailto:info@newport.gov.uk
http://www.newport.gov.uk/


 

 
Table of Contents 
Introduction ............................................................................................................. 10 
1 Equality and Welsh legislation and equality objectives .............................. 10 

1.1 The Equality Act 2010 ....................................................................................... 10 
1.2 The Welsh Language (Wales) Measure 2011 .................................................. 11 
1.3 The Human Rights Act 1998 ............................................................................. 11 
1.4 The Well-Being of Future Generations Act 2015 .............................................. 11 
 
2 Newport City Council Equality Objectives ................................................... 12 
 
3 Customers ....................................................................................................... 13 

3.1 The principle of accessible services ................................................................. 13 
3.2 How we offer services ....................................................................................... 13 
3.3  Positive Action .................................................................................................. 14 
3.4 Communication ................................................................................................. 14 
3.5 Buying goods and services ............................................................................... 14 

3.6 Grants and Third Parties ................................................................................... 14 
3.7 Partnerships ..................................................................................................... 15 
3.8 Engagement ..................................................................................................... 15 

3.9 Complaints and compliments ............................................................................ 15 
 
4 Discrimination, harassment and victimisation............................................. 16 

4.1 Discrimination ................................................................................................... 16 

4.6 Harassment ...................................................................................................... 16 
4.7 Victimisation ..................................................................................................... 17 
4.8 Discrimination Table ......................................................................................... 17 

4.9 Hate Crime and Hate Incidents ......................................................................... 18 
 
5 Performance/ standards - how we deliver the policy .................................. 18 
5.1 Strategic Responsibility .................................................................................... 18 
5.2 Performance ..................................................................................................... 18 
5.3 Decisions .......................................................................................................... 19 

5.4 Fairness and Equality Impact Assessments (F&EIA) ........................................ 19 

5.5 Monitoring service delivery ............................................................................... 19 

5.6 Publishing information ...................................................................................... 20 
 
6 You - the employee ......................................................................................... 20 
6.1 The People Plan ............................................................................................... 20 
6.2 Employment ...................................................................................................... 20 

6.3 Requests in relation to a protected characteristic ............................................. 20 
6.4 Positive action .................................................................................................. 20 
6.5 Monitoring and publishing information on employment ..................................... 21 
6.6 Pay and reward................................................................................................. 21 
6.7 Positive about disabled people ......................................................................... 21 

6.8 Employee engagement ..................................................................................... 22 

6.9 Organisational Development and training ......................................................... 22 

 
7 Newport City Council Equality Objectives and Equality Action Plan 

2016-2020 ........................................................................................................ 23 

Page 95



 

 

Introduction 
 

Newport City Council is a unitary authority formed in 1996, the 8th largest in 
Wales providing all major services such as education, finance, social services, 
planning and highways. There are approximately 147,000 people living in 
Newport.  
 
The following plan sets out our Equality and Welsh language commitments, 
and related equality objectives. Actions can be found in the action plan. This 
Plan was approved by the City Council on the 03/03/16. It builds on the 
Strategic Equality Plan 2012 and the Welsh Language Scheme.  
 
This policy sets out the council’s commitments under the following legislation: 

 The Equality Act 2010 and the Statutory Duties (Wales) Regulations 2011 

 The Welsh Language (Wales) Measure 2011 and Welsh Language 
Standards 2015 

 The Human Rights Act 1998  

 The Well-being of Future Generations Act - a framework for all council 
work.  

 
The equality objectives closely map those chosen and implemented over the 
previous four years, but the actions reflect the gains that we have made and 
where we are today. The Equality and Human Rights Commission’s draft 
challenges issued in Wales in October 2015 have been considered in 
choosing our objectives.  
  

1 Equality and Welsh legislation and equality objectives  
 
The legislation below affects people, members of the public, partners and 
staff, and all services, including service delivered in partnership or by others 
on our behalf. 

1.1 The Equality Act 2010 

The nine protected characteristics of the 2010 Equality Act include everybody: 
 

Age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, 
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief,  
sex, and sexual orientation.  

 
The Equality Act sets down Public Sector Duties that apply to all the Council’s 
functions. There are two positive duties and one negative duty:- 

 Promoting equality of opportunity 

 Promoting good community relations 

 Eliminating discrimination, harassment and victimisation 
 

Page 96



 

Specific public sector duties for Wales are set out in the Equality Act 2010 
(Statutory Duties) (Wales) Regulations 2011 as issued by the Welsh 
Assembly Government.  

1.2 The Welsh Language (Wales) Measure 2011 and Welsh 
Language Standards 

• The Welsh language has official status in Wales 
• Welsh speakers have language rights in Wales to receive Welsh 

language services from public bodies 
• The Welsh language cannot be treated any less favourably than the 

English language 
 
Newport City Council’s Compliance Notice from the Welsh Language 
Commissioner requires us to comply with a number of standards across 
various themes.  

1.3 The Human Rights Act 1998 (which incorporates the 
European Convention on Human Rights 1950, into British law) 

Human Rights and equality are inextricably linked. Equality is treated as a 
fundamental human right, from the principle of equal respect for the inherent 
dignity of all people. 
 
Article 14 of the European Convention of Human Rights prohibits discrimination 
‘on any grounds such as sex, race, colour, language, religion, political or other 
opinion, national or social origin, association with a national minority, property, 
birth or other status’.   
 
The words ‘other status’  have been held to cover, amongst other things, sexual 
orientation, illegitimacy, marital status, trade union membership, 
transsexualism, disability, carers and imprisonment.  
 
Article 14 can only be used when attached to a complaint relating to another 
article of the Convention such as Article 6:  right to a fair trial, or Article 8: right 
to a private and family life, home and correspondence.  
 
In some instances the Human Rights Act 1998 gives greater rights to people 
than other equalities legislation because it judges treatment against a fixed 
standard and does not rely on comparison between treatment of one group of 
people and another. 
 

1.4 The Well-Being of Future Generations Act 2015 

The Act puts in place a sustainable development principle  which means that 
‘a body (the Council) must act in a manner which seeks to ensure that the 
needs of the present are met without compromising the ability of future 
generations to meet their own needs’ 
 
The council will agree on overarching Well-being Objectives in 2017 in-line with 
the sustainable development principle and the 7 well-being goals. The 

Page 97



 

Equality Objectives will inform those objectives and in turn the Public Service 
Board’s Well-being Plan  (April 2018.)  
 

2 Newport City Council Equality Objectives 

 
These 9 equality objectives have been developed to meet the requirements 
of the Equality Act 2010 and the Welsh Language Measure (Wales) 2011, 
under the framework of the Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015. 
 

Well-being goals and 
Newport City Council Equality Objectives 

 
A more equal Wales 
 

1 Diversity in the workplace – Engaging Employees  
The Council’s workforce will be representative of the population we service and 
the workforce are involved in decisions that affect them 
 

2 Engagement and democratic participation 
We will involve people in the development of Council services that affect them and 
base Council decisions on what people need 
 

3 Improving Access to Services 
People can access all the Council services and activities that they need in terms 
of physical access and communication access etc. 
 

4 Tackling Poverty 
We will work to reduce poverty, especially persistent poverty amongst some of our 
poorest people and communities, and reducing the likelihood that people will 
become poor 

 
A Wales of cohesive communities 
 

5 Cohesive Communities and tackling hate crime  
People feel they are a part of Newport society and live their lives free from abuse 
and harassment.  
 

6 Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence 
People who are subject or witness to domestic abuse are supported by the 
Council and its partners in their current situation, and through any changes they 
wish to make. 
 

7 Homelessness 
To provide a safe, supporting, empowering and non-judgemental environment for 
homeless and marginalised people so that they can achieve their potential 

 
A Wales of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language 
 

8 Compliance with the Welsh Language Standards 
We will promote our bilingual public services and increase the use of Welsh in 
Newport 
 

Page 98



 

9 Corporate Compliance 
Strategic leadership, governance arrangements, ensuring standards are high and 
consistent across all the council and areas of responsibility. 
 

 
 
Some of the themes are inward focused- how the council is improving its 
practices and ensuring good governance under Corporate Compliance. Other 
objectives are outward facing- Engagement and Domestic Abuse, where we 
benefit from working in partnership through the One Newport Public Services 
Board.  
 

The updated objectives underwent extensive consultation and discussions with 
various internal and external stakeholders between November 2015 and 
January 2016. The draft document was subsequently submitted to Cabinet and 
full Council early in 2016.  
 
The Council is committed to an on-going process of consultation and 
engagement with stakeholders throughout the 4-year lifetime of this document 
and any changes needed can be done following the review and evidence 
gathering undertaken for the Annual Report. 
 

3 Customers 
 
3.1 The principle of accessible services 
Our services are open to everyone. We will not discriminate in delivering 
services, and access to services will be of the same quality for all people.  
 
We will promote a bilingual public face and provide a bilingual welcome to 
inform people that services are available in Welsh and to encourage take up. 
 
Some Council services are targeted at people who need more or different 
support, for example children with special educational needs. Other services 
are adaptable so they can be delivered to meet people’s cultural or social 
needs within the mainstream provision.  

 
Under the Equality Act 2010 the Council can only refuse to deliver a service if 
the Council can prove that service is ‘unreasonable ‘or ‘impractical’. However 
this can only apply to particular and unforeseen circumstances. Financial 
constraints can only be referred to in relation to the whole authority budget.  
Relevant WL Standards 1-87 
 

3.2 How we offer services 
We will ensure that people who need our services: 

 Know what services are available 

 Know how to apply for them 

 Can easily access them, with assistance if needed 

 The Council provides translation and interpretation for community 
languages where the lack of these services would place a person at a 
disadvantage – to meet a need, not a preference 

Page 99



 

 The Council will also put in place technology and adaptations where 
possible and practical to ensure access to services for all. 

 The impact upon the customer is of great importance in determining 
what is reasonable. Relevant WL Standards 1-87 

 

3.3  Positive Action 
The Council can take proportionate positive action to address disadvantages 
faced by people of a protected characteristic, or where it would enable or 
encourage participation by an under represented group. An example of this is 
women only swimming sessions. We will gather evidence before taking 
positive action.  
 
3.4 Communication 
The Council will try to get services right for people the first time. We will 
communicate with people in Welsh and English unless we know their choice 
of language/s. We can’t assume that we know what people need so we will: 

 Provide information in a variety of formats including large print, Plain 
English and Cymraeg Clir, Braille, and community languages etc. 
where needed 

 Design products that are easy to read in terms of language and layout  

 Use images that reflect the lives of the people of Newport 

 Attach full contact details to make it easy for people to contact us 

 Ask people their preferred method of communication and where 
possible record it and use it  

 Train and support employees on how to produce accessible public 
information, electronic communication, translation and interpretation  

 
The Council recognises British Sign Language (BSL) as a language in its own 
right. The Council will promote Deaf culture and identity. We will increasingly 
make use of BSL interpretation and recordings and train relevant staff in deaf 
equality and BSL skills. Relevant WL Standards 1-87 
 

3.5 Buying goods and services 
The Council will take into account within its tender evaluation and contracting 
processes, a potential contractor’s approach to equalities in terms of its 
employment practices and service delivery. This will be monitored and 
managed during the life of each contract.  Relevant WL Standards 76-86  
 
3.6 Grants and Third Parties 
All applicants for grants or sponsorship will be asked to demonstrate how they 
promote equality and remove barriers for people in-line with the principles of 
the Equality Act. They will also be required to promote use of the Welsh 
language in-line with the Welsh Language Measure. 
 
The Council will consider the needs of all people and communities, including 
disabled people, when making support available to third sector groups. 
Support will only be offered to those groups with a valid equality statement. 
One Newport Local Service Board has commissioned Gwent Association of 
Voluntary Organisations (GAVO) to develop a Quality Assurance Award for 
third sector organisations to evidence how they meet a set criterion. Gaining 

Page 100



 

the Award is evidence that those organisations have the correct policy and 
controls in place. Relevant WL Standards 71-75 
 

3.7 Partnerships 
When the Council is a member of a partnership it will promote equality and 
the Welsh language in all that it does, and support partners to do so as well.  
 
Collaboration and Involvement are two of the Sustainable Development 
Principles of the Well-being of Future Generations Act. Working in partnership 
will help us design and deliver services around the customer and the 
community. 
 
3.8 Engagement 
The Council consults and involves stakeholders - service users, employees, 
practitioners and their representatives, in changing or developing services. 
Council Members are involved through the political system.  
 
Considering the opinions of people by protected characteristics and other 
factors such as poverty, locality, skills etc. gives us a better picture of the 
whole population and their needs. We’ll also the consult on the opportunities 
to use the Welsh language.  
 
The Council consults people on services that specifically affects them i.e. 
disabled people on disabled housing adaptations, as well as on general 
services.  
 
The Council will consult with partners in Newport to minimise the consultation 
demands on the people of Newport, and make full use of the information 
given. Relevant WL Standards 91-93 and 95-97 
 

3.9 Complaints and compliments 
The Council welcomes complaints and compliments and uses comments to 
try to put things right, learn from mistakes and improve services. The policy is 
below 
http://www.newport.gov.uk/documents/Council-and-Democracy/Comments-
Compliments-and-Complaints-Policy-V1-1-ENG.pdf 
  
The Complaint of Compliment Form is available electronically, below, or call 
the council’s contact centre on 01633 656656. 
https://services.newport.gov.uk/forms/form/252/en/make_a_complaint_or_co
mpliment 
 
We’ll monitor the complaints to assess whether equalities issues emerge. 
We’ll address the issues as they arise and monitor complaints annually. We 
keep a copy all of complaints about Welsh language services, as required by 
the WL Standards. Relevant WL Standards 147-149  

Page 101

http://www.newport.gov.uk/documents/Council-and-Democracy/Comments-Compliments-and-Complaints-Policy-V1-1-ENG.pdf
http://www.newport.gov.uk/documents/Council-and-Democracy/Comments-Compliments-and-Complaints-Policy-V1-1-ENG.pdf
https://services.newport.gov.uk/forms/form/252/en/make_a_complaint_or_compliment
https://services.newport.gov.uk/forms/form/252/en/make_a_complaint_or_compliment


 

4 Discrimination, harassment and victimisation 
 
4.1 Discrimination 
The Council will make sure that our services are designed and implemented 
so that they do not discriminate against people. Our policies will reflect this.  
 
There are four kind of illegal discrimination defined in the Equality Act 2010, 
they apply to service delivery and employment: 

 Direct discrimination 

 Combined direct discrimination 

 Indirect discrimination 

 Discrimination arising from disability 
 
4.2 Direct discrimination– where a person treats another less favourably 
because of a protected characteristic. For example; not giving somebody a 
job or refusing to deliver a service to somebody because of their gender.  
 
4.3 Combined direct discrimination - where a person is treated less 
favourable because of a combination of protected characteristics e.g. gender 
and age  
 
The definition of direct discrimination (see 4.2 and 4.3) has been extended to 
reflect case law. It now includes discrimination because of association with 
a person against whom it would be unlawful to discriminate e.g. discrimination 
against a parent of a disabled person.  
 
Direct discrimination is also extended to cover discrimination based on 
perception of protected characteristics e.g. discrimination against a person 
who is believed to be a Muslim, even if they’re not.  
 
4.4 Indirect discrimination – when a policy or practice is apparently 
neutral but the effect places a group of people at a significant disadvantage- 
for example an inflexible uniform policy which won’t accommodate people’s 
needs based on religion of disability 
 
4.5 Discrimination arising from disability – where a person is treated 
less favourably because of something related to their impairment e.g. a 
disabled pupil disciplined for not obeying a rule they didn’t know about 
because they didn’t understand the sign. 
 
4.6  Harassment  
The Council will be pro-active on protecting people. We will raise awareness, 
train managers, encourage employees to report harassment and deal with 
problems as they arise. 
 
Harassment is unwanted behaviour that has the purpose or effect of violating 
a person's dignity or creating an intimidating, hostile, degrading, humiliating or 
offensive environment for that person. 
 

Page 102



 

The Council has responsibility to protect people in the work environment from 
harassment by people. We may be found at fault if a person reports 
harassment and didn’t take reasonable steps to prevent further harassment. 
This remains true even if a person is harassed by different people for  
different reasons at different times. 
  
Harassment now includes harassment based on association i.e. a friend of 
a disabled person, or perception i.e. mistakenly believed to be a Muslim etc. 
 
Harassment applies to all protected characteristics except for pregnancy and 
maternity (where any unfavourable treatment may be considered 
discrimination,) and marriage and civil partnership. 
 
4.7  Victimisation 
The Equality Act protects people from victimisation on the grounds of any of 
the protected characteristics.  
 
Victimisation is when a person subjects another person to detriment because 
they have done, or believed that they will do, a ‘protected act.’ A ‘protected 
act’ includes bringing proceedings under the Equality Act 2010, giving 
information or evidence, or making an allegation in relation to the Act, as long 
as they have done so in good faith- that is, done honestly.  
 
4.8  Discrimination Table 
Below is a table that shows what is covered by the Equality Act 2010 in terms 
of discrimination, harassment and victimisation. Human Rights are applicable 
to all people in relation to the Council.  
 

 Discrimination 
 

   

 Direct  Dual  Indirect  Harassment 
(Employees 
only) 

Victimisation 
(Employees 
only) 

Human 
Rights 

Age 
☺ ☺ ☺ ☺ ☺ ☺ 

Disability 
☺ ☺ ☺ ☺ ☺ ☺ 

Gender 
reassignment ☺ ☺ ☺ ☺ ☺ ☺ 

Marriage and Civil 
Partnership ☺ ■ ☺ ☺ ☺ ☺ 

Maternity and 
Pregnancy ☺ ■ ■ ■ ☺ ☺ 

Race 
☺ ☺ ☺ ☺ ☺ ☺ 

Religion or belief 
☺ ☺ ☺ ☺ ☺ ☺ 

Sex 
☺ ☺ ☺ ☺ ☺ ☺ 

Sexual orientation 
☺ ☺ ☺ ☺ ☺ ☺ 

 

☺Discrimination covered by the Equality Act 2010/ Human Rights Act 

■ Discrimination not covered by the Equality Act 2010/ Human Rights Act 

Page 103



 

 
4.9 Hate Crime and Hate Incidents 
 
Newport City Council, working in partnership through One Newport aims to 
promote good community relations and cohesion and deal with hate crime 
and incidents motivated by prejudice and hate.  
 
A hate crime is ‘a criminal offense which is perceived, by the victim or any 
other person to be motivated by a hostility or prejudice based on a person’s 
actual or perceived disability, race, religion and belief, sexual orientation and 
transgender’ whereas a hate incident are those that are equally based on 
prejudice but are non-crime related.  
 
The Domestic Abuse Unit provides a confidential, multi-agency service to 
people affected by domestic abuse. 
 

5 Performance/ standards - how we deliver the policy 

5.1 Strategic Responsibility 

The Chief Executive and Strategic Director for People are responsible for the 
strategic direction of equalities and Welsh language across the council. The 
Head of People and Business Change is the Senior Lead Officer. Day to day 
management and co-ordination of the policy lies in the Partnership and Policy 
Team.  
 
The Strategic Equalities Group is chaired by the Cabinet Member for People 
and Business Change. The Cabinet Member for Skills and Work, the 
Equalities Champion and officers that represent each equality objective 
attend. Some of the themes have implementation groups. Some of these 
groups already report elsewhere- to the One Newport Partnership, Welsh 
Government etc. The Council’s Tackling Poverty Champion, Armed Forces 
Champion, Older Persons’ Champion and Equalities Champion have an open 
invitation to attend the group and report to the group once a year.  
 

5.2 Performance 
Building on the Local Government Measure (Wales) 2009, the proposed Local 
Government Reform Bill will shape the performance agenda in the coming 
years with our priorities focused on the framework of the Well-being of Future 
Generations Act. 
 
Under the duty to ‘secure continuous improvement’ is a requirement to have 
regard to:  ‘fairness especially in reducing inequality in accessing or benefiting 
from services, or improving the wellbeing of disadvantaged groups.’ 
 
To do this we consider our equality duties and the effect on all people. We 
implement the Strategic Equality Plan by means of Strategic Equality Group 
and through the Service Area Plans which explicitly address equalities and 
Welsh language. The Service Area Plans are reported on twice a year. 
 

Page 104



 

We report on the Strategic Equality Plan and Equality Objectives once a year 
to Cabinet. These reports are published on the council’s web site.  
 
The relevant regulators for equalities and Welsh language are: 

The Equality and Human Rights Commission (EHRC) 
The Welsh Language Commissioner 

 
5.3  Decisions 
Decision makers in the Council consider the Public Sector Equality Duty and 
the Welsh Language Standards when looking at options and taking decision 
about policies and services. One way to do this is by completing a Fairness 
and Equality Impact Assessment – an equalities risk assessment.  
 
Under the Equality Act 2010 and Welsh Language Measure 2011 all policies, 
practices and procedures should be consulted upon and their impact 
assessed (see Fairness and Equality Impact Assessments, below.), a 
summary and conclusion of which is detailed within the Council’s report 
template. 
 
5.4 Fairness and Equality Impact Assessments (F&EIA) 
The Fairness and Equality Impact Assessment is an equalities risk 
assessment which records the benefits and risks for different people – by 
protected characteristic and on use of the Welsh language. It presents 
evidence of research, and consultation and engagement with stakeholders. 
See section 3.8. If we assess that the decision may affect people differently, 
we’ll take steps to mitigate any negative effects. This will be reported in the 
relevant council report. 
 
A Fairness and Equality Impact Assessment report will include: 

 The purpose of the policy or practice 

 A summary of the steps taken in the assessment 

 A summary of the information take into account in the assessment 

 The result of the assessment 

 Any decision taken by the authority in relation to the results. 
 
The Council will publish the results of Equality Impact Assessments on our 
website. 
http://www.newport.gov.uk/en/Council-Democracy/Equalities-the-Welsh-
language/Equality-Impact-Assessments/Fairness--equality-impact-assessments.aspx 

Relevant WL Standards 88-90 Assessing Impact, 91-93 Consultation and 
95-97 Engagement 
 

5.5 Monitoring service delivery 
Newport City Council will gather and analyse information on customers’ use 
and opinions of its services. Monitoring service delivery and the impact of 
service delivery will form a part of the Council’s performance management.  
Relevant WL Standards 147-174 
 

Page 105

http://www.newport.gov.uk/en/Council-Democracy/Equalities-the-Welsh-language/Equality-Impact-Assessments/Fairness--equality-impact-assessments.aspx
http://www.newport.gov.uk/en/Council-Democracy/Equalities-the-Welsh-language/Equality-Impact-Assessments/Fairness--equality-impact-assessments.aspx


 

5.6  Publishing information  
The Council will identify, publish and use equalities information relevant to 
how we are delivering the specific duties. The relevant information for 
employment has been identified in the Assembly’s The Equality Act 2010 
(Statutory Duties) Wales) Regulations 2011 and a summary is written in 
section 7.5.  
 
For service delivery we will be publishing information on: 

 Performance in relation to delivering the specific duties and the equality 
objectives 

 Access to services 

 Satisfaction with services, and 

 Complaints. 
Relevant WL Standards 147-174 
 

6 You - the employee 

 
The values for the Council as an employer were identified by employees in 
2010. The authority’s values are being Accountable, Open and United 
 
6.1 The People Plan 
The People Plan that sets out how we will motivate, develop and involve 
employees in a fair and inclusive way to make the Council a successful place 
to work. The Council’s Workforce Plan sits under the People Plan and 
contributes to the equality and Welsh language agenda in developing the right 
people with the right skills within the authority, and aiming to have the 
workforce representative of the population of Newport. 
 
6.2  Employment 
The Council aims to be a fair employer and promote a friendly working 
culture. Without committed enthusiastic, skilled and empowered people the 
Council cannot succeed. We’ll create a healthy, safe and supportive work 
environment where people are respected for who they are and employees can 
perform at their best.  
 
It is illegal to discriminate either directly of indirectly against people in 
selecting and employing people, in the terms of employment, access to 
training, promotion, transfers, retirement, dismissal, and other benefits on the 
grounds of any of the protected characteristics. The previous section on 
discrimination in the ‘customers’ section applies to employees.  
 
6.3 Requests in relation to a protected characteristic 
We will make every reasonable endeavour to meet employee requests 
relating to a protected characteristic, including dress, food, holidays, prayer 
times, work patterns, leave, support, physical adaptations etc. in order not to 
discriminate. 
 
6.4 Positive action 
Positive action measures can be used to counteract the effects of past 
discrimination so that people in such groups can achieve their potential. We 

Page 106



 

will evidence that we believe such disadvantages or underrepresentation 
exists before taking action. 
 
The Council has a policy on harassment and victimisation. It is important for 
people to be able to work in a harassment-free environment. Harassment in 
the workplace is completely unreasonable, and illegal. 
 
6.5 Monitoring and publishing information on employment 
Newport City Council is a large organisation with many places of work. It is 
important that we know the workforce, who are our employees, what are their 
needs etc.  
 
We will monitor recruitment, employee development and retention including:- 

a) Number employed (by protected characteristic) 
b) Number employed by job, grade, pay, contract type and working 

patterns (by sex) 
c) Number of employees within a reporting period (by every protected 

characteristic) who: 

 Applied for a job 

 Changed positions and who applied to change positions, applied 
for training, were successful in getting training, and completed 
their training 

 Employees involved in grievance procedures 

 Employees subject to disciplinary 

 Employees who left the employment of the authority 
 

We will monitor and publish data as required above as available on the 
Councils’ payroll system. We will publish data in a way that does not identify 
individuals. We will make monitoring information available to the public on the 
Council’s equalities web pages.  
http://www.newport.gov.uk/_dc/index.cfm?fuseaction=equalities.homepage 
 
Figures on employment will not inform us the reason for any differentials. For 
the causes of any differentials and actions to address them we’ll ask current 
and prospective employees their opinions and experiences.  
 
6.6 Pay and reward 
NCC implements an open, modernised pay and grading structure and flexible 
benefits framework, and has implemented a comprehensive pay and grading 
review under the Total Reward project. 
 
6.7 Positive about disabled people 
The Council is committed to the two ticks -‘Positive about disabled people 
initiative which guarantees an interview for disabled people who meet the 
essential job requirements. We can make changes to an employee's 
environment and role if they are disabled. Managers are responsible for 
providing a suitable work environment that allows employees to carry out their 
work. Support is available for employees and managers by occupational 
therapists, work psychologists and access to work advisors. 

Page 107

http://www.newport.gov.uk/_dc/index.cfm?fuseaction=equalities.homepage


 

 
6.8 Employee engagement 
Employee engagement is one of the five themes of the Council’s People Plan 
for employees. Engagement is essential for developing a culture and 
structures where new and innovative work ideas can be progressed and 
across the authority.   
 
6.9 Organisational Development and training 
Newport City Council is committed to a Corporate Organisational 
Development Strategy, helping today’s leaders, managers and employees 
understand equality in developing better public services.  
 

The Council invests in employee and Member development fairly and 
equitably.  
 
The Council offers the following equalities and Welsh Language training 
courses, which we review on an on-going basis: 

 

 Equalities Awareness 

 Fairness and Equality Impact Assessments  F&EIAs 

 Welsh Language Awareness and the Welsh Language Standards  

 Welsh Language Taster Courses  

 Welsh Language Greetings  

 Prevent Training –WRAP 

 Extremist Ideology Training 

 Hate Crime Awareness 

 Modern Slavery 

 Honour Based Violence 

 Forced Marriage and Female Genital Mutilation awareness, Dementia 
Friendly Awareness 

 
Briefings on Organising Bilingual Meetings, Assessing Language Skills for 
Posts, Community Tensions, Asylum Process etc.  
 
Employees are introduced to the Equality Duties and Welsh Language 
Standards in Corporate Induction and their local service area induction and 
have access to e-learning courses on the council’s e-learning portal.  
 

Service managers and employees will identify what skills are required to 
deliver good and fair service through each employee’s Your Review. 
Relevant WL Standards 129-132 
 

Page 108



 

7 Newport City Council Equality Objectives and Equality 
Action Plan 2016-2020 
 

Well-being goals and 
Newport City Council Equality Objectives 

 
A more equal Wales 
 

1 Diversity in the workplace – Engaging Employees  
The Council’s workforce will be representative of the population we service and 
the workforce are involved in decisions that affect them 
 

2 Engagement and democratic participation 
We will involve people in the development of Council services that affect them and 
base Council decisions on what people need 
 

3 Improving Access to Services 
People can access all the Council services and activities that they need in terms 
of physical access and communication access etc. 
 

4 Tackling Poverty 
We will work to reduce poverty, especially persistent poverty amongst some of our 
poorest people and communities, and reducing the likelihood that people will 
become poor 

 
A Wales of cohesive communities 
 

5 Cohesive Communities and tackling hate crime  
People feel they are a part of Newport society and live their lives free from abuse 
and harassment.  
 

6 Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence 
People who are subject or witness to domestic abuse are supported by the 
Council and its partners in their current situation, and through any changes they 
wish to make. 
 

7 Homelessness 
To provide a safe, supporting, empowering and non-judgemental environment for 
homeless and marginalised people so that they can achieve their potential 

 
A Wales of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language 
 

8 Compliance with the Welsh Language Standards 
We will promote our bilingual public services and increase the use of Welsh in 
Newport 
 

9 Corporate Compliance 
Strategic leadership, governance arrangements, ensuring standards are high and 
consistent across all the council and areas of responsibility. 
 

Page 109



 

The following objectives and actions will be  further developed with the 
Strategic Equality Group and Newport City Council’s partners in the months 
following Council approval of the Strategic Equality Plan and Equality 
Objectives 
 

Equality objective 1 
Diversity in the Workplace- Engaging Employees 

 

Objective and 
outcome 
 
 

A more equal Wales 
 
The Council’s workforce will be representative of the 
population we service and the workforce are involved in 
decisions that affect them 
 

Action 1 
 

Develop a Workforce Planning Template as set out in the 
People Plan 

Action 2 Create a workforce data dashboard to compare workforce with 
Newport population  
 
Develop a Strategy to address areas of difference 
 

Action 3 Identify partner organisations to work with on representation of 
different people 

Action 4 
 

Engage staff on matters that affect them 

 
 

Equality objective 2 
Engagement and democratic participation 

 

Objective and 
outcome 
 
 

A more equal Wales 
 
We will involve people in the development of Council 
services that affect them and base Council decisions on 
what people need 
 

Action 1 
 

Develop a Public Engagement Strategy to support the 
Response Analysis required under the Well-being of Future 
Generations Act 

Action 2 Gather data and intelligence through a range of methods to 
support the Situation Analysis required under the Well-being of 
Future Generations Act 

Action 3 Fairness and Equality Impact Assessments undertaken on 
policy changes, projects etc. and published on council website. 

Action 4 
 

Ensure effective engaged Youth Council in Newport who have 
access to decision makers 

Action 5 Work with Newport’s Welsh Language Forum / Fforwm Iaith 
Casnewydd to develop a strategy to increase the use of Welsh 
in Newport  

 
 
 
 

Page 110



 

 

Equality objective 3 
Improving access to services- 

 

Objective and 
outcome 
 
 

A more equal Wales 
 
People can access all the Council services and activities 
that they need in terms of physical access and 
communication access etc. 
 

Action 1 
 

Audit council buildings for accessibility 

Action 2 Develop an Accessibility Strategy in relation to schools 
 

Action 3 Develop and maintain an English - Welsh translation and 
interpretation service for the council and arrangements for other 
languages and formats 

Action 4 
 

Develop guidance on standards of accessible and bilingual 
materials in relation to marketing, publicity and customer 
information 

Action 5 Monitor satisfaction levels/ number of complaints regarding 
accessibility including physical, communication and Welsh 
language 

Action 6 Front line staff in the contact centre and Information Station 
trained in accessible communications, customer service, 
disability awareness, conflict management etc. 

Action 7 Digital Inclusion Council web site adheres to W3 standard at AA 
level and is bilingual 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Equality objective 4 
Tackling Poverty 

 

Objective and 
outcome 
 
 

A more equal Wales 
 
We will work to reduce poverty, especially persistent 
poverty amongst some of our poorest people and 
communities, and reducing the likelihood that people will 
become poor  
 
(Tackling Poverty Action Plan: preventing poverty; helping 
people out of poverty; action to mitigate the impact of 
poverty)  
 

Action 1 
 

Ensuring children have the best start in life through the delivery 
of Flying Start, good quality, affordable childcare and supported 
transition to education and through other educational transition 
points 

Page 111



 

Action 2 Focusing on the early indications of need so that children and 
young people are able to achieve their potential (achievement 
of children entitled to Free School Meals, Looked After 
Children, etc.)  
 

Action 3 Implementing the Youth Engagement and Progression 
Framework so that young people are offered appropriate 
support when leaving school 

Action 4 
 

Delivery of the Work Based Learning Academy, Community 
First and Families First (Family Skills Project) to improve 
people’s skills, remove barriers to employment and raise 
aspirations 

Action 5 Targeted work in our most deprived communities 
 

 
 
 

Equality objective 5 
Supporting the armed forces covenant 

 

Objective and 
outcome 
 
 

A more equal Wales 
 
To encourage support for the Armed Forces community 
living and working in Newport 
 

Action 1 
 

Supporting the Armed Forces Forum and the Council’s Armed 
Forces Champion 

Action 2 Working with and supporting the Royal British Legion in 
supporting veterans and their families 
 

Action 3 Improve local data on armed forces personnel and veterans 
and maintain a voluntary mailing list by which to engage them 
 

Action 4 
 

Support Armed Forces Reservists within the workforce 

 
  

Page 112



 

Equality objective 6  
Cohesive Communities and tackling hate crime 

 
 

Objective and 
outcome 
 
 

A Wales of cohesive communities 
 
People has a sense of belonging to the city and feel safe. 
 

Action 1 
 

We will encourage and support initiatives which provide 
opportunities to increase awareness and understanding of 
diverse cultures In Newport 
 

Action 2 To continue our support for the Hate Crime Forum in order to 
raise awareness of Hate Crimes, increase reporting and deliver 
a multi-agency response to high risk cases  
  

Action 3 We will co-ordinate a partnership approach to reporting and 
tackling prejudice based bullying in schools and look to play a 
proactive role in challenging prejudice 
  

Action 4  We will encourage opportunities to increase the public’s 
awareness of immigration and the inclusion of asylum seekers, 
refugees and migrants focusing on the shared  experiences of 
all residents in Newport regardless of migration status or 
ethnicity 
 

 
 

Equality objective 7  
Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence  

 

Objective and 
outcome 
 
 

A Wales of cohesive communities 
 
People who are subject or witness to domestic abuse are 
supported by the Council and its partners in their current 
situation and through any changes they wish to make 
 

Action 1 
 

Further develop the multi-agency Domestic Abuse (DA) Unit 

Action 2 Roll out training on awareness and  referral processes 
 

 Forced Marriage / Honour based violence/ FGM 

 Domestic abuse 

 MARAK (multi agency risk assessment conferences) 

 DASH (Domestic abuse stalking and harassment tool) 

 Ask and Act Legislation 

Action 3 Review and further develop the: 

 Domestic Abuse Strategy for Newport and Action Plan, 

 Domestic abuse directory of services 

 Conference Call Domestic Abuse IT system 

 
  

Page 113



 

 

Equality objective 8  
Homelessness  

 
 

Objective and 
outcome 
 
 

A Wales of cohesive communities 
 
To provide a safe, supporting, empowering and non-
judgemental environment for homeless and marginalised 
people so that they can achieve their potential 
 

Action 1 
 

To implement the Supporting People grant programme funded 
by the Welsh Government to assist and support potentially 
vulnerable and marginalized people to live independently within 
the community 

Action 2 To prevent homelessness where practicable to do so through 
the provision of appropriate practical help, advice and 
assistance 
 
 

Action 3 Provide support, help and practical assistance to build 
individuals to cope with challenging situations and to develop 
skills in order to live independently 
 

 
 
 

Equality objective 9  
Compliance with the Welsh Language Standards 

 

Objective and 
outcome 
 
 

A Wales of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language  
 
We will promote our bilingual public services and increase 
the use of Welsh in Newport 
 

Action 1 
 

Run a publicity campaign to promote the Welsh Language 
Standards, and roles and responsibilities for staff, Members 
and the public 

Action 2 Make the best use of council systems to facilitate language 
choice 
 

Action 3 Engage partners in facilitating people’s use of the Welsh 
language in Newport 
 

Action 4 
 

Develop a translation service for Newport City Council 
employees, and facilitate employees’ development of their 
Welsh language skills in the workplace 

 
  

Page 114



 

 

Equality objective 10  
Corporate Compliance 

 

Objective and 
outcome 
 
 

A Wales of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language  
 
Strategic leadership, governance arrangements, ensuring 
standards are high and consistent across all the council 
and its areas of responsibility 
 

Action 1 
 

Monitor performance, including customer satisfaction, through 
the Strategic Equality Group  
 

Action 2 Report annually on equalities and the Welsh language to 
Cabinet and the Senior Leadership Team, and publish relevant 
reports on the council’s website 
 

Action 3 Web pages hold relevant equality information: 

 Equality Impact Assessments 

 Annual Equality and Welsh language Reports 

 Equalities and Welsh language population and employment 
data 

Action 4 
 
 

Council employees offered all the relevant training and 
guidance to facilitate compliance with the equalities, human 
rights and Welsh language legislation 

Action 5 Review procedures on procurement, grants and sponsorships  
to mainstream equalities and Welsh language requirements 

 
 
 

Page 115



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2. Minutes
	5. 2016/17 Budget and Medium Term Financial Plan
	6. Strategic Equalities Plan 2016 - 2020

